

# Lyme Regis Trade Directory, 1823-1903

## Research Team

Graham Davies, 2010-2021

https://www.lymeregismuseumresearchteam.co.uk

This directory database will eventually be compiled from 34 Lyme Regis trade between 1823 & 1939. It is a work in progress.

The information is checked against census, parish and other museum records, and corrections, modifications & additions made where necessary.

Modern day spelling will be used in this directory, with original spellings, if necessary, put in brackets.

Buildings in Lyme Regis were first given street numbers in 1900.

### **Directories**

Pigot & Co, 1823

Pigot & Co, 1828

Pigot & Co, 1830

Robson's 1839

1840

Pigot & Co, 1842

Pigot & Co, 1844

Kelly's, 1848

Hunt & Co, 1851

Slater's, 1852

Kelly's, 1855 & 1859

J G Harrod & Co, 1865

1867

Mercer & Crocker's, 1871

Kelly's, 1875, 1880, 1885, 1889, 1895 & 1898, 1903

#### **Contents**

Nobility, Gentry & Clergy/Private Residents (page 1)

Traders (12)

Taverns and Public Houses (46)

Parish Clerk (49)

Post Office (50)

Cottage Hospital (50)

Corporation (50)

Member of Parliament (53)

Borough Magistrates (53)

Banks (54)

Insurance Agents (54)

Public Establishments (56)

Volunteers (59)

Public Officers (59)

Places of Worship (62)

Schools (64)

Newspaper (65)

Railway (65)

Posting Houses (65)

Coaches & Conveyances (65)

Carriers (67)

Trading Vessels (69)

## Nobility, Gentry & Clergy/Private Residents

Adye, Mrs Catherine, Woodmead, Silver Street, 1903 Agar, Rev William Seth (Catholic priest), Chapel House, Silver Street, 1848-51 Alford, Mrs Letitia, Pound Street, 1851

Allen, Mrs, St Andrew's, Silver Street, 1903

Ames, John Esq, Pinney (Pinhey) House, 1851

Ames, John, Esq, Cleveland House, 1855-65

Andros, Thomas gent, Church Street, 1830

Anning, Mrs, Broad Street, 1855-71

Anning, Mr Simeon, Cumberland Cottage, 1855

Anning, Mr Simeon, Cumberland Cottage, 1859-65

Arrowsmith, Lieut George RN, New Street, 1871

Atkins, William James, Esq, Broad Street, 1855-80

Atkinson, Major, Belle Monte, 1848

Ault, Rev E, Independent minister, 1865

Avelin, William Esq, Lyme, 1830

Aveline, Miss Elizabeth, Broad Street, 1851-55

Axford, Rev William, Independent, Bank House, Broad Street, 1867-71

Babbs, Rev Michael, Pound Street, 1830

Bailey, Major Henry, Broad Street, 1830

Bayly, Col Sir Henry, BN, Burley Villa, 1842-55

Bailey, Miss, Sidmouth Road, 1867-80

Bangay, Richard MD, Belmont House, Pound Street, 1885-95

Barfoot, Robert Esq, Colway Villa, 1848

Barlow, Rev George Hilaro Philip MA, vicar & surrogate, Vicarage, Sidmouth Road, 1885

Barlow, Mrs. Nythea, Pound Street, 1889

Barlow, Mrs, South Cliff, 1895-98

Barnes, Walter, Esq, Colway Lodge, 1859

Barnes, Walter Esq, Bellevue (Belle Vue), 1865-80

Barns, Walter, Alfred Place, Sidmouth Road, 1885-89

Barns, Miss, Alfred Place, Sidmouth Road, 1895-98

Barns, Miss, Belle Vue, Sidmouth Road, 1903

Bean, Robert, Esq. Alfred Villa, 1855

Beaumont, Robert RCM, Greig Cottage, 1895

Bell, Rev John, Wesleyan, Pound Street, 1885

Bellairs, Albin Ennis, Southcliff, 1903

Bellingham, Mrs Monique, High Cliff Lodge, 1842-55

Benbow, Miss, Spring Cottage, Upper Lyme Road, 1867

Benbow, Miss, Woodmead, Uplyme Road, 1871-80

Benham, George Esq, Broad Street, 1865

Bennett, Capt Charles C, Uplyme Road, 1842-59

Bennett, Capt Charles Esq, Upper Lyme Road, 1865

Bennett, Capt Charles Cooper RN JP, St Andrew's, Uplyme Road, 1867-75

Bennett, Rev Hugh MA (curate), Broad Street, 1848-51

Bennett, Mrs. Butter Market, 1867-71

Bennett, William, Sidmouth Road, 1875-80

Bennett, Mrs. Holmsdale (Holmesdale) Cottage, Silver Street, 1885-98

Bennett, Mrs, 20 Silver Street, 1903

Bennie, Mrs Rachel P, Poulet House, Pound Street, 1848-52

Binney, Rev George (Baptist), Cambrian Villa, the Cobb, 1875-80

Board, Miss, Silver Street, 1867-75

Bond, Arthur Thos Mallock, Pound Street, 1898

Bond, Arthur Thos Mallock, Broad Street, 1903

Boteler, Capt, High Cliff, 1848

Boteler, Capt Henry RN, Gatesfield, Sidmouth Road, 1851-52

Boteler, Capt Henry, Gatesfield Cottage, 1855-59

Boteler, Mrs Henry, Gatesfield Cottage, 1865-67

Boteler, Mrs, Gatesfield, Sidmouth Road, 1871-75

Boteler, Miss, Charmouth Road, 1898-1903

Bourne, Frederick Edward Esq, Broad Street, 1851-52

Bourne, Frederick, Esq, Upper Lyme Road, 1855-65

Bourne, Frederick Edward Esq JP, Roseville, Upper Lyme Road, 1867

Brandram, Andrew B, Esq, St Michael's House, 1859-65

Brandram, Major Andrew Babb, St Michael's House, Sidmouth Road, & at Blackheath, Kent, 1867-71

Brandram, Lieut-Col Andrew Babbs, St Michael's House, Sidmouth Road, & at Blackheath, Kent, 1875-85

Brandram, Mrs, St Michael's House, Pound Street, 1889

Bristow, Miss, Surdah House, Ware Lane, 1898

Brook, Walter Esq, Tivoli Villa, 1848

Brookes, Rev Harvey W, MA, Broad Street, 1855

Broster, Richard William, Broad Street, 1875

Brown, Mr Edward, Broad Street, 1855-71

Brown, Henry Roland Esq, Cumberland Cottage, Charmouth Road, 1867

Brown, Capt William Henry RN, Sherborne Lane, 1875-80

Bruce, Archibald Turing, 1 Marine Parade, 1895-1903

Bruce, Mrs, Holme Craig, 1895

Bruton, Mrs, 4 Alfred Place, 1871

Bryan, Mrs, Braeside, Uplyme Road, 1885

Bullen, John Esq, Charmouth, 1842-52

Bunt, Mrs, Alfred Place, 1871

Burchett, L, Bay Cottage, The Cobb, 1889

Burnett, Capt, Uplyme, 1851

Bury, William Esq, Broad Street, 1830-44

Bury, William Fleetwood Esq, Belle Cliff, 1848

Carey, John MD, Silver Street, 1848

Carey, John, Esq MD, Little Park, 1855-65

Carpenter, Lieut Thomas RN, Belle Vue, 1851

Carpenter, Mrs Urenia, The Lawn, 1851-55

Carpenter, Miss, Tivoli Villa, Pound Street, 1889-95

Carter, Daniel Esq, Upper Lyme Road, 1848

Carter, Daniel Esq, Silver Street, 1851

Carter, Daniel Esq, The Retreat, 1852

Cartwright, George Esq, West Cliff Cottage, 1842-52

Cartwright, George, Esq. Cliff Cottage, 1848-65

Cartwright, George Esq DL, Lieut 1st Dorset Artillery Volunteers, Cliff Cottage, Sidmouth Road, 1867

Cartwright, George Esq DL, Capt 1st Dorset Artillery Volunteers, Cliff Cottage, Sidmouth Road, 1871

Cartwright, George DL, Cliff House, 1875

Case, Mr William, Sidmouth Road, 1855

Case, Mr William, Sidmouth Hill, 1871

Case, William, Keble Cottage (Caleb), Sidmouth Road, 1867-80

Chalmers, Capt, South Cliff, 1865

Chalmers, John, South Cliff, Sidmouth Road, 1867-80

Chalmers, A J, Westfield, 1895

Chalmers, A J, Westfield, New Road, 1898

Chalmers, A J, 9 Cobb Road, 1903

Chambers, Mrs, Sidmouth Road, 1871

Champness, John, Surdah Villa, Sidmouth Road, 1889-95

Chapman, Misses, 2 Silver Street, 1898-1903

Chatterton, Horace, High Cliff Lodge, Sidmouth Road, 1889-95

Chatterton, Horace, Little High Cliff, Sidmouth Road, 1898-1903

Clarke, Mrs Margaret, Wood Mead, 1852

Clarke, Mrs Mary, Silver Street, 1851

Clarke, Mrs Major, Silver Street, 1855

Clarke, Charles Hall, Esq MD, Sydmouth Hill, 1855

Clayton, George JP, Sidmouth Road, 1867

Cleave, Benjamin Esq, Haye House (Great Hay), 1842-65

Cleave, Mrs, Haye House, 1855-59

Cleave, Benjamin Esq, Haye House, 1867-71

Clifton, Francis Esq, Spring Cottage, Upper Lyme Road, 1867

Codrington, Mrs Jane, Monmouth Street, 1830

Codrington, Mrs Jane, Church Street, 1842-44

Codrington, George F Esq, Sidmouth Road, 1848

Codrington, Mrs, Park Cottage, 1848

Conolly, Rev James (priest), Chapel House, 1855

Coode, Mrs, Marine Villa, The Cobb, 1889

Coode, Mrs. Broad Street, 1895-98

Cookson, Capt William Edgar RN, Kent Cottage, Silver Street, 1898

Cooper, Mrs, St Michael's House, Pound Street, 1895-98

Cooper, Harry Joseph MA, MB, Belmont, Pound Street, 1898-1903

Cornish, Mrs Frances, Haye House, 1830

Cotton, Mrs Charlotte, Broad Street, 1851-52

Cotton, Lieut-Col George William Vernon, Springfield, 1885-89

Cotton, Rev William Henry (Congregational), 7 Ozone Terrace, The Cobb, 1903

Cox, Robert gent, Broad Street, 1830

Cox, Lieut Henry Laird, Tivoli Villa, 1855

Cox-Chapman, Vice Admiral William, Woodville, Uplyme Road, 1889

Cox-Chapman, Mrs, Woodville, Uplyme Road, 1895

Coxon, Lieut-Col, High Cliff Lodge, Sidmouth Road, 1875

Cragie, John, Cliff Cottage, 1875-80

Croutelle, Rev Leo M (Catholic), Silver Street, 1885-1903

Curgenven, Rev J, curate of Lyme, 1865

Curgenven, Rev John BA, curate, Silver Street, 1867

Curgenven, Rev John BA, curate, The Cobb Road, 1871

Curgenven, Rev John BA, curate, Silver Street, 1875-80

Daniel, Mrs Mark, Silver Street, 1830

Daniel, William Pomroy Esq, Sidmouth Road, 1848

Daniel, William Pomroy Esq, Pound Street, 1851-59

Daniels, Mr William, Pound Street, 1852

Darby, James, Broad Street, 1875-89

Darby, Miss, Broad Street, 1895-98

Darby, Miss Selina, 48 Broad Street, 1903

Davis, Mrs, Broad Street, 1855

Davis, Mr Tom, Parade, 1859

Davis, Mrs, Holmlea, 1889

Davis, Mrs, Marine Villa, The Cobb, 1895

Davis, Mrs, Tivoli Villa, 1898-1903

Dobson, Christopher Esq, Broad Street, 1830

Downey, Mrs Susannah, Pound Street, 1830

Downing, Rev William Francis (Roman Catholic), Uplyme Road, 1875-80

Drayton, John, Esq. Broad Street, 1848-55

Drayton, Miss, 63 Silver Street, 1903

Drew, William, Silverleigh, Silver Street, 1903

Drummond, Mrs, Fairfield House, Charmouth Road, 1867-80

Dunster, Mrs, Silver Street, 1855-59

Eastment, Mrs, Westfield, Sidmouth Road, 1889-95

Eastment, Miss, Keble Cottage, Sidmouth Road, 1898-1903

Edwards, Zachary, Broad Street, 1885-89

Edwards, Zachary, New Road, 1895-98

Edwards, Zachary, 7 The Cobb, 1903

Edwards, Miss, No 5 Ozone Terrace, 1898

Edwards, Miss, 8 Marine Parade, 1903

Elers, George, Esq, Ware House, 1855

Elers, Misses, Sydmouth Hill, 1855

Elers, Misses, High Cliff Lodge, 1859

Ellis, Charles, Colway Cottage, Uplyme Road, 1889-98

Ellis, Rev Percival Allen Constable MA (curate), Bell Cliff House, 1889

Elton, Lieut William Hallam RN, Broad Street, 1867

Embray, Miss, The Cobb, 1885-89

England, William Esq, Mill Green, 1830

England, Mr Samuel, Marine Parade, 1867-85

Escott, Mrs. Red House, 28 Silver Street, 1898-1903

Ethelston, Rev Charles Wickstead, Uplyme Rectory, 1830-52

Evans, Mrs, Little Tivoli, Pound Street, 1885

Eveline, Misses, Broad Street, 1830-44

Farnham, James, Albany House, Broad Street, 1885-98

Fewtrell, Mrs Sarah, Belmont, 1830-52

Fieldhouse, Misses Mary & Elizabeth, Silver Street, 1830-52

Fieldhouse, Mrs & Misses, Silver Street, 1855

Fisher, Mrs, Pound Street, 1830

Fisher, Rev Charles, Silver Street, 1851-52

Fisher, Mrs, Silver Street, 1875

Fisher, Josiah William, Holm Lea, 1895

Fishwick, Mrs, Uplyme, 1851

Flint, Mrs, Alfred Villas, 1859

Follett, Thomas Lisle Esq, Uplyme, 1830-44

Follett, Thomas Lisle Esq, Monmouth Street, 1848-59

Forsythe, Capt William C, Sydmouth Road, 1859

Fowler, Miss Mary Ann, Mill Green, 1859

Fowler, Mr Eli, Cobb, 1865

Fowler, Mr John, Cobb, 1865

Fowler, Col Jonathan, High Cliff Lodge, Sidmouth Road, 1867-71

Fowler, Miss, Tivoli Villa, Sidmouth Road, 1875-80

Foxwell, Thomas, Treales House, Church Street, 1898-1903

Frean, John E, Esq, The Cobb, 1855

Freeman, Mr John, Church Street, 1848

Freeman, Mrs, Stile Cottage, 1855

Freeman, Miss, Church Street, 1867-71

George, Mrs, Bow House, Pound Street, 1867-71

Gibbs, Capt Samuel, Sydmouth Hill, 1855-59

Gibson, Mrs, Sherborne Lane, 1855

Gifford, Rear-Admiral George, Portland Lodge, & at The Cedars, Sunbury, Middlesex, 1867

Gill, Mrs Alice Mary, the Grove, Pound Street, 1898-1903

Gillard, Mrs. Braeside, Uplyme Road, 1889

Gillings, Rev James (Wesleyan), Pound Street, 1880

Gilmore, Deaconess, Isabella, 46 Broad Street, 1898-1903

Goddard, Theophilus B Esq, Colway Cottage, 1848

Goldie, Charles, St Andrews, Uplyme Road, 1885

Goldwyer, Mrs Rebecca, Silver street, 1851-52

Gordge, Miss Martha, 58 Broad Street, 1903

Gordon, Arthur Byrom, Portland Lodge, 1898-1903

Gordon, Mrs. Holme Craig, 1898-1903

Gorton, Mrs, Pound Street, 1851

Graves, Capt George RN, Butter Market, 1875

Gribble, Miss Elizabeth, Uplyme, 1851

Griffith, Mr Philip, Ware Lane, 1859-65

Hall, Miss, Marine Parade, 1875-80

Hallett, William T Esq, Burley Villas, 1851-52

Hansford, Rev Robert, Baptist, Pound Street, 1871

Hansford, Robert, Olinka Cottage, Uplyme Road, 1875-80

Hart, Misses, Haye House, Haye Lane, 1898-1903

Harvey, Henry, commander of Her Majesty's cutter, The Cobb, 1855-59

Hasluck, SI, The Cottage, Butter Market, 1889-1903 ???

Hawker, Mrs, Hernelee, 3 Pound Road, 1898-1903

Hay, Richard Francis, surgeon, Broad Street, 1871-75

Haycraft, George, Broad Street, 1880-85

Haytor, Capt William Hussey, Colway Villas, 1871 [could be Capt William Hayter Hussey]

Hayward, Misses, Silver Street, 1851-52

Hayward, Miss Fanny, Upper Lyme Road, 1848

Hayward, Misses, Upper Lyme Road, 1855-59

Hayward, Miss, Upper Lyme Road, 1865

Hayward, Misses, Westhill, Upper Lyme Road, 1867

Hayward, Miss, Westhill, Upper Lyme Road, 1871

Hayward, Miss, Westhill, (Silver Street) Uplyme Road, 1875-1903

Heathcote, William Esq, Axminster Road, 1851

Heathcote, Capt William, Colway Lodge, 1855

Helpman, Capt Philip Alexander, 1848

Henley, Cornish Esq, Myrtle Cottage, 1842-44

Henley, Mrs, Bow House, 1848

Henley, Misses, Broad Street, 1851

Henley, Misses, Upper Lyme Road, 1855-71

Henley, Miss, Keen House, 1875-85

Henley, Henry, Newhaven, Pound Street, 1898

Henry, Capt James, Belmont House, Sidmouth Road, 1875-80

Herbert, Major-General Sir Percy Bart KCB MP, Holmlea House, 1875

Hill, Sir Dudley, High Cliff House, 1842-44

Hill, Major General Sir Dudley GCB, High Cliff House, 1848

Hill, John Esq, Fairfield House, 1842-59

Hillman, Edward Esq, Grove, 1830

Hillman, Robert Esq, The Grove, 1842-71

Hillman, Robert William Esq. Pound Street, 1867-71

Hillman, Robert William, Bow House, 1875-89

Hillman, Robert William, Stile House, 1895

Hillman, Robert William, Silverleigh, 1898

Hillman, Mrs, 15 Pound Street, 1903

Hilton, George A, Holm Lee Cottage, New Road, 1898

Hilton, George A, 5 Cobb Road, 1903

Hingeston, George Esq, Tivoli Villa, 1848

Hingeston, George Esg, Broad Street, 1855

Hingeston, George Esq, Cobb House, The Cobb, 1867

Hingeston, Mrs Caroline, Pound Street, 1851

Hingeston, Mrs, Sidmouth Road, 1855-80

Hingeston, William, Pound Street, 1852

Hingeston, William Esq, Sidmouth Road, 1848-65

Hingeston, William MRCS LSA, Sidmouth Road, 1867-80

Hingeston, William, Pound Street, 1885

Hingeston, Mrs. Pound Street, 1895

Hingeston, George Adney, Sherborne House, Sherborne Lane, 1898

Hingeston, George Adney, Hingeston Hall, 1903

Hinton, Mrs E C, Broad Street, 1859

Hinton, Mrs E C, Colway Cottage, 1867

Hinton, Frederick Esq, Broad Street, 1855-75

Hinton, Frederick Esq, major 1st Dorset Artillery Volunteers, Broad Street, 1867

Hoare, Charles, Bay Cottage, The Cobb, 1895-98

Hodges, Capt, Stile Lane, 1851

Hodges, Rev Frederick Parry DCL (vicar), Portland Villa, 1842-52

Hodges, Rev Frederick Parry, DCL, vicar, Vicarage, 1855-75

Hodges, Rev Frederick Thomas Amelius Parry DCL (surrogate & vicar), Vicarage, 1880

Holland, George Esq, Silver Street, 1830

Holmes, Robert Esq, Prospect Place, 1830-52

Holmes, Robert Esq, Silver Street, 1851

Holmes, Robert, Esq, Upper Lyme Road, 1848-71

Holmes, Robert James, Bridge Street, 1875

Holmes, Thomas James MD, Upper Lyme Road, 1867-71

Holmes, Mrs, Tudor House, Butter Market, 1885-89

Holmes, Mrs, Gibraltar House, Silver Street, 1895-1903

Homan, Ebenezer, Kersbrook Cottage, Pound Lane (Pound Road), 1885-1903

Hook, Mrs Mary, Broad Street, 1830

Hopper, Capt Horman, Bellevue House, 1855

Horsford, Mrs, No 1 Alfred Place, 1855

Houseman, Mrs, Roseville, Uplyme Road, 1871-80

Houseman, Miss, Rose Villa, Silver Street, 1885

Howe, Capt Oldbury, Undercliff, The Cobb, 1903

Hunter, Miss, Champ Villa, Broad Street, 1867-71

Hunter, Miss, Monmouth House, 1875

Hussey, John Esq, Butter Market, 1830

Hussey, John Esq, Silver Street, 1842-44

Hussey, John Esq, Upper Lyme Road, 1848

Hussey, Reginald Esq, Silver Street, 1859-65

Hussey, Reginald Esq, Wood Mead, Silver Street, 1867

Hussey, Capt William, Colway Lodge, 1865

Hussey, Capt William Hayter, No 2, West Cliff, The Cobb, 1867-85

Hussey, Mrs, Woodmead, Silver Street, 1889-98

Hutchings, Rev William, Belle Vue, 1848

Hutchings, Rev George Cyril BA, curate, Bell Cliff House, 1889

Hutchinson, William Esq, Cobb, 1865

Ingram, J Esq, Pound Street, 1865

Ingram, Hughes Francis Esq. Poulet House, Sidmouth Road, 1867-80

Jackson, G M Esq, Fairfield House, 1865

Jacob, Rev William MA, vicar, Vicarage, 1903

Janion, Rev Charles, Wesleyan, Horse Street, 1867-71

Jebb, Misses, Burley Villa, 1848

Jefferd, Mrs. Bridge Street, 1859-67

Jeffery, William Esq. Portland Cottage, 1830

Jefford, George, nurseryman, 33 Silver Street, 1903

Jenkins, Rev Joseph Roger, Baptist, Cambrian Villa, New Road, The Cobb, 1867-71

Jennings, Miss, Pound Street, 1859

Jennings, Miss, Alfred Place, 1867

Jennings, Rev Daniel, Baptist, 1865

Jerrard, Mrs. Broad Street, 1885

Gillard, Mrs, Braeside, Uplyme Road, 1885

Jones, John, The Cobb, 1875-80

Keen, Mrs Mary, Watermead Cottage, 1830-52

Keighley, Capt William RN, Uplyme, 1830-44

Kelly, Capt William RN, Ware Cottage, 1848-52

Kelly, Mrs, Ware Cottage, 1855

Knell, Rev Samuel (Independent Minister), Butter Market, 1855

Knight, Dr Paul Slade MD, Silver Street, 1842-44

Knighton, Lieut C, RN, The Cobb, 1855

Landon, Mrs, Silver Street, 1865-80

Landon, Mrs, Gibraltar Lodge, 1885

Landon, Henry Palmer, Gibraltar Lodge, 1885

Lang, Mrs, Surdah House, Sidmouth Road, 1885

Lavers, Albion, Marine Villa, The Cobb, 1875-85

Lean, Mrs, Woodville, 1875-80

Lee, Edward O, Esq, Broad Street, 1848-55

Lee, Edward O, Esq, Pound Street, 1859-65

Lee, Edward Overton Esq JP, Broad Street, 1867-80

Lee, Henry Trotman Esq, Broad Street, 1848

Lee, Henry T, Esq, Pound Street, 1859

Lee, Mrs, The Lawn, Sidmouth Road, 1865-71

Lee, Henry, The Lawn, Sidmouth Road, 1875-80

Lee, Mrs, The Lawn, Pound Street, 1885-1903

Linsdell, Rev Henry, Tivoli Villa, Sidmouth Road, 1875-80

Lister, Arthur, High Cliff, 1875-89

Lister, Arthur, High Cliff, & Leytonstone, Essex, 1895-95

Lister, Arthur JP, High Cliff, 1898-1903

Lock, Mrs Elizabeth, Horse Street, 1855

Loveridge, Mr James, Sherborne Lane, 1851-65

Loveridge, Mrs, Sherborne Lane, 1867-71, 80

Loveridge, Mrs, Silver Street, 1875-98

Lowe, John W Esq RN, Cobb, 1865

Lowndes, Samuel JP, St Andrews, Uplyme Road, 1880

Lucan, Countess of, High Cliff, 1859

Mackay (Mackie), Mrs, Belle Vue, 1855-59

Mahoney, Patrick, Pound Street, 1885-89

Marder, Henry, Esq. Broad Street, 1848-65

Marder, Henry MRCS LSA, Broad Street, 1867

Marder, Miss, 2 Burley Villas, Uplyme Road/Silver Street, 1875-95

Marder, Miss, Burley, 23 Silver Street, 1898-1903

Marder, Miss, No 1 Tivoli Villa, Pound Street, 1895-98

Marder, Miss, Westfield, 1903

Mariner, Rev Edwin, BA, (curate), Marine Parade, 1859

Marks, Rev Edward (Baptist), Pound Street, 1885-1903

Marr, Charles gent, Broad Street, 1830

Marsh, Isaac Esq, Broad Street, 1871-85

Marshall, Mrs M, Butter Market, 1830

Marshall, Miss, Belmont, 1859-71

Martin, James, The Cobb, 1885-89

Martin, Mrs, The Cobb, 1895-98

Matthews, Misses, Bow House (Lane), 1855-59

Meaden, Mrs, Sidmouth Road, 1875

Meager, Rev R N (Catholic), 1865

Miers, Reginald Hanbury, The Nest, Uplyme Road, 1885

Miers, Reginald Hanbury, Southcliff, 1889

Miller, Mr Harry, Marine Parade, 1871

Miller, Mrs, St Helier's, 1875-80

Mitchell, John Esq JP, Summer Hill House, Charmouth Road, 1865-75

Mitchell, Mrs, Shamien, Pound Street, 1895-98

Mollett, Miss, No 4 Ozone Terrace, 1898-1903

Montegue, John, Esq, High Cliff, 1855

Montefiore, Rev Durbin B, BA, curate, 1885

Moore, Lieut John G Sarsfield, RN, Stile House, 1848-65

Moore, Mr Robert, Silver Street, 1855

Moore, Mrs, Clifton Cottage, The Cobb, 1880

Morris, Frank, Style (Stile) House, Pound Street, 1889

Munden, Mrs Margaret, Bridge Street, 1852-71

Munden, Mrs, Bridge House, 1867-89

Munro, Capt Campbell JP, Fairfield, Charmouth Road, 1885-98

Munro, Capt Sir Campbell Bart JP, Fairfield, Charmouth Road, 1903

Murley, Capt, Rhode House, 1842-44

Murley, Capt (Commander) William, RN, The Cobb, 1848-59

Myers, Rev Charles MA (vicar & surrogate), Temple House, Broad Street, 1889

Newall, George Fergus, The Grove, Pound Street, 1885-98

Newenham, Lieut Thomas RN, The Cobb, 1859

Newenham, Capt Thomas RN, Church Street, 1865

Newenham, Capt William Thomas RN, Butter Market, 1867-75

Newenham, Capt William Thomas RN, Burton House, Pound Street, 1880-89

Newman, Rev Frederick (Independent minister), Alfred Place, 1848-52

Newton, Mrs Mary, Little Park, 1830-44

Nichols, Capt RN, Upper Lyme Road, 1865

O'Brien, Daniel, Sherborne Lane, 1885-89

Ogle, Rev. Broad Street, 1830

Oldham. Mrs, West Cliff. 1898-1903

Oliver, Mrs Susannah, Broad Street, 1830-44

Oliver, Capt John RN, Church Street, 1830

Oliver, John, master RN, The Cobb, 1830

Oliver, Mr John (master RN), Church Street, 1842-52

Oliver, John, Esq. Church Street, 1855

Osborn, Mr Samuel, Marine Parade, 1867-95

Osborn, Henry, 5 Marine Parade, 1885-1903

Osborn, Gaius, Bower Cottage, Marine Parade, 1895-98

Osborn, Gaius, 5 Marine Parade, 1903

Ostler, Job, 62 Silver Street, 1903

Otton, Rev George Walker MA (curate), Bell Cliff House, 1889

Paine, Mrs, Bell Cliff, 1885

Paine, Mrs. 63 Broad Street, 1903

Palgrave, Francis Turner, Little Park, 1875-95

Palmer, Rev George, Marine Parade, 1851-59

Palmer, Col George Herbert RA, St Andrews, 1898

Palmer, LT-Col George Herbert, Springfield, Silver Street, 1903

Parrett, Thomas, Bell Cliff, 1885

Parrett, Mrs, Bell Cliff, 1889

Paul, Mrs, Uplyme, 1830

Pay, Adam, The Cobb, 1885

Peek, Rev Edward, Pine House, Broad Street, 1875-80

Peek, Rev Edward MA, Poulett House, Pound Street, 1885-98

Pennell, Rev Richard, Prospect Place, 1830-44

Penny, Mr Joseph, Broad Street, 1855, 67

Pepin, A B Esq. Cumberland Cottage, 1830

Perkins, Maj-Gen Edward Norman, Keen House, Uplyme Road, 1889

Phelps, John Esq. Broad Street, 1851

Philpot, Miss Mary, Morley Cottage, 1830-52

Philpot, Miss Elizabeth, Silver Street, 1848-52

Philpot, John, Esq, Silver Street, 1859-71

Philpot, Mrs, Silver Street, 1855

Philpot, Mrs, Morley Cottage, 1875

Philpot, Mrs, Herne Lea, 1885

Philpot, John Gold, Morley Cottage, Silver Street, 1889

Philpot, Thomas Embray Davenport JP, Holme Cleve, or Holm Cleve, Sidmouth Road, 1889-1903

Philpott, Frederick, The Cobb, 1895

Philpott, Robert, The Cobb, 1898

Pinney, Col William, MP, Pound Street, 1859

Pitfield, Jesse Moore, Pound Street, 1903

Platt, Rev Robert (Catholic), Silver Street, 1859

Plumtre, Francis Henry, Esq. Silver Street, 1855

Porter, William, Beulah, Silver Street, 1889

Poulton, Mrs, Alfred Place, Sidmouth Road, 1885-89

Poulton, Miss Emily, Alfred Place, Sidmouth Road, 1895-1903

Preston, John William JP, Cliff House, 1880-1903

Preston, Matthew Colbeck, Style Lane, 1895

Preston, Matthew Colbeck, Burton House, Pound Street, 1903

Pringle, Rev James (Baptist), Surdah House, Ware Lane, 1903

Prior, John Vane Esq, Springfield House, 1848

Prosser, Mrs, Silver Street, 1859-65

Pulford, Commander Thomas, Stile Lodge, Pound Street, 1903

e (Stile Lane), (Stile Lodge 1898), 1889-98

Radford, Mr Robert, Silver Street, 1871

Radford, Francis, West Cliff, 1889-1903

Randall, Mrs, Butter Market, 1885-95

Randolph, Rev Charles, The Cobb, 1830

Raven, Mrs Susan, Silver Street, 1851-59

Ray (Wrey), Robert Boucher Esq, Ware Cliff, 1852

Raymond, Miss Mary Ann Jane, Broad Street, 1848-59

Read, Mr John, Lower Ware, 1855-71

Read, Mrs, Lower Ware, 1875

Read, Mrs, Silver Street, 1880

Redpath, Mrs (Mr) John, Broad Street, 1855-59

Rendall, Capt John, The Cobb, 1852-59

Rendall, Mrs, The Cobb, 1865-75

Rennard, Rev Andrew (Weslyan), Bradford House, Sidmouth Road, 1875

Rhodes, George Esq, Woodhouse, 1830-52

Rhodes, Rev Edward Woodhouse, Uplyme, 1851

Risdon, Philip, Esq. Summerhill (Summer Hill), 1848-59

Risdon, Miss, Summerhill House (Summer Hill), 1885

Risdon, John, Champs Villa, Broad Street, 1880

Roberts, George, Esq. (mayor), Broad Street, 1855

Rogerson, Edward, Portland Lodge, 1885

Rowan, Mrs. Burton House, Pound Street, 1895-98

Rowse, Richard Martin, Alfred Villas, Sidmouth Road, 1875

Rutter, Rev William, Independent, Sherborne Lane, 1871

Sellers, Mrs, Butter Market, 1867-71

Semple, Miss, Rose Cottage, Silver Street, 1885-89

Shadwell, John, Stile Cottage (Style Cottage), Sidmouth Road, 1875-80

Sharpe, Rev Arthur R MA (headmaster), St Michael's College, 1889-98

Shipley, Orby, Colway House, Uplyme Road, 1889-98

Shore, George N Esg, Broad Street, 1851

Shore, George Nathaniel Esq, No 2 Alfred Place, 1855-71

Shore, John, Alfred Villas, Sidmouth Road, 1880

Shore, Mrs, Lower Ware, Sidmouth Road, 1885-1903

Skinner, David Shorther MD, Silver Street, 1867-75

Simmonds, Mr Charles, Broad Street, 1830-52

Simpson, Mrs, Mill Green, 1903

Smith, Mrs Ebenezer, Horse Street, 1830

Smith, Rev Edward Floyer Noel MA, Vicarage, 1898

Sore, Mrs, Lower Ware, 1903

Spencer, Capt Richard RN, The Cobb, 1830

Spurr, James, Colway Cottage, Uplyme Road, 1903

Standbridge, Lieut William J RN, The Cobb, 1851

Stanger-Leathes, Misses, Olinka Cottage, Silver Street, 1885-1903

Stanton, Mrs. Ware, 1851

Stevens, Samuel, The Cobb, 1859

Stein, John Esq, High Cliffe House, 1830

Stein, John Esq, Marine Parade, 1842-44

Sturton, Rev John Anthony BA (curate), Sunnyside, Marine Parade, 1903

Styles, William Barton Esq, Bell Vue Cottage, 1830

Symes, Capt, Springfield, 1842-44

Symes, Capt, Spring Cottage, 1848-51

Symes, Mrs, Spring Cottage, 1852

Symes, Charles, Esq, Springfield House, 1855

Symonds, Charles, Esq, Springfield House, 1859

Symonds, Mrs, Colway House, Uplyme Road, 1903

Symons, Charles Esq, Broad Street, 1848

Symons, Charles Esq, Springfield House, Upper Lyme Road, 1865-75

Symons, Mrs, Springfield, 1885

Talbot, Admiral Sir John, Rhode Hill, 1830-52

Taunton, Mrs Millicent, Ware Cottage, 1852

Templeman, James Esq, Broad Street, 1830-44

Templer, George Denis O'Kelly Esq. Broad Street, 1848

Templer, George Denis O'Kelly Esq, High Cliff House, 1851

Thompson, Mr Richard, Ware Cottage, 1855

Thornley, Mrs F M, Broad Street, 1851

Thrupp, Reginald Esq, Sidmouth Road, 1848

Thrupp, Charles Joseph Esq, St Michael's Hill, 1851-52

Travers, Mrs, High Cliff House, 1851

Treeby, John Wright Esq MP, High Cliff, & at 121 Westbourne Terrace & Conservative Club,

Pall Mall, London, 1867

Treeby, Miss, Herne Lea, Sidmouth Road, 1889

Treeby, Miss, Temple House, Broad Street, 1898

Tucker, Mrs Ann, Silver Street, 1859

Tucker, John, Esq, Butter Market, 1848-55

Tucker, John, Esq. Broad Street, 1859

Tucker, Henry Esq JP, Butter Market, 1867-71

Tucker, Henry JP, Spring Cottage, Uplyme Road, 1875

Vere, Miss, Uplyme, 1830

Vincent, Allder Odell, 8 Cobb Road, 1903

Vizard, Mrs, Portland Lodge, Uplyme Road, 1889

Walker, Mrs, Sherborne Lane, 1855-75

Wallis, Capt Thomas Arnold RN, Butter Market, 1830

Wallis, Mr Walter Banfield, Pound Street, 1867-71

Wallis, Walter Banfield, Stile House (Style House), Sidmouth Road/Pound Street, 1875-85

Wallis, Walter Banfield, SummerHill (Summer Hill), Charmouth Road, 1889-98

Wallis, Mr William, Silver Street, 1867

Wallis, John Edwin, Silver Street, 1875

Wallis, Mrs, Silver Street, 1875

Wallis, Edwin Henry, Chatham House, Broad Street, 1885

Wallis, John Edwin, Holmcroft, Broad Street, 1885

Wallis, Mrs, Holmcroft, Broad Street, 1885

Wallis, Edwin Henry, Holmcroft, Broad Street, 1889-1903

Wallis, Mrs, Summer Hill, 1903

Wallis, William Randall, Ridware, The Cobb, 1903

Walsh, Rev William, Roman Catholic, Upper Lyme Road, 1867

Walsh, Rev William, Roman Catholic, Silver Street, 1871

Waring, Capt, Broad Street, 1830

Waring, Henry Frank Esq, Sidmouth Road, 1848

Waring, Henry Frank, Esq, South Cliff, 1855-59

Waring, Mrs, Broad Street, 1867-75

Waring, Mrs, Silver Street, 1885

Waring, Henry R, Gibraltar Lodge, Silver Street, 1889

Warmington, Rev Francis Albert, Congregational, Broad Street, 1885-89

Warren, John Esq, Horse Street, 1830

Warren, Misses, Broad Street, 30

Warren, Capt Talbot, Uplyme, 1842-44

Warren, Capt John Talbot Esq, Sidmouth Road, 1848

Warter, Mrs, Spring Cottage, 1867-71

Water, Mrs, Woodmead, Uplyme Road, 1875

Waters, Edwin Hughes, Woodville, Uplyme Road (Upper Lyme Road)), 1875

Waugh, Rev W R, Independent, Bridge Street, 1875

Wayland, Rev Abraham (Baptist minister), Providence Place, Sherborne Lane, 1830-59

Weallens, Rev Robert Stephens BA, curate, Oakfield House, Broad Street, 1898

Wellington, Mrs, Cumberland Cottage, 1875

Wheaton, Rev Thomas, Broad Street, 1871

White, George, Broad Street, 1885

Whithouse, Richard, Esq. Burley Villa, 1855

Whithouse, Richard, Esq. Portland Villa, 1859

Wilkins, Silvanus, The Haye, 1885

Williams, Rev James (Independent), Church Street, 1859

Williams, Mrs, Little Bow House, 1875

Wills, Francis, 54 Broad Street, 1885-1903

Willoughby, Capt J B, The Pound, 1852

Willoughby, Capt J B, RN, Portland Villa, 1855

Wilson, Edward, Pound Street, 1889

Winbush, Mrs, Pound Street, 1889

Wollaston, Richard Gulston, Broad Street, 1875

Wood, Mrs Elizabeth, Broad Street, 1830

Wrey, Robert Esq, Ware Cliff, 1848

Wrey, Robert B Esq, Ware, 1851

Wrey, Mrs, Burleigh Villas, 1875

Wrey, Mrs, Burleigh (Burley) Villa, 1885

Wynch, William Maling, Roseville, 21 Silver Street, 1889-1903

Yescomb, Charles Esq, Albert Place, 1871

Yescombe, Charles, Alfred Villas, Sidmouth Road, 1975

Younghusband, Capt Thomas, Springfield House, 1851-52

#### **Traders**

Amor, Richard, shopkeeper &c, The Cobb, 1830

Abbott, Jonathan, master mariner & lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1867

Abbott, Jonathan Marshall, The Cobb Arms, The Cobb, 1871-89

Abbott, Robert, coxswain, 7 Monmouth Street, 1903

Adams, Sarah (Mrs), shopkeeper, Monmouth Street, 1855

Adams, Sarah (Mrs), shopkeeper, Coombe street, 1859

Agland, Abraham, George's yard, 1830

Agland, Abraham, cooper, Church Street/ Butter Market, 1839-71

Agland, Ambrose, master mariner, The Cobb, 1859-65

Agland, Ambrose, master mariner & lodging-house, New Road, The Cobb, 1867

Agland, Mrs Harriet, shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1885-89

Anning, Joseph, furniture broker, Bridge Street, 1823-28

Anning, John, cabinet maker & upholsterer, Broad Street, 1830

Anning, Joseph, cabinet maker & upholsterer, Broad Street, 1839-48

Anning, Mary, curiosity dealer, Bridge Street, 1823-28

Anning, Mary, fossilist, Broad Street, 1830-44

Anning, Amelia, lodging-house keeper, Broad Street, 1851

Anning, Simeon, Baker &c, Silver Street, 1830

Anning, Simeon, baker & confectioner, Broad Street, 1839-52

Ansaldi, Giovanni Baptista, linen draper, silk mercer & stamp office, Broad Street, 1855

Aplin, Robert, farmer, Colway Farm, 1848

Arrowsmith, Lieut George RN, commander coastguard station, The Cobb, 1871

Arthur, William, lodging-house, No 1 West Cliff, The Cobb, 1885-89

Arthur, William, apartments, Woodville, Uplyme road, 1898

Arthur, William, apartments, 26 Silver Street, 1903

Atkins, William James, manager of Dorsetshire branch bank, Broad Street, 1855-59

Austin, John, George Inn, Horse Street, 1871-75

Austin, Caleb, apartments, 11 Cobb Road, 1903

Badcock, Charles Henry, schools, Mill Green, 1852

Backholer, Robert, Pilot Boat, Bridge Street, 1859

Bailey, Mrs Elizabeth, marine store dealer, Mill Green, 1867-71

Baker, James, saddler & harness maker, Broad Street, 1823-30

Baker, Mrs Catherine, saddler & harness maker, Broad Street, 1839-52

Baker, Catherine, lodging-house keeper, Broad Street, 1851

Baker, John, shopkeeper, Coombe Street, 1839-40

Baker, John, shopkeeper & beer retailer & carrier, Coombe Street, 1848-55

Baker, John, bootmaker, Horse Street, 1848

Baker, John, boot & shoemaker, Butter Market, 1851-71

Baker, Edward, boot & shoemaker, Broad Street, 1855-65

Baker, Edward, boot & shoemaker & berlin wool repository, Broad Street, 1867

Baker, Edward, Berlin wool repository, Broad Street, 1871

Baker, Edward, boot & shoemaker, Market Square, 1875

Baker, Edward, boot & shoemaker, Broad Street, 1880

Baker, Edward, boot & shoemaker, Silver Street, 1885-1903

Baker, William, painter, Horse Street, 1839-48

Baker, William, painter, plumber & glazier, Pickle Square, 1851

Baker, William, painter & glazier, Mill Green, 1852-55

Baker, Elizabeth (Mrs), painter & glazier, Silver Street, 1859

Baker, George, painter & glazier, Broad Street, 1865-71

Baker, Miss Emily, fancy repository, Butter Market, 1889

Balch, Robert, master mariner, The Cobb, 1885

Ball, Charles, saddler & harness maker, Pound Street, 1848-59

Ball, Charles, saddler & harness maker, Broad Street, 1865-85

Ball, Mrs Abi, saddler & harness maker, Broad Street, 1880-95

Ball, Mrs Abi, exors of, saddler & harness maker, Broad Street, 1898

Ball, Charles, saddler, Broad street, 1898

Ball & Sons, saddlers, 52 Broad Street, 1903

Ball, Charles Jnr, Crown Inn, Coombe Street, 1867

Ball, Charles Jnr, beer retailer (1871-75) & saddler, Broad Street, 1871-95

Ball, Mrs Julia, apartments, Alexandria House, 52 Broad Street, 1895-1903

Bangay, Richard MD, surgeon, & medical officer of health to the urban sanitary authority (& admiralty surgeon & agent 1889-95), Belmont House, Pound Street, 1885-95

Barrett, Misses Angelina & Emily (sisters), photographic artists, Butter Market/Church Street, 1865-71

Barrett, Miss Angelina, photographer, Butter Market, 1875-80

Barrett, Augusta, fancy repository, Church Street, 1871 (niece to above sisters)

Bartlett, Margaret, school, Uplyme, 1852

Batty, Henry, sergeant of police, Horse Street, 1867

Bayley, John, baker &c, Horse Street, 1842-44

beere,t, George, tallow chandler, Uplyme, 1830

Bazley, John, baker &c, Broad Street, 1830

Bazley, John, butcher, Uplyme, 1830-52

Bazley, Robert, brewer & beer retailer, Church Street, 1842-44

Bazley, Matthew, butcher, Uplyme, 1830

Bazley, Matthew, butcher, Bridge Street, 1848

Bazley, Matthew, butcher, Silver Street, 1851-52

Beaumont, Robert, professor of music, RCM & SAS, 1895

Bedford, Thomas, brewer, Golden Hart commercial inn & excise office, Butter Market, 1848

Beer, William, cheese dealer, Uplyme, 1851

Beer, John, marine stores, Mill Green, 1871

Beer, John Isaac, fish dealer & shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1875-80

Beer, John, hairdresser & tobacconist, 28 Broad Street, 1871-1903

Beer, Arthur Palmer, Pilot Boat, Bridge Street, 1885

Beer, John Warren, beer retailer, Silver Street, 1885

Beer, Mrs Anne, beer retailer, (& cab proprietor 1895), Silver Street, 1889-98

Beer, Thomas, shopkeeper, 1 Monmouth Street, 1885-1903

Beere, Thomas, grocer &c, Church Street/Butter Market, 1823-40

Bennett, Henry, academies (day), Church Street, 1823-28

Bennett, John, teacher (music), Church Street, 1830

Bennett, John, boot & shoemaker, Bridge Street, 1823-30 & 48

Bennett, Ann, milliner & dressmaker, Broad Street, 1830

Bennett, Elizabeth, ladies' shoemaker, Bridge Street, 1839-44

Bennett, John, hot & cold baths, Bridge Street, 1839-44

Bennett & Woodman, straw hat maker, Broad Street, 1830

Bennett, Eleanor, straw hat maker, Butter Market, 1839-40 & 1844

Bennett, Eleanor, straw hat maker, Broad Street, 1842

Bennett, Eleanor, straw hat maker, Butter Market, 1848-51

Bennett, Eleanor, milliner &c, Church Street, 1852

Bennett, Eleanor (Mrs), milliner &c, Butter market, 1855-65

Bennett, William, commission agent & collector of harbour dues, Assembly rooms, 1859-65

Bennett, William, commission agent & collector of harbour dues, Pound Street, 1867-71

Bennett, William, commission agent, Broad Street, 1875-80

Bennett, John Woodman, Three Cups family hotel, commercial & posting house, & omnibus proprietor, Broad Street, 1875

Bennett, Frank, butcher, Butter Market, 1889

Berry, John, shopkeeper & sailmaker, The Cobb, 1855

Berry, John, sailmaker, The Cobb, 1859-67

Berry, John, master mariner, The Cobb, 1865

Berry, William Richard, master mariner, The Cobb. 1859-67

Berry, Mrs William, Honiton lace manufacturer, the Cobb, 1867

Berry, William, baker & grocer, Horse Street, 1865-81 (father)

Berry, William George, baker, confectioner & grocer, Horse Street, 1885-98 (son)

Berry, William George, shopkeeper, 10 Coombe Street, 1903

Besley, baker &c, Silver Street, 1823-28

Bickley, Henry Octavius, draper, Broad Street, 1885-98 (draper, costumier & outfitter, 1898-1903)

Biddlecombe, William Henry, teacher (music), Pound Street, 1851-52

Bird, Obadiah, grocer, Bridge Street, 1889

Bishop, Robert, The Cobb Hotel, 1865

Bishop, Robert, Hotel & shoemaker, The Cobb, 1867

Blackmoor, John, shopkeeper, Horse Street, 1875-80

Blackmore, Mrs Mary, shopkeeper, Horse Street, 1885-89

Blackmore, Samuel, Ship Inn, Horse Street, 1889

Blake, Mrs Mary, draper, Silver Street, 1898

Boalch, Robert, master mariner, The Cobb, 1889

Boalch, Mrs Mary, shopkeeper, The Cobb, 1895-98 (not his wife?)

Boalch, Mrs Mary, shopkeeper, 26 Marine Parade, 1903

Board, Daniel, New Inn, Broad Street, 1839-40

Board, Robert, shopkeeper, Silver Street, 1839-40

Board, Daniel, carpenter, Silver Street, 1851

Board, Daniel, carpenter, Coombe Street, 1859-71

Board, Elizabeth (Mrs), beer retailer & shopkeeper, Silver Street, 1851-55

Board, John, carpenter &c, Coombe Street, 1855

Board, James, tailor, Charmouth Road, 1867

Board, Mrs Dorothy, shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1875

Board, Mrs Dorothy, shopkeeper, Monmouth Street, 1880-98

Bond, William, New Inn, Broad Street, 1871

Bond, Arthur Thomas Mallock (Hillman & Bond), sol, clerk to Borough Magistrates, 10 Broad St, 1898-1903

Bondy, Henry, drill instructor to 1st Dorset Volunteer Artillery, Church Street, 1875

Bondy, Henry, drill instructor to 1st Dorset Volunteer Artillery, Coombe Street, 1880-85

Bondy, Henry, lodging-house, Sherborne Lane, 1889

Bondy, Henry, George P.H., Horse Street, 1895-98

Bondy, Henry, George PH, 16 Coombe Street, 1903

Boon, James & William, woolstaplers & woollen manufactures (& clothiers 23-28), Uplyme, 1823-44

Boon, James, woollen manufacturers, Uplyme, 1851-52

Boon, Elizabeth, Milliner & dressmaker, Silver Street, 1851-52

Boon, William, draper, Silver Street, 1851-55

Boon, Frederick, Cobb Arms, The Cobb, 1867

Boon, John, cowkeeper, Silver Street, 1867-80

Boon, George, ironmonger, Coombe/Horse Street, 1871-91

Boon, George, coal merchant, Coombe Street, 1895-1903

Booth, Nathaniel, wheel & sedan chairman, Bridge Street, 1851

Booth, Philip, boot & shoemaker, Bridge Street, 1851-52

Booth, Philip, shoemaker (& boot manufacturer 71), Silver Street, 1859-71

Booth, Philip, boot & shoe maker, 24 Broad Street, 1875-1903

Boswell, Frank, photographer, Church Street, 1875-80

Boswell, Frank, cabinet maker, 7 Sherborne Lane, 1903

Boulton, Horace, saddler, 50 Broad Street, 1903

Bowden, Frederick, King's Arms, Coombe Street, 1903

Bowditch, John, farmer, Pound Farm, Monkton Wyld, 1867-71

Bowditch, Robert, beer retailer, Mill Green, 1895

Bown, Mrs Ellen, apartments, 4 Bridge Street, 1903

Bowring, Martha, milliner & dressmaker, Broad Street, 1842-44

Bowring, John, hairdresser, Broad Street, 1839-44

Bowring, John, hairdresser, Bridge Street, 1848

Bowring, John, hairdresser, bridge Street, 1851

Bowring, John, hairdresser & perfumer, Bridge Street, 1852-55

Bowring, John, hairdresser & perfumer, Broad street, 1859

Bowritch, Amos, beer retailer, Mill Green, 1898

Bradford, Robert, carrier, Coombe Street, 1859

Bradford, Richard, farmer, Pound Street, 1867

Bradford & Sons Ltd, coal merchants, 67 Broad Street, 1903

Bradley, Thomas, lodging-house/apartments (& coxswain of lifeboat 1885), The Cobb, 1875-98

Bradley, Mrs Thomas, apartments, The Cobb, 1903

Bragg, James, grocer, 8 Bridge Street, 1903

Bridle, Mrs Elizabeth, lodging-house, Sherborne Lane, 1885

Brice, James, hairdresser, Broad Street, 1830

Brice, A, hairdresser, Middle Row, 1839-40

Brice, Ann, hairdresser, Marine Parade, 1842-44

Britton, Sergt-Major Frederick, instructor to No 3 Co., 1<sup>st</sup> Dorset Royal Garrison Artillery (Volunteers), Guildhall Cottage, Butter Market, 1903

Britton, Mrs Mary Elizabeth, fancy repository, 62 Church Street, 1903

Broad, Thomas, confectioner, Broad street, 1851

Brockway, James, Hunter's Lodge, Uplyme, 1851

Broom, Thomas, poulterer, Broad Street, 1880

Brown. Thomas, confectioner, Bridge Street, 1830

Brown, Thomas, lodging-house, Bridge Street, 1830

Brown, Edward, ironmonger, Broad Street, 1830-52

Brown, Edward, patent range manufacturer & general furnishing ironmonger, Broad Street, 1855

Brown, Edward & Son, patent range manufacturer & general furnishing ironmonger & gas engineers, proprietors of gas works, Broad Street, 1859

Brown Brothers, furnishing ironmongers, Broad Street, 1865

Brown, Charles, furnishing ironmonger, & cutlery, electroplated, tin, copper, japan goods & agricultural implement depot, Broad Street; London, 43 Cranbourn Street, Leicester Square, 1867

Brown Brothers, patentees & kitchen range manufacturers, engineers, iron & brass founders, gas, hot water & steam apparatus manufacturers, Iron works, Church Street; London depot, 43 Cranbourn Street, Leicester Square, 1867

Brown Brothers, ironmongers, engineers, iron & brass founders, works, proprietors of gas works, Church Street, 1871

Brown Brothers, patentees & kitchen range manufacturers, engineers, iron & brass founders, gas, hot water & steam apparatus manufacturers, furnishing ironmongers, cutlery, electro-plated, tin, copper, japan goods, & agricultural implement depot, Broad Street; works, Church Street; 470 Oxford Street, 1875

Brown, C & E, general furnishing ironmongers, gas & hot water fitters, bellhangers, Broad Street, 1885

Brown, John, wheelwright, Coombe Street, 1851

Brown, John, King's Arms, Coombe Street, 1851

Brown, John, Albert (55) & wheelwright, Coombe Street, 1852-55

Brown, Mrs Sarah, Albert, Coombe Street, 1859

Brown, Mrs Sarah, shopkeeper, Church Street, 1867-80

Brown, Joseph, fancy toy dealer, Broad Street, 1839-40

Brown, Joseph, china & glass dealer, & fancy repository, Broad Street, 1848

Brown, Joseph, china & glass warehouse, tea dealer, perfumer & stationer, Broad Street, 1851-55

Brown, Thomas, White Horse, Bridge Street, 1839-40

Brown, Thomas, confectioner, Broad Street, 1848-55

Brown, John Griffin, butcher, Broad Street, 1885

Brown, Mrs Anna, Victoria PH, Bridge Street, 1885-89

Brown, Charles, lodging-house, Broad Street, 1885-91

Brown, Mrs A M, apartments, 44 Broad Street, 1895-1903 (wife of Charles Brown)

Brown, John, cowkeeper, Church Street, 1898-1903

Brown, George A, grocer, 4 Bridge Street, 1903

Bryant, Sarah, milliner & dressmaker, Bridge Street, 1852

Budd, George, farrier, Church Street, 1848

Budd, Charles, ship broker and commission agent, The Cobb, 1855-65

Budd, Charles, ship owner, New Road, The Cobb, 1867

Budd, Charles, shipowner, Marine Parade, 1875-80

Budd, Miss Theresa, lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1885

Budden, George, Pilot Boat, Bridge Street, 1848

Burden, Mrs Mary Ann, lodging-house/apartments, Silverleigh, Silver Street, 1889-95

Burge, William Henry, grocer & agent for W & A Gilbey, wine & spirit merchants, Broad Street, 1880-89

Burge, Mrs Augusta M, grocer & agent for W & A Gilbey, wine & spirit merchants, 39 Broad Street, 1895-1903

Burrell, Peter Ashwell, solicitor, Church Street, 1823-28

Burt, Charles, beer retailer & mariner, The Cobb, 1875-80

Burt, Charles, seaman & publican, Standard Inn, The Cobb, 1881

Burt, Charles, beer retailer, The Cobb, 1885

Burt, Mrs Elizabeth & Miss Polly (Mary Ann), milliners, Butter Market, 1889 (widow & daughter of Charles Burt)

Burt, Miss Polly (Mary Ann), milliner, Butter Market, 1895

Bussell & Son, ship builders, The Cobb, 1823-28

Butcher, Ann, milliner & dressmaker, Uplyme, 1842-51

Butcher, John, wheelwright, (& carpenter 51), Uplyme, 1842-52

Caddy, William, builder, Coombe Street, 1898-1903

Cannicott, Robert, miller, Clapton Mill, 1839-40

Cannicott, Robert, brush maker, Broad Street, 1839-52

Cannicott, Robert, general dealer, brushmaker & toy warehouse, Broad Street, 1855-67

Cannicott, Mrs Amelia, general dealer, Broad Street, 1871

Cannicott, Albert, brush maker & toy warehouse, Broad Street, 1875-80

Carey, John, physician, Silver Street, 1848

Carey, John MD, Little Park, 1851-52

Carpenter, Thomas Coulson MD, surgeon, Broad Street, 1823-30

Carpenter, George, surgeon, Pound Street, 1842-44

Carter, James, lodging-house keeper, Cumberland Cottage, 1851

Carter, James, manager of Assembly reading rooms, Broad Street, 1855

Carter, James, dairyman, Charmouth Road, 1867-85

Carter, Thomas, nurseryman, Silver Street, 1885-95

Carter, Robert Walker, nurseryman, Silver Street, 1898

Case, William, baker, Silver Street, 1830-40

Case, William, baker (& confectioner 48-52), Broad Street, 1842-52

Case, William, lodging-house, Keble cottage, Sidmouth Road, 1885

Champ, Samuel, Grocer &c, Broad Street, 1823-30

Champ, Philip, linen draper, grocer & tea dealer, Church Street, 1830

Champ, John, linen draper, Broad Street, 1830

Champ, John, linen & woollen draper, silk mercer & stamp office, Broad Street, 1839-40

Champ, Samuel, lodging-house, Broad Street, 1830

Champ, Ann, lodging-house keeper, Broad Street, 1842-44

Channon, Daniel, tailor, Monmouth Street, 1839-44

Channon, Daniel, tobacconist & harbour master, Fish Market, 1848

Channon, David, tailor, Market Place, 1851

Channon & Pyne, milliners & dressmakers, Market Place, 1851

Channon, John, shopkeeper, Horse Street, 1865-67

Channon, Daniel, accountant, Horse Street, 1865-71

Channon, Daniel, lodging-house, Japonica House, Horse Street, 1875-80

Channon, Mrs Elizabeth, lodging-house/apartments, Horse Street, 1889-95 (widow of Daniel Channon)

Channon, Misses Myra & Mary, drapers, Silver Street, 1885 (daughters of Daniel & Elizabeth Channon)

Channon, Misses Myra & Mary, drapers, Bridge Street, 1889

Chapman, Alfred, insurance agent, grocer & dealer in wines, Broad Street, 1867-75

Chapman, Mrs Sarah, grocer & wine merchant, Broad Street, 1880-95 (widow of Alfred Chapman)

Chapman, Douglas, grocer, Broad Street, 1898-1903

Chappel, Henry, cooper, Coombe Street, 1830

Chappel, Henry, cooper & Angel, Horse Street, 1839-40

Chappel, Henry, linen draper, Coombe Street, 1880

Chappell, Frederick, apartments, Coombe Street, 1898-1903

Charles. James, Cobb Arms PH, The Cobb, 1895

Cheriton, Matthew, farmer, Hole Farm, 1875-80

Chick, Sarah Ellen (Mrs), straw bonnet maker, Butter Market, 1859

Chick, George, carpenter, 41 Church Street, 1898-1903

Chown, Edward, tailor, mercer etc, Broad Street, 1867

Chown, Mrs Sarah Arabella, lodging-house, Broad Street, 1867

Chubb, Daniel, mail cart contractor, Butter Market, 1859

Chubb, Daniel, New Commercial Inn & mail contractor, Broad Street, 1865

Chubb, Daniel, lodging-house, Pyne House, Broad Street, 1867

Chubb, Daniel, lodging-house, Broad Street, 1871

Chubb, Daniel, lodging-house, Coombe Street, 1875

Chubb, Mrs Amelia, lodging house, Marine Parade, 1880

Clark & Hook, milliners, Broad Street, 1823-28

Clarke, Walter, butcher, Church Street, 1839-40

Clarke, Walter, butcher, Bridge Street, 1842-48

Clark (Clarke), William, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Clark (Clarke), Walter, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Clarke, Walter, butcher, Uplyme, 1851-52

Clarke, Mrs Mary Ann, milliner &c, Mill Green, 1855

Clarke, Mrs Mary Ann, milliner & dressmaker, Broad Street, 1859

Clarke, Mrs Mary A, dressmaker, Coombe Street, 1865

Clarke, Mrs Mary Ann, milliner (& dressmaker 1867), Horse Street, 1867-71

Clarke, Thomas, lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1855-59

Clarke, George, beer retailer, The Cobb, 1865

Clarke, George, master mariner, Collingwood Cottage, The Cobb, 1875-80

Clarke, Mrs Jane, lodging-house, The Cobb, 1885-89

Clarke, George & Jane, lodging-house keepers, Westfield Villa, The Cobb, 1891 (census)

Clarke, Mrs Jane, apartments, No 3 Holme Lea Terrace, The Cobb, 1895-98

Clarke, John, butcher, Broad Street, 1885

Clarke, Robert, farmer/dairyman, Middle Mill, 1885-91

Clarke, Robert, farmer, Bridge Street, 1895

Clarke, Robert, farmer, Silver Street, 1898-1903

Clarke, Charles, grocer, Bridge Street, 1895

Clarke, Charles, insurance agent, Coombe Street, 1898

Clarke, Miss Ellen, ladies day school, Bridge House, 1895

Clarke, Mrs Ellen, ladies day school, Broad Street, 1898-1903

Clarke, Edward, apartments, 4 Marine Parade, 1898-1903

Clarke, Mrs Jane, shopkeeper, Horse Street. 1898

Clayton, George, collector of customs, Tivoli Villa. 1865

Cleal, James, The Cobb Hotel, 1839-40

Cleal, John, The Cobb Hotel, The Cobb, 1851

Cleal, James, beer retailer & carrier, Coombe street, 1855

Codrington, George, surgeon, Pound Street, 1839-40

Codrington, George F, surgeon, Sidmouth Road, 1848

Codrington, George Frederick, surgeon, registrar of births & deaths, Silver Street, 1851-52

Coleberd, Barrett, beer retailer, Church Street, 1851

Coleberd, Barnett, farmer, Church Street, 1867

Coles, Robert, Kings Arms, Coombe Street, 1848

Collins, Joseph, stonemason, Church Street, 1839-40 & 48-52

Collins, Joseph, plasterers & slaters, Church Street, 1842-44

Collins, William, mason, Church Street, 1848-71

Collins, Mrs Elizabeth, lodging-house, Church Street, 1875-80

Collins, Alfred, commission agent, Pound Street, 1885

Compton, Albert, grocer, Coombe Street, 1871

Compton, Albert, grocer & tea dealer, Horse Street, 1875-80

Cook, Thomas, shoemaker, Coombe Street, 1839

Cook, James, shoemaker, Monmouth Street, 1839-44

Cook, Samuel, Albert, Coombe Street, 1867

Cook, Job, jobbing gardener, Haye Lane, 1885

Cookney, John, tailor, Church Street, 1855

Cookney, John, tailor, Coombe Street, 1859, 67

Coombs (Coombes), John, wheelwright & carpenter, Silver Street, 1851-52

Coombe, John, wheelwright, Silver Street, 1867

Coombes, Edward John, grocer & registrar of births & deaths etc, Broad Street, 1898

Coombes, Edward John, grocer & registrar of births & deaths for Lyme sub-district & registrar of marriages for the Axminster sub-district of the Amminster Union, 6 Broad Street, 1903

Cooper, William, lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1865

Cooper, William, lodging-house, Monmouth Villa, New Road, The Cobb, 1867

Cooper, Mrs, lodging-house, New Road, The Cobb, 1871

Cooper, Mrs Martha, lodging-house/apartments, No 1 Holm Lea Terrace (Holme Lea), The Cobb, 1875-98

Cooper, Mrs Martha, apartments, 6 Cobb Road, 1903

Cooper, Henry Townsend, builder, Church Street, 1885

Cooper, Henry Townsend, builder, Silver Street, 1889

Cooper, Henry Townsend, builder, 37 Broad Street, 1895-1903

Cooper, Mrs Henry Townsend, apartments, 37 Broad Street, 1903

Cooper, Harry Joseph MA, MB, BCCantab, MRCS England & LRCP London, physician & surgeon,

Admiralty surgeon & agent, Belmont, Pound Street, 1898-1903

Cornick, Mrs Mary, milliner & straw bonnet maker, Church Street, 1867

Cornish, William G, New Inn, Broad Street, 1895-1903

Cosens & Co Lim (Weymouth, Bournemouth, Swanage & Torquay Steam Ship Co),

local agent, George Legg, 16 & 17 Silver Street, 1885-1903

Cousins, Thomas, laundry, Silver Street, 1895

Cox, Thomas, shoemaker, Coombe Street, 1840-44

Cox, Thomas, shoemaker, Monmouth Street, 1848

Cox, John, shopkeeper, Horse street, 1855

Cox, John, Shopkeeper, Bridge Street, 1859-67

Cox, Mrs, shopkeeper, Bridge Street, 1871

Cox, Thomas, coal & marine store dealer, Monmouth Street, 1867

Cox, Thomas, marine store dealer, Monmouth Street, 1871-89

Cox, Mrs Elizabeth, grocer & draper, Bridge Street, 1871-80

Cox, Harry, shopkeeper, Horse Street, 1865

Cox, Henry, shopkeeper & licensed to let pony & carriage, Horse Street, 1867

Cox, Henry, shopkeeper, Horse Street, 1871

Cox, Mrs Rosanna, shopkeeper, Horse Street, 1875

Cox, Henry, shopkeeper & licensed to let pony & carriage, Broad Street, 1875

Cox, Henry, fly proprietor, Church Street, 1880

Cox, James Eli, fishmonger & oyster dealer, Church Street, 1867

Cox, James Eli, fishmonger, Church Street, 1871-80

Cox, Mrs Mary, lodging house, Butter Market, 1880

Cox, Mrs Rosanna, shopkeeper, Horse Street, 1880

Cox, Thomas, shopkeeper, Church Street, 1880

Cox, Miss Emily, dressmaker, Silver Street, 1885

Crabb, Alfred, coxswain of lifeboat & local pilot, Church Street, 1889

Crabb, Alfred, coxswain of lifeboat & local pilot, Horse Street, 1895-98

Crabb, Alfred, local pilot, 24 Coombe Street, 1903

Crabb, Frederick, Red Lion PH, Church Street, 1898

Crabb, Frederick William, beer retailer, Silver Street, 1903

Crabb, Albert, Red Lion PH, Church Street, 1903 (also 1911)

Crabb, Mrs Ellen, dress maker, 15 Marine Parade, 1903

Crawson, Charles, lodging-house, The Cobb, 1889

Creese, John, Clock & watchmaker, Providence Place, 1851

Crees, William, excise officer, Sherborne Lane, 1848

Crees, Thomas S, watch & clock maker, Sherborne Lane, 1855-59

Crees, Thomas Sellick, clock & watchmaker & jeweller, Silver Street, 1865-89

Crees, Thomas Sellick Jnr, bookbinder, Silver Street, 1885

Crigle, John MB, surgeon, Holmlea Villa, 1880

Crocker, John Waters, principal coast officer, The Cobb, 1885

Cross, Robert, shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1855

Cuff, Thomas, shopkeeper, Church Street, 1875

Cullman & Edwards, boys' school, Broad Street, 1880

Curtis, Joseph, slater, Monmouth Street, 1839-44

Curtis, Joseph, slater, Mill Lane, 1848

Curtis, Joseph, plasterer & slater, Lynch, 1851-52

Curtis, John, hairdresser, Bridge Street, 1842-44

Curtis, William & Sons, fish merchants, Long Entry, 1885-1903

Curtis, Miss Mary Elizabeth, lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1889

Curtis, Samuel, fish dealer, Butter Market, 1885

Curtis, Samuel, fish dealer, Bridge Street, 1889-95

Curtis, Samuel, fish dealer, Church Street, 1898

Curtis, Samuel, fish dealer, 45 Church Street, 1903

Curtis, Mrs Mary, appartments, Tudor House, Butter Market, 1895

Curtis, Miss Mary, apartments, Bow House, Broad Street, 1898

Curtis, Sidney, fishmonger, Bridge Street, 1898

Curtis, Sidney, fishmonger, 1 Broad Street, 1903

Curtis, Miss Emily, apartments, 3 Marine Parade, 1903

Curtis, Miss Mary, apartments, Marine Parade, 1903

Cuvee, Madame E, milliner & fancy draper, Broad Street, 1895

Darby, James, brewer, Broad Street, 1830

Darby, James, plumber & glazier, Broad Street, 1823-52

Darby, James, plumber, Broad Street, 1848-71

Darby, Edith, lodging-house keeper, Broad Street, 1851

Darby, Mrs Louisa, furnished apartments, Spring cottage, 1885

Darby, William Charles, china & glass dealer & fancy repository, 8 Broad Street, 1889-1903

Dare, Mary Ann, Crown Inn, Coombe Street, 1865

Dare, Mrs, Crown Inn, Broad? Street, 1871

Dare, William, Crown Inn, Coombe Street, 1871

Dare, Mrs Mary Ann, Crown Inn, Coombe Street, 1875-80

Davey, Daniel, baker & confectioner, Silver Street, 1839-40

Davey, David, baker & confectioner, Silver Street, 1842-55

Davey, Benjamin, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Davey, William, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Davey, John, baker, Uplyme, 1851

Davey, John, confectioner, Broad Street, 1855-89

Davey, Miss Eliza, milliner, Silver Street, 1885

Davie, Selina, academies (day), Coombe Street, 1823-28

Davie, John Sims, malster/brewer, Coombe Street, 1823-44

Davy, James, linen draper, hosier & stamp office, Broad Street, 1859

Davy, William A, beer retailer, Uplyme, 1851

Dean, Charles, blacksmith, Uplyme, 1830-40

Dean, Richard, blacksmith, Uplyme, 1842-52

Dean, Mrs Elizabeth, lodging-house, Parade, 1859-65

Dean, William, Lodging-house, Parade Villa, The Cobb, 1875-80

Dean, Mrs Elizabeth, lodging-house keeper, Parade Villa, 1891 (widow of William Dean – census)

Dean, Mrs Mary, lodging-house, The Cobb, 1889-95 (?)

Dean, Mrs Elizabeth, apartments, The Cobb, 1898

Dean, Mrs Elizabeth, apartments, 14 Marine Parade, 1903

Denning, Malache, shopkeeper, Coombe Street, 1859

Derry, Henry, boot & shoemaker, Silver Street, 1830-55

Dimon, William, grocer & baker, Mill Green, 1851-59

Dimon, William, baker, Mill Green, 1865-71 (GD - W Dimon, baker, died Aug 24, 1869)

Dimon, Mrs Frances Mary, baker, Mill Green, 1875

Dinning, William, shopkeeper, Church Street, 1859

Dixon, Richard, shipowner, The Cobb, 1859-65

Dixon, Richard, shipowner, Marine House, New Road, 1867-71

Dollin, James, Ship Inn, Coombe Street, 1848

Dollin, James, George, Horse Street, 1851

Dollin, Eli, tailor, Broad Street, 1848-51

Dollin, Eli, tailor, Coombe Street, 1852-65

Dollin, Eli, tailor & shipowner, Coombe Street, 1867

Dollin, Eli, shipowner, Coombe Street, 1871

Dollin, Eli, coal merchant, Coombe Street, 1875-85

Dollin, Eli, coal merchant & lodging-house/apartments, The Cobb, 1889-98

Dollin, Frederick, coal merchant, The Cobb, 1871

Dollin, Frederick, shipowner, The Cobb, 1875-80

Dollin, Frederick, shipowner, Coombe Street, 1885-95

Dollin, James, dealer in fossils, Bridge Street, 1875-89

Dollin, Ernest, coal merchant, The Cobb, 1898

Dollin, Ernest, coal merchant, 21 Marine Parade, 1903

Dolphin, Mrs Mary Ann, shopkeeper, Silver Street, 1875-80

Dorset 1st Volunteer Artillery, Capt R F Hay, commanding, 1875

Dorset 1st Volunteer Artillery, Capt Edwin Wallis, commanding, 1880

Dorset 1st Volunteer Artillery, A T M Bond, Lieut commanding, 1898

Dorsetshire (1st) Royal Garrison Artillery (volunteers), No 3 Co. Capt A T M Bond;

Sergt-Major Fredk Britton, drill instructor, Drill Hall, Butter Market, 1903

Douse, Mrs Emily, dressmaker, Church Street, 1898-1903

Doutch, John, The Dove, Silver Street, 1840

Doutch, Mrs Mary, Dove Tavern, Silver Street, 1848-71

Down, John, carpenter & wheelwright, Church Street, 1871-85

Down, Mrs Elizabeth Ellen, apartments, The Cobb, 1898-1903

Down, William, insurance agent, 2 Bond Street, 1903

Drake, Misses Elizabeth & Emily, apartments, 10 Cobb Road, 1903

Draper, George, cowkeeper, Slopes, 1903

Dray, Mrs Sarah, grocer, Coombe Street, 1848

Dray, Sarah, grocery & sundries, Monmouth Street, 1851

Drayton, John, wine, spirit & timber merchants, Broad Street, 1823-30

Drayton & Son, Bridport Branch Bank, wine, spirit & timber merchants & shipowners, Broad St, 1839-40

Drayton, John & Son, timber & slate merchants, & wine & spirit merchants, Broad Street, 1842-44

Drayton & Son, importers of wines & spirits, timber & deals, house agents,

& agents for West of England fire & life assurance, Broad Street, 1848

Drayton, John, timber & slate, general & wine & spirit merchant, land & house agent & treasurer

to Trustees of Turnpikes Savings' Bank, Broad Street, 1851-52

Drayton & Hinton, merchants, importers of wines & spirits, & timber & slate merchants, Broad St, 1855-65

Drayton & Hinton, merchants, shipowners & importers of wines & spirits, Broad Street, 1867

Drew, Thomas John, apartments, Spring Cottage, Uplyme Road, 1898-1903

Drower, James, beer retailer & shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1855

Drower, James, carpenter, Butter Market, 1875-80

Dunn, Mrs Ellen, laundress, Sherborne Lane, 1867-75

Dunn, Mrs Ellen, laundress, Butter market, 1880

Dunn, Mrs Emily, lodging-house/apartments & dressmaker, Malabar House, 8 Church Street, 1885-1903

Dunsford, Mrs Sophia (Sophey), lodging-house, The Cobb, 1885-89

Dunster, David, carpenter & builder, Broad Street, 1823-30

Dunster, David, builder, Silver Street, 1839-44

Dunster, Daniel, bookseller, stationer, printer, pianoforte warehouse & house agent, (depository for Society for promoting Christian Knowledge, 48), (& circulating library 51), Broad Street, 1839-55

Dunster, Daniel, bookseller, stationer, printer & house agent, Broad Street, 1859

Dunster, Frederick, bookseller, stationer & newsagent, Broad Street, 1865

Dunster, Frederick, book, print & music seller, bookbinder, stationer, newsagent, circulating library, printer, berlin wool & fancy repository, pianoforte warehouse, publisher of the views and guide to

Lyme & the Landslip, agent for Lyme Telegraph Company & Horniman's teas, Broad Street, 1867

Dunster, Frederick, book, print & music seller, stationer, circulating library, printer, Berlin wool & fancy repository, pianoforte warehouse, (agent for Horniman's tea 75),

(deputy registrar of births & marriages, Axminster Union 89), Broad Street, 1871-89

Dunster, Frederick, bookseller & fancy repository & registrar of births, deaths & marriages, Broad Street, 1895

Dunster, Frederick, bookseller & fancy repository, Broad Street, 1898-1903

Dunster, Abraham, cook & baker, Broad Street, 1867-75

Dyke & Pittman, tailors & drapers, Bridge Street, 1839-40

Dyke, Charles, tailor & linen drapers, Bridge Street, 1842-52

Dyke, Charles, tailor & woollen draper (& mercer & hat warehouse 67), Broad Street, 1855-80

East, Thomas, grocery & sundries, Sherborne Lane, 1851

Edwards & Co, ironmongers & grocers, Broad Street, 1823-28

Edwards, Frederick & Co, ironmongers, grocers & tea dealers, Broad Street, 1830

Edwards, George, lodging-house keeper, The Cobb, 1839-40

Edwards, James, timber merchant, Broad Street, 1830

Edwards, James, linen drapers, Church Street, 1823-28

Edwards, James, linen drapers, Broad Street, 1830

Edwards, James, John & Co, linen & woollen drapers, Broad Street, 1839-40

Edwards, James, lodging-house keeper, Cliff Villa, 1830-44

Edwards, Richard, shoemaker, Monmouth Street, 1839-48

Edwards, William, miller, Uplyme, 1839-51

Edwards, Mary Ann Leader, miller, Uplyme, 1852

Edwards, Zachary, boys' school, Broad Street, 1885

Ellett, William, shoemaker & coffee rooms, Coombe Street, 1867

Ellett, William, Temperance Hotel, Church Street, 1871

Ellett, William, shoemaker & lodging-house, Church Street, 1875

Elliott, John, shopkeeper, Horse Street, 1855

Elworthy, Gerald, carpenter, builder & undertaker, George's Square, 1903

Emmett, George Alfred & Sons, ironmongers, 4 Silver Street, 1903

England, William, academy & school, Church Street, 1830

England, Glyde & Co, woollen manufacturers, Mill Green, 1830

England, Mary, Baker &c, Coombe Street, 1823-28

England, Mrs Mary, baker &c, Horse/Coombe Street, 1830-55

England, Joseph, bath proprietor, bookseller, stationer & public library, Marine Parade, 1839-40

England, Samuel, hot & cold baths, Marine Parade, 1842-44

England, Samuel, lodging-house keeper, The Cobb, 1830-44

England, Jane, booksellers, stationers &c, Marine Parade, 1842-44

England, Mrs Mary, bath proprietor, Parade, 1848

England, Jane, hot & cold baths, Marine Parade, 1851-52

England, Jane, lodging-house keeper, Marine Parade, 1851

England, Misses, boarding & day school, (ladies seminary 1865), Marine Parade, 1855-71

England, Miss Jane, boarding & day school, Marine Parade, 1875-80

England, Miss Jane, lodging-house/apartments, Marine Parade, 1885-98

England, Samuel, coal merchant, Parade, 1848

England, Samuel, coal merchant, Marine Parade, 1875-80

England, Selina (Mrs), baker, Horse Street, 1859

Ensor, Edward & Co, linen draper, Broad Street, 1842-44

Eveleigh, George, farmer, Middle Mill, 1875-80

Eveleigh, George, farmer, Haye Farm, 1885-1903

Eveleigh, Thomas, farmer, Middle Mill, 1895

Every, John, lodging-house, Broad Street, 1830

Eyers, Silvester, beer retailer, Horse Street, 1839-44

Eyers, Silvester, postman, Church Street, 1852

Farmar, William, farmer, Hole Farm, 1848

Farnham, James, clock & watchmaker & jeweller, Broad Street, 1848-75

Farnham Brothers, clock makers, Broad Street, 1880

Farnham, James Wheller, watch maker, 61 Broad Street, 1885-1903

Farnham, William Notting, jeweller & gun smith, Broad Street, 1885-95

Farnham, William Notting, jeweller, Broad Street, 1898-1903

Farrant, John, bootmaker, Butter Market, 1848

Farrant, Samuel, farmer, Pound Street, 1851

Farrant, William, Shopkeeper &c, Mill Green, 1852

Fewings, John, The Cobb Arms, The Cobb, 1859

Field, Arthur, bookseller, stationer, bookbinder, printer & circulating library, Broad Street, 1875

Fisher, Hugh Evans, solicitor, Pound Street, 1823-28

Flambert, Hugh G, coal merchant, 51 Broad Street, 1903

Flight, Thomas & Josiah, Linen drapers, Broad Street, 1823-28

Flood, Thomas, Hunter's Arms, Uplyme, 1839

Flood, John, butcher, Silver Street, 1859

Flood, John, butcher, Broad Street, 1865-71

Follett, Robert, Mason's Arms, Silver Street, 1839-40

Follett, Robert, gardener, Silver Street, 1848-59

Foss, Richard, Golden Lion Hotel, Broad Street, 1848

Foss, William, Three Cups Hotel & inland revenue office, Broad Street, 1851

Foss, Louisa & Mary, milliners & dressmakers, Broad Street, 1851-52

Fost, William, hairdresser, Broad Street, 1865

Foulkes, Richard, Royal Lion Hotel, Broad Street, 1865

Foulkes, Richard, Royal Lion family & commercial hotel & boarding house, wine & spirit merchant, posting house & omnibus proprietor, & agent for Allsopp's pale ale, Broad Street, 1867

Fowler, Richard, boot & shoemaker, Bridge Street, 1823-28

Fowler, George, poulterer, Broad Street, 1839-40

Fowler, Job & Eli, lime burners, Uplyme, 1839-44

Fowler, Job & Son, farmer & lime burner, Uplyme, 1851

Fowler, Simeon, lime burner, Uplyme, 1852

Fowler, Job Hezekiah, shopkeeper, Uplyme, 1842-52

Fowler, Richard, auctioneer, Coombe Street, 1830

Fowler, Richard, Golden Hart & Excise office & auctioneer, Church Street, 1839-40

Fowler, Richard, auctioneer, Church Street, 1842-44

Fowler, John, Mason's Arms, & gardener, Silver Street, 1848

Fowler, John, Mason's Arms & licensed to let horses & gigs, Silver Street, 1851-59

Fowler, Eli, coal merchant & sailmaker, The Cobb, 1851-52

Fowler, Eli, merchant & shipowner, The Cobb, 1855-59

Fowler, Eli, shipowner, coal, culm & general merchant, sailmaker & boat builder, The Cobb, 1865

Fowler, John, coal merchant, The Cobb, 1859

Fowler, John, coal & culm merchant, & custom agent, The Cobb, 1867

Fowler, William, chimney sweeper, Church Street, 1875-95

Fowler, Arthur, chimney sweeper, 8 Church Street, 1898-1903

Fowler, James, shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1898-1903

Fowler, Mrs Frances, Coffee House, 4 Coombe Street, 1911

Fox, Elizabeth, lodging-house keeper, The Cobb, 1830-44

Fox, William, sailmaker, The Cobb, 1823-40

Foxwell, Edward, plumber, Church Street, 1871

Foxwell, Edward, plumber & glazier, Bridge Street, 1875-80

Foxwell, Edward, plumber, glazier, painter & paper-hanger, & manager of water works, Bridge Street, 1885

Foxwell, H & T, plumbers, glaziers, painters & paper-hangers, Bridge Street, 1889

Foxwell, H & T, plumbers, glaziers, painters, Broadway House, 1895-1903

Freeman, John, baker, Bridge Street, 1839-40

Freeman, John, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Freeman, Sarah (Miss), dressmaker, Church Street, 1855-59

Freeman, Thomas, carpenter, Church Street, 1855

French, Mrs Joan, laundress, Mill Green, 1855-59

French, Mrs Martha, laundress, Mill Green, 1865-71

French, Mrs Mary Ann, laundress, Mill Green, 1875

French, William, carpenter & joiner, Mill Green, 1855-75

French, John, Crown PH, Coombe Street, 1903

Friend, John Walter, watchmaker, Fishmarket, 1839-40

Friend, John Walter, clock & watchmaker, Market Place, 1842-44

Froom, W J & Son, coal merchants, Coombe Street, 1903

Frost, William, hairdresser (& greengrocer 1867), Broad Street, 1867-71

Frost, William, hairdresser, Coombe Street, 1875

Fry, Alfred, Three Cups Hotel, Broad Street, 1895-98

Fryer, teacher (music), Broad Street, 1830

Fudge, John, butcher, Broad Street, 1830

Fudge, John Jnr, butcher, Broad Street, 1830

Fudge, Betty, butcher, Broad Street, 1839-44

Fudge, Robert & John, farmers, Uplyme, 1851

Fudge, Richard, baker & confectioner, Monmouth Street, 1851-55

Fudge, Richard, baker & confectioner, Broad Street, 1859-67

Gage, Thomas, beer retailer (& collector of tolls 55), (& butcher 59-67), Sherborne Lane, 1848-67

Gage, Thomas, butcher, Sherborne lane, 1871

Gage. Thomas, fish dealer, Sherborne Lane, 1875-80

Gage, John, Crown PH, Coombe Street, 1885

Gaitch, Thomas, shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1859-89

Gaitch, Samuel, stone mason, Uplyme, 1842-52

Gaitch, George, stone mason, Sherborne Lane, 1851-52

Gaitch, Mrs Sarah, shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1895

Gaitch, Mrs Martha, shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1898

Gale, Mary Ann (Miss), milliner, Bell Cliff, Broad Street, 1859

Gale, William, licensed to let horses & phaetons, Silver Street, 1855-65

Gale, William, licensed to let horses & phaetons, & beer retailer, Silver Street, 1867

Gale, Mrs Ann, beer retailer, Silver Street, 1871

Gale, Mrs Ann, beer retailer & licensed to let horses & phaetons, Silver Street, 1875-80

Game, William & Thomas, farmers, Uplyme, 1851

Game, William, beer retailer, Coombe Street, 1859

Game, William, Beer retailer & pork butcher, Coombe Street, 1865

Game, William, dealer in bacon & potatoes, Coombe Street, 1867

Game, William, shopkeeper (butcher & greengrocer 75), Coombe Street, 1871-75

Game, William, pork butcher, Coombe Street, 1885-1903

Game, Miss Louisa, lodging-house, Monmouth Street, 1875-80

Gardner, George, grocery & sundries, Uplyme, 1851

Gardner, William, beer retailer, Coombe Street. 1859

Gardner, William, George Inn, Horse Street, 1865

Gardner, William, George Inn, Coombe Street, 1867

Gardner, John, boot & shoemaker, Church Street, 1889-1903

Garland, Joseph, Albert, Coombe Street, 1851

Garrod, Mrs Maria, The Cups Hotel & posting establishment, Broad Street, 1903

Gas & Range Company (W R Wallis propr), Church Street, 1903

Gate, Thomas, shopkeeper, Sherborne Lane, 1855

Gay, John, cooper, Uplyme, 1842-52

Gay, John, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Gay, Samuel, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Gay, Thornhill, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Gay, Charles, boot & shoemaker, Coombe/Horse Street, 1848-52

Gear, James, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

German, John, tin-plate worker, Horse Street, 1823-28

German, John, ironmonger, Butter Market, 1830

German, John, ironmonger & tin-plate worker, Bridge Street, 1839-40

German, John, ironmonger, Bridge Street, 1842-52

German, John, tinman, Butter Market, 1842-44

German, John, grocer & ironmonger, Butter Market, 1848

German, John, tinman, Bridge Street, 1851-52

German, John, grocery & sundries, Butter Market, 1851

German, John, shopkeeper, Bridge Street, 1852

German, Elizabeth (Mrs), general shopkeeper, Bridge Street, 1855

Gerrard, John, butcher, Monmouth Street, 1830-44

Gerrard, Thomas, butcher, Broad street, 1842-44

Gibbs, William, beer retailer (& shipowner 40-44), Sherborne Lane, 1839-52

Gibbs, John, fish dealer, The Cobb, 1875

Gibbs, John, master mariner, The Cobb, 1880-95

Gibbs, John, master mariner, Horse Street/27 Coombe Street, 1898-1903

Gibbs, Mrs Alice, apartments, Horse Street/Coombe Street, 1898-1903

Glyde, Ensor & Co, woollen manufacturers, 1839-40

Glyde, William & Co, woollen manufacturers, Mill Green, 1842-44

Goddard, Theophilus Bartlett, wine & spirit merchants (& timber & slate merchants 48-52),

treasurer to Corporation of Lyme, & agent to the Norwich Union fire & life assurance 48), Broad Street, 1842-52

Goldsworthy, Job, shopkeeper, Monmouth Street, 1875

Goldsworthy, Job, shopkeeper, Church Street, 1880

Goldsworthy, Mrs Grace, shopkeeper, 9 Monmouth Street, 1885-1903

Goldsworthy, George, apartments, Rose Cottage, Silver Street, 1898

Goldsworthy, Thomas, chimney sweeper, Silver Street, 1898

Gordge, Francis, painter & grocer, Butter Market, 1848

Gordge, Francis, George Inn, Horse Street, 1855

Gordge, Miss Ann, dressmaker, Little Bow House, Broad Street, 1889-95

Goulton, Elizabeth, Dressmaker, Middle Row, Broad Street, 1839-44

Goulton, Mrs Elizabeth, Dressmaker, Bridge Street, 1848-51

Govier, George, blacksmith, Broad Street, 1865-1903

Govis, John & Son, cabinet makers, Pound Street, 1839-44

Govis, William, cabinet maker, Broad Street, 1839-40

Govis, William, cabinet maker & upholsterer, Middle Row, 1842-44

Grabham, Thomas, greengrocer, Monmouth Street, 1885

Gratton, Edward & William, farmers, Uplyme, 1851

Gratton, William, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Gratton, Edmund, farmer, Middle Mill farm, 1855-67

Grattan (Gratton), William, beer retailer, hot/cold baths, & licensed to let horse & carriage, Butter Market, 1867

Gratton, William, horses to let, Butter Market, 1871

Gratton, William George, farmer/cowkeeper, Slopes, 1885-98

Greenfield, Edward, farmer, High Knapps, 1867-71

Grove, John, Royal Lion Hotel & posting house, Broad Street, 1871

Grove, John, Royal Lion family & commercial hotel, boarding house & posting house,

& inland revenue office, Broad Street, 1875

Grove, John, Royal Lion Hotel, Broad Street, 1880-1903

Gummer, George, beer retailer, Coombe Street, 1842-44

Gundry & Co, maltsters &c, Horse street, 1855-59

Gundry, Downe & Co, ale stores, Horse Street, 1865

Gunner, Joseph, stone mason, Coombe Street, 1823-28

Gush, Robert, Ship Inn, Horse Street, 1851-67

Gush, Mrs Ann, Ship Inn, Horse Street, 1871-75

Gush, John, King's Arms, Coombe Street, 1867-75

Gush, Mrs Jane, King's Arms PH, Coombe Street, 1880-89

Gush, Miss Emma, linen & woollen draper, Coombe Street, 1875

Gush, Mrs Sarah, lace manufacturer (Honiton lace maker), The Cobb, 1871-80

Gush, Robert, fish dealer, Bridge Street, 1867-71

Gush, George Henry, fish dealer, Butter Market, 1885-89

Gush, George Henry, beer retailer, Coombe Street, 1895-98

Gush, Albert, fishmonger, 11 Bridge Street, 1903

Gush, John, tailor, 11 Bridge Street, 1903

Hains, Thomas George, butcher, Coombe Street, 1903

Hallett, John, lodging-house, Butter Market, 1830

Hallett, John, watchmaker, Church Street, 1823-44

Hallett, James, shopkeeper, Silver Street, 1839-48

Hallett, James, gardener, Pound Lane, 1852

Hallett, James, cowkeeper, Godfrey Cottage, Silver Street, 1867

Hallett, James, cowkeeper, Silver Street, 1871

Hallett, James, milk dealer, Pound Lane, 1889-98

Hallett, Frederick, lodging-house, Broad Street, 1865

Hallett, Job, beer retailer (& shopkeeper 1867), Mill Green, 1865-67

Hallett, Mrs Sarah, beer retailer, Mill Green, 1871-75

Hallett, William, Trinity Pilot, The Cobb, 1867

Hallett, William, Trinity pilot, No 2 Holmlea Terrace, The Cobb, 1871-80

Hallett, Bernard, working cutler, Silver Street, 1885-89

Hallett, Frederick Henry, boot maker, Sherborne Lane, 1889-1903

Hallett, Mrs Jane, lodging-house/apartments, The Cobb, 1885-95

Hallett, Mrs Jane, lodging-house/apartments, 6 Ozone Terrace, 1903

Hallett, John, greengrocer, Broad Street, 1889

Hallett, Richard, thatcher, Mill Green, 1898-1903

Hallett, Barnett, cutler, 21 Church Street, 1903

Hallett, Miss Emma, milliner, 50 Silver Street, 1903

Hallett, Miss Selina, milk dealer, Pound Road, 1903

Ham, Thomas, bookseller & printer &c, Broad Street, 1830

Harding, John, butcher, Butter Market, 1848-51

Harding, John, butcher, Bridge Street, 1852-59

Harding, John, butcher & licensed to deal in game, Bridge Street, 1865

Harding, John, butcher & assessor & collector of Queen's taxes, Bridge Street, 1867-75

Harding, John, butcher, Bridge Street, 1880

Harding, John, parish clerk, Bridge Street, 1885-89

Harding, William, boot & shoemaker, Bridge Street, 1855-65

Hardy, Frank, builder, 6 Silver Street, 1898-1903

Hardy, Walter, sec to the Gas & Range Co., 5 Silver Street, 1903

Harris, Ann, shopkeeper &c, Broad Street, 1830

Harris, William, chimney sweep, Church Street, 1851

Harris, Charles, chimney sweeper, Church Street, 1855-59

Harris, John, boot maker, Church Street, 1885

Harris, Samuel, butcher, 65 Broad Street, 1889-1903

Harry, Courtenay, draper, Broad Street, 1885

Hart, William, apartments, 27 Marine Parade, 1903

Harvey, Elizabeth & Mary, linen draper, Coombe Street, 1823-30

Harvey, Samuel, lodging-house keeper, The Cobb, 1839-40

Harvey, James, grocer & tea dealer, Broad Street, 1848-55

Harvey, Elizabeth (Mrs), grocer, Broad Street, 1859

Harvey, George, brewer, Coombe Street, 1830

Harvey, George, Victoria, Coombe Street, 1839-40

Harvey, Mrs Mary, Victoria, Coombe Street, 1848-59

Hawker, Robert, New Inn, Broad Street, 1859

Hawker, Robert, beer retailer, & licensed to let horses &c, the public baths, Bridge Street, 1865

Hawker, Robert, New Inn, licensed to let horses & carriages & bath chair proprietor, Broad Street, 1867

Hawker, Robert, licensed to let horses & carriages & bath chair proprietor, The Cobb Road, 1871

Hawker, Robert, fly proprietor & lodging-house, Westfield Villa, The Cobb, 1875

Hawker, Robert, fly proprietor & lodging-house, Church Street, 1880

Hawker, Robert, cab proprietor, Church Street, 1885

Hawker, Frederick, Red Lion Inn, Church Street, 1871

Hawker, Frederick, beer retailer, Church Street, 1875

Hawker, Frederick, beer retailer, Broad Street, 1880

Hawker, Frederick, cab proprietor, Broad Street, 1889

Hawker, Frederick, Victoria Inn & cab proprietor, Coombe Street, 1895

Hawker, Frederick, cab proprietor, Butter Market, 1898

Hawker, Frederick, cab proprietor, 6 Bridge Street, 1903

Hay, Richard francis, physician & surgeon, Broad Street, 1871-75

Hayball, Robert, gunsmith & Millwright, Uplyme, 1839-44

Hayball, Robert, beer retailer, Uplyme, 1842-44

Haycraft & Co, lime merchants, The Cobb, 1880-85

Haycraft & Co, lime & stone merchants, The Cobb, 1889-98

Hayward, Richard, assistant examining custom house officer, The Cobb, 1867-71

Hellyer (Hellier), Gabriel, beer retailer, (Blackdog 51) Uplyme, 1842-52

Hellier, George, Hotel, The Cobb, 1855

Henley, Henry, dispensing chemist, Broad Street, 1848-95

Henley, George, pharmaceutical chemist, 45 Broad Street, 1898-1903

Hervey, John, grocer, Broad Street, 1842-44

Hetherington, Mrs Mary, Three Cups Commercial Inn & Posting-House, Broad Street, 1839-48

Hibbs, George, Pilot Boat Inn, Bridge Street, 1865-80

Hicks, Henry, tin-plate worker, Church Street, 1851

Hicks, Thomas, beer retailer, The Cobb, 1898

Hill, John, merchant, Fairfield House, 1855-59

Hill, Mark, laundry, Mill Green, 1895-1903

Hillman, Robert & Henry Franks Waring, solicitors, Broad Street, 1839-40

Hillman, Robert, solicitor, master extraordinary in chancery, and commissioner for taking deeds of acknowledgement from married women, Broad Street, 1839-40

Hillman, Robert, solicitor, Grove, 1842-52

Hillman, Robert, solicitor, Bridge Street, 1848

Hillman, Robert, solicitor, commissioner for taking acknowledgements in chancery & all the law courts, and advocate in the Devonshire county courts, The Grove, 1855-59

Hillman & Hillman, solicitors, The Grove, 1865

Hillman, Robert, solicitor, clerk to Burial Board, Perpetual Commissioner, and Commissioner in all the Courts, The Grove, 1865

Hillman, Robert, solicitor, Commissioner to administer oaths in chancery and all law courts and commissioner for taking acknowledgements of married women, Sidmouth Road, 1867-71

Hillman, Robert William, solicitor, clerk to Harbour Trustees, registrar of the Civil Court of Record, clerk to Lyme Improvement Commissioners, The Grove, 1865

Hillman, Robert William, solicitor, clerk to the Harbour trustees & clerk to the Lyme Regis Improvement commissioners, Pound Street, 1867

Hillman, Robert William, solicitor, clerk to the Borough Magistrates, clerk to the Magistrates for the division of Axminster, & clerk to the Turnpike Trustees, clerk to the Harbour Trustees & clerk to the Lyme Regis Improvement Commissioners, Church Street, 1871

Hillman, Robert William, solicitor, commissioner to administer oaths in the court of chancery, clerk to the turnpike trustees, clerk to the borough magistrates, town clerk, clerk to the harbour trustees & registrar of the borough court of record, Bridge Street, 1875

Hillman, Robert William, solicitor, commissioner to administer oaths, clerk to the borough magistrates, town clerk and registrar fo the borough court of record, Broad Street, 1880-85

Hillman, Robert William, solicitor & clerk to the borough magistrates, Broad Street, 1889-95

Hillman & Bond, solicitors, 10 Broad Street, 1898-1903

Hingeston, John, surgeon, Broad Street, 1823-30

Hingeston, William, surgeon, Pound Street, 1830-52

Hingeston, William MRCS LSA, surgeon, Sidmouth Road, 1867-80

Hingeston, William, surgeon, admiralty surgeon & agent and certifying factory surgeon, Pound Street, 1885

Hingeston, John Jnr, solicitor, Broad Street, 1823-30

Hingeston, George, solicitor, Pound Street, 1839-40

Hingeston, George, solicitor, Tivoli Villa, 1842-44

Hingeston, George, solicitor, & clerk to Lyme Regis turnpike trust, & clerk to borough magistrates, Pound Street, 1848

Hingeston, George T, solicitor & town clerk, Broad Street, 1851

Hingeston, George, solicitor, The Cobb, 1852

Hingeston, George, solicitor, town clerk, clerk to the borough magistrates, (and to the turnpike trustees 55-59), office Butter Market. 1855-65

Hingeston, George, solicitor, town clerk, clerk to the borough magistrates & the magistrates of the division of Axminster & clerk to the turnpike trustees; office, Butter Market, 1867

Hinton, Frederick, solicitor and commissioner to adminster oaths in the court of chancery & all the law courts, also to take affidavits in the supreme courts of Port Philip, and to take acknowledgements of married women to property in that colony, Broad Street, 1855

Hinton, Frederick, solicitor and commissioner to adminster oaths in the court of chancery & all the law courts, (& commissioner for taking acknowledgements of married women 67-71),

(& clerk to the Lyme Regis Improvement commissioners 75), Broad Street, 1859-75

Hiscott, Ann, grocer etc, Broad Street, 1839-40

Hiscott (Hisscott), Judith, lodging-house keeper, Broad Street, 1830-44

Hiscott, Mrs Ann, shopkeeper & grocer, Silver Street, 1848-55

Hitch, Thomas Steel, police sargeant, Horse Street, 1871

Hoare, James, cooper, George's Court, 1823-28

Hoare, John, tailor & draper, Broad Street, 1823-28

Hoare, John, tailor & draper, Pound Street, 1830-44

Hoare, John, boot & shoemaker, Uplyme, 1842-52

Hoare, Elias, shoemaker, Broad Street, 1839-51

Hoare, Hannah, dressmaker & milliner, Broad Street, 1852

Hoare, Miss Hannah, dressmaker, Bell Cliff, Broad Street, 1859-67

Hoare, Elizabeth (Mrs), lodging-house, Bell Cliff, Broad Street, 1859

Hoare, Elias, boot & shoemaker, Marine Parade, 1852-71

Hoare, Thomas, mason, Pound Street, 1867

Hoare, Thomas, mason, Coombe Street, 1875-80

Hoare, Thomas, butcher, Church Street, 1871

Hoare, Miss Ann, poulterer & game dealer, Broad Street, 1875

Hoare, Elias, lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1875

Hoare, Mrs Frances, lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1885

Hoare, Miss Ann, lodging-house/apartments, 2 Marine Parade, 1885-1903

Hoare, Miss Jane, lodging-house/apartments, Marine Parade, 1880-95

Hoare, Miss Emma, apartments, 12 Marine Parade, 1898-1903

Hoare, Charles Marks, apartments, The Cobb, 1898

Hockey, George, blacksmith, Uplyme, 1842-51

Hockey, Thomas, Shopkeeper & wardrobe dealer, Coombe Street, 1867

Hocking, Elizabeth, milliner & dressmaker, Bridge Street, 1830

Hodder, Lionel, lodging-house keeper, The Cobb, 1851

Hodder, Lionel, lodging-house, Parade, 1859

Hodder, John, pleasure boat keeper/builder, The Cobb, 1859-85

Hodder, Frederick, pleasure boat builder, The Cobb, 1889-1903

Hodder, Robert, Robert, harbour master, 1865

Hodder, Robert, ship owner, lodging-house & harbour master, New Road, The Cobb, 1867

Hodder, Robert, lodging-house & harbour master, The Cobb, 1871

Hodder, Robert, collector of harbour dues & harbour master, Horse Street, 1875-80

Hodder, Robert, collector of harbour dues & harbour master, The Cobb, 1885

Hodder, Robert, lodging-house, No 3 Holmlea Terrace, The Cobb, 1889

Hodder, George, apartments, The Cobb, 1895

Hodder, William, marine store dealer &c, Mill Green, 1855-80

Hodder, William. carrier, Mill Green, 1885-95

Hodder, William, farmer, Mill Green, 1898

Hodder, Miss Daisy, dress maker, 15 Marine Parade, 1903

Hodges, George, bootmaker, 32 Broad Street, 1903

Holman, John, builder &c, Silver Street, 1842-55

Holman, John, builder, Church Street, 1859

Holmes, Robert, The Cobb Arms, The Cobb, 1855

Holmes, Thomas, Cobb Arms Inn, The Cobb, 1865

Holmes, Robert, harbour master, The Cobb, 1859

Holmes, Thomas James MD, physician, Uplyme Road (Upper Lyme Road), 1867

Holmes, Thomas James, MD, Bridge Street, 1871

Holman, John, carpenter, joiner & builder, Silver Street, 1830-52

Holman, James, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Homan, John, carpenter, Silver Street, 1839

Homyer, William, Royal Standard, The Cobb, 1871

Hook, William, grocer &c, Broad Street, 1823-28

Hook, John, linen draper, Broad Street, 1823-30

Hooke, John Swain & Co, linen & woollen drapers & tailors, Broad Street, 1839-48

Hooke, John S, woolstapler & manager of Dorsetshire branch bank, Broad Street, 1848

Hooke, Harry, woolstapler, Broad Street, 1851-52

Hooke, Thomas, watchmaker, Broad Street, 1839-44

Hooke, Edwin George, brewer & maltster, Broad Street, 1848-52

Hooper, William, lodging-house/apartments, 14 Pound Street, 1889-1903

Hore, Betsy, milliner & dressmaker, Coombe Street, 1830

Horner, George, baker &c, Coombe Street, 1823-28

Horner, George, baker &c, Horse Street, 1830

Horner, George, Ship Inn, Horse Street, 1839-40

Horner, George, beer retailer & grocer, Church Street, 1851-59

Horner, James, King's Arms, Coombe Street, 1859

Horner, Mrs Mary, shopkeeper, The Cobb, 1859-67

Horner, William, fish dealer, The Cobb, 1875

Hoskins, Samuel, shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1875

Hoskins, Mrs Elizabeth, beer retailer, Mill Green, 1880

Hoskins, George, dairyman, Colway dairy, 1885

Hounsell, Robert, carrier to Bridport, Coombe Street, 1865

Hounsell, Joseph, fruiterer & carrier, Bridge Street, 1867-71

Hounsell, Joseph, carrier & greengrocer, Coombe Street, 1875-80

Hounsell, William, Mason's Arms PH & omnibus to Bridport, Silver Street, 1895-98

Hutchings, John, cooper, Sherborne Lane, 1851

Hutchings, William, cooper, Pound Street, 1852

Hutchings, William, cooper, Silver Street, 1855-71

Hutchings, Benjamin G, Old Inn, Sherborne Lane, 1871

Hutchinson & Frean, blue lias stone merchants, cement manufacturers & shipowners, The Cobb, 1855-59

Hutchinson, William, blue lias stone merchant, cement manufacturer & shipowner, The Cobb, 1865

Hutchinson, William, blue lias stone merchant/cement manufacturer, The Cobb; residence, Silver Street, 1867 Huxford, William, beer retailer & carrier, Church Street, 1865

Huxford, William, carrier & beer retailer, & receiving office of parcels for the London & South Western Railway Company, Church Street, 1867

Huxford, William, New Inn, carrier & receiving office for the London & South Western Railway Co. Broad Street, 1875

Huxford, William, carrier & receiving office for the London & South Western Railway Co, The Baths, 1880 Huxford, William, carrier & receiving office for the London & South Western Railway Co, Church Street, 1889

Huxford, William, (Red Lion Inn 1895), carrier & receiving office for LSWR Co, 56 Church Street, 1895-1903

Hyde, George D, academies (day), Coombe Street, 1823-28

Hyde, Robert Banton, academy & school, Coombe Street, 1830

Hyde, Alfred, Mason's Arms, Silver Street, 1867

Irish, James, hairdresser, Bridge Street, 1830-48

Irish, James, hairdresser, Broad street, 1851-52

Irish, Joseph, hairdresser, Broad Street, 1855

Irish, Joseph, hairdresser, Coombe Street, 1859-65

Irish, Joseph, hairdresser, Mill Green, 1867-71

Janson, Mrs Elizabeth, milliner, Butter Market, 1867-71

Jefferd, Luke, tailor, Butter Market, 1839-40 & 1848-52

Jefferd, Luke, tailor, Market Place, 1842-44

Jefferd, Edmund, tailor & draper, Broad Street, 1848-52

Jefferd, Edmund, tailor, Butter Market, 1859-80

Jefferd, Henry Jun, carpenter & builder, Bridge Street, 1823-30

Jefferd, Henry, carpenters & builders, Bridge Street, 1842-52

Jefferd, Henry, carpenters & builders, Butter Market, 1851

Jefferd, Henry, Hot & cold baths & builder, Butter Market, 1839-52

Jefferd, Henry, builder & bath proprietor, Bridge Street, 1855

Jefferd, Walker & Jefferd, lime burners & stone merchants, Butter Market, 1851

Jefford, Edmund, tailor, Butter Market, 1865 & 1885

Jefford, Henry, greengrocer, Butter Market, 1895

Jefford, Mrs Susan, greengrocer, Butter Market, 1898

Jefford, George, nurseryman, 33 Silver Street, 1903

Jenkins, William, ship builder, The Cobb, 1830

Jerrard, John, farmer, Hay (Haye) Farm, 1848

Jerrard, John, butcher, Monmouth Street, 1839-52

Jerrard, John, butcher, Broad Street, 1851

Jerrard, Thomas, butcher & livery stable keeper, Broad Street, 1839-40

Jerrard, Thomas, butcher, Broad Street, 1848-80

Jerrard, John, builder, auctioneer & appraiser, Coombe/Horse Street, 1848-65

Jerrard, John Jnr, builder, auctioneer, appraiser & beer retailer, Bridge Street, 1867

Jerrard, John, builder, auctioneer & appraiser, & Victoria Inn, Coombe Street, 1871

Jerrard, John, Victoria Inn, auctioneer & builder, Bridge Street, 1875

Jerrard, John, lodging-house & road surveyor & inspector of nuisances, The Cobb, 1880-85

Jerrard, Mrs Patience, milliner (& lodging-house 1867), Broad Street, 1839-71

Jerrard, Miss Emma, stamp & post office, Broad Street, 1895-1903

Jessop, James, bookseller, stationer, printer & public library, The Square, 1823-28

Judson, Albert, butcher, Broad Street, 1889

King, Miss Elizabeth, dressmaker, Butter Market, 1867

Knell, Samuel, private school, Butter Market, 1855

Knight, Elias, painter, plumber & glazier, Mill Green, 1830

Knight, Paul Slade, Physician, Silver Street, 1839-44

Knight, John, cabinet maker & builder, Coombe Street, 1823-28

Knight, John, carpenter, joiner & builder, Horse Street, 1830

Knight, John, carpenter, Church Street, 1839-51

Knight, John, carpenter, Butter Market, 1859

Knight, John, carpenter, Silver Street, 1865-80

Knight, Miss Elizabeth, dressmaker, Butter Market, 1875

Knight, Miss Elizabeth, dressmaker, Silver Street, 1880

Knight, Miss Elizabeth, dressmaker, Church Street, 1885

Knott, George, Shopkeeper & wheelwright, Horse Street, 1830

Knott, Thomas, wheelwright, Coombe Street, 1823-28

Knott, Thomas, wheelwright, Horse Street, 1839-44

Lakeman, George, Cups hotel & posting house, wine & spirit merchant, Broad Street, 1880

Lakey, Thomas, boot & shoemaker, Silver Street, 1830

Lakey, John, butcher, Butter Market, 1839-40

Lakey, Joseph, King's Arms, Coombe Street, 1839-40

Lakey, Joseph, dairyman, Coombe Street, 1848

Landon, Henry Palmer, solicitor & clerk to the improvement commissioners & burial board, Bridge Street, 1885

Landray, William, printers &c, Broad Street, 1830

Landray, William, printer & binder, Monmouth Street, 1839-40

Landray, William, printers &c, Broad Street, 1842-44

Landray, William, booksellers, stationer, bookbinder & library, Butter market, 1848

Landray, Susan, booksellers, stationers & printers, Butter Market, 1851

Landray, Susan, booksellers, stationers & printers, Church Street, 1852

Lane, H & A, tailors, Broad Street, 1889

Lane, Harry, clothier (tailor & outfitter 03), 11 Broad Street, 1885-1903

Lane, Albert, tailor & outfitter, 22 Broad Street, 1895-1903

Langford, Thomas, carpenter, joiner & builder, Mill Green, 1830

Langford, Sarah (Mrs), staymaker, Silver Street, 1859-71

Langford, William, tailor, Horse Street, 1839-52

Langford, William, tailor, Monmouth Street, 1851-59

Langford, Mrs Martha, milliner & straw bonnet maker, Horse Street, 1867-71

Langford, William, builder, Horse Street, 1867-71

Langford, William, builder, Coombe Street, 1875-80

Langford & Randall, ironmongers, Bridge Street & Coombe Street, 1898

Langford & Randall, ironmongers, Broad Street, 1903

Larcombe, John, tailor, Uplyme, 1842-52

Larcombe, Mrs Ruth, laundry, Monmouth Street, 1898

Larcombe, Mrs Ruth, laundry, Coombe Street, 1903

Lavers, Albion, grocer & provision dealer, (& oilman 1840), Broad Street, 1839-71

Lavers, Richard Bragg, Linen draper & silk mercer, Broad Street, 1855-71

Lawrence, Sarah, schools, Broad Street, 1851-52

Lawton, Samuel & Son, silk throwsters, Mill Green, 1855

Lawton. Mark, silk throwster, Mill Green, 1859-75

Lawton, Mark, baker, Mill Green, 1880

Lawton, Mark & Son, bakers, Mill Green, 1885-95

Lawton, Mark, baker, Mill Green, 1898

Lawton, Mark Jun, Angel Inn, Mill Green, 1885-95

Lawton, Mrs Elizabeth, Angel Inn, Mill Green, 1898-1903

Lee, James, cabinet maker & upholsterer, Broad Street, 1840-44

Lee, Samuel, stone mason, Uplyme, 1844-52

Lee, Mrs Hannah, dressmaker, Sherborne Lane, 1848

Lee, Hannah, & Radford, Sarah, milliners & dressmakers, Bridge Street, 1851

Lee, Hannah, milliner & dressmaker, Bridge Street, 1852

Lee, Mrs Hannah, milliner & dressmaker, Silver street, 1859-80

Lee, Anne (Mrs), dressmaker, Bridge Street, 1855

Lee, Henry Trotman, solicitor, Broad Street, 1830-52

Lee, Henry Trotman, solicitor & clerk to commissioners under the improvement act, Broad Street, 1855-59

Legg, George, boot & shoemaker & town crier (& school attendance officer 1898/1903), Silver Street, 1875-1903

Legg, Thomas, tailor, Silver Street, 1875-80

Leman, George, farmer, Hole Farm, 1851-55

Leman, Mrs Elizabeth, farmer, Hole Farm, 1859

Leman, Mrs Elizabeth, lodging-house, Little Park, Uplyme Road (Upper Lyme Road), 1867

Liberal Club, Secretary Edward Brown, Church Street, 1911

Littlejohn, Henry, lodging-house/apartments, Marine Parade, 1880-98

Littlejohn, Mrs Elizabeth, lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1885

Littlejohns, Miss Susan & Elizabeth, dressmakers, Church Street, 1875-80

Lock, Mrs Elizabeth, post mistress, Horse/Coombe Street, 1823-52

Lock, John, green grocer, Silver Street, 1830

Locke, James, shoemaker, Butter Market, 1839-40

Locke (Lock), Edward, boot & shoemaker, Monmouth Street, 1839-44

Locke, George, greengrocer, Church Street, 1859

Locke, Henry, carman, Church Street, 1867

Locke, Mrs Mary Ann, greengrocer, Church Street, 1867-71

Locke, Mrs Mary Ann, lodging-house, Church Street, 1875-80

Locke, Henry, bookseller, stationer, bookbinder, printer & circulating library, (& berlin wool warehouse 1851), (& publisher of Views of Lyme & Charmouth, agent for the London & Great Britain Art Union, & Johnson & Co's tea 1867), Broad Street, 1839-71

Lock (Locke), Edward, printer, Broad Street, 1880

Locke, Edward, stationer, Bridge Street, 1885

Locke, Edward, stationer, printer, bookbinder & newsagent & publisher of the *Lyme Regis Mirror*, Bridge Street, 1889

Locke, Miss Annie, dressmaker, Bridge Street, 1889

Lockyer, Reuben, carpenter & wheelwright, Uplyme, 1839-40

Lockyer, John, carpenter & wheelwright, Uplyme, 1842-52

Lodden (?), John, baker, Mill Green, 1880

Long, William, carpenter, Pound Street, 1855

Long, William, carpenter, (grocer 1855-65), Sherborne Lane, 1855-95

Long, James, fish dealer, Church Street, 1867-71

Long, James, fish dealer, Monmouth Street, 1875

Long, James, fish dealer, Gun Cliff, 1880-85

Long, William, fish dealer, Monmouth Street, 1875-80

Long, Harry, lodging-house, Pound Street, 1885

Long, Miss Fanny, milliner, Silver Street, 1889

Long, Charles, carpenter, Church Street, 1895

Long, Henry, coffee tavern, Silver Street, 1895-98

Longford, Sarah (Mrs), staymaker, Silver Street, 1855

Lord, Miss Sarah Ann, day school, Mill Green, 1867-80

Loud, James, butcher, Uplyme, 1839-44

Loud, William Henry, butcher, Bridge Street, 1851-52

Loud & Son, butchers, 55 Broad Street, 1889-1903

Love, George, master mariner, The Cobb, 1859-71

Love, George, master mariner, Butter Market, 1875

Love, George, master mariner, The Cobb, 1880-98

Love, Herbert, butcher, Silver Street, 1885-89

Love, Herbert, butcher, 35 Broad Street, 1895-1903

Love, William, Crown PH, Coombe Street, 1889

Lovelace, John, George Inn, Horse Street, 1880-85

Loveless, Mrs Mary Ann, beer retailer, The Cobb, 1889

Lovell, Herbert, boot maker, New Road, The Cobb, 1898

Loveridge, Isaac, blacksmith, Broad Street, 1830

Loveridge, James, currier, Sherborne Lane, 1830-48

Loveridge, Mrs Maria, milliner & straw bonnet maker, Butter Market, 1867

Loveridge, John, Masons Arms, Silver Street, 1903

Loving, John, lodging-house/apartments, Holme Lea Cottage, The Cobb, 1889-95

Lowe, John W, commanding coastguard station, The Cobb, 1865

Lucas, William, beer retailer, Mill Green, 1851

Lucas, William, tailor & town crier, (jailor?? 1865), Bridge Street, 1859-65

Lucas, William, tailor, town crier & bill poster, Butter Market, 1867

Lucas, William, tailor & town crier, Broad?? Street, 1871

Lumbard, John, farmer, Hole Farm, 1885-89

Luttreil (Luttrell), Capt John A F, RN, inspecting commander of coastguards, The Cobb, 1871

Lyme Regis Cement Co (1902) Limited, 1903

Maeer, James L, linen draper & stamp distributor, Broad Street, 1865

Maeer, Levi John, linen & woollen draper, hat warehouse, undertaker & sub distributor of stamps, Broad Street, 1867

Maeer, Levi John, woollen draper, Broad Street, 1871

Maeer, Levi John, linen & woollen draper, undertaker & distributor of stamps, Broad Street, 1875

Maeer, Levi John, draper, Broad Street, 1880

Mackey, John, lodging-house, The Cobb, 1830

Mackey, Mrs, lodging-house keeper, Sidmouth Road, 1839-40

Mackey, Elizabeth, lodging-house keeper, Pound Street, 1842-51

Mahoney, Patrick, inspecting commander of coastguard, The Cobb, 1885-89

Malbran, Elizabeth, lodging-house keeper, Broad Street, 1851

Manfield, William, grocer & draper, Monmouth Street, 1871-75

Mansfield, John, basket maker, Silver Street, 1830

Mansfield, Hannah & Son, baker & grocer, Church Street, 1842-44

Mansfield, Mrs Hannah & Son, bakers, grocers & drapers, Church Street, 1851-65

Manfield, Hannah & Son, grocers & drapers, Monmouth Street, 1867

Mansfield, William, baker & grocer, Church Street, 1848-51

Mansfield, John, shipbuilder, The Cobb, 1848-52

Mansfield, John, lodging-house keeper, Marine Villa, 1851

Mansfield, Joseph, lodging-house, Colway Cottage, 1859-71

Mansfield, Sophia, milliner & dressmaker, Church Street, 1852

Mansfield, Joseph, timber & slate merchant, and surveyor & commission agent for sale of foreign timber, Church Street, 1851-52

Mansfield, Josiah, boot & shoemaker, Monmouth Street, 1851-52

Mansfield, Josiah, boot & shoemaker, Butter Market/Church Street, 1859-98

Mansfield, Frederick, beer retailer & cabinet maker, Church Street, 1867

Mansfield, Joseph, lodging-house, Colway Cottage, 1867

Mansfield, William, cabinet maker & upholsterer, (& paper hanger 51), Broad Street, 1848-52

Mansfield, William, cabinet maker & upholsterer, Silver Street, 1855

Mansfield, William, auctioneer, cabinet maker & upholsterer, Silver Street, 1859-75

Mansfield, William, upholsterer, Pound Street, 1885-89

Mansfield, William, upholsterer, Sherborne House, 1895

Mansfield, Mrs Elizabeth, lodging-house, Broadway House, Silver Street, 1889

Marder, James, chemist & druggist, Broad Street, 1823-52

Marder, James, fossilist, Broad Street, 1852

Marder, James Wood Jnr, chemist & druggist, Broad Street, 1848-51

Marder, James Wood, surgeon, dentist & chemist (& tea dealer 1867), Broad Street, 1859-75

Marder, James Wood, chemist, Broad Street, 1880-85

Marder, Henry, surgeon, (& agent to the Eagle fire & life office 1859), Broad Street, 1848-65

Marder, Henry, MRCS LSA, surgeon, & hon assistant surgeon to 1st Dorset VA, Broad Street, 1867

Margrie, George, cabinet maker & upholsterer, Broad Street, 1830

Margrie, George, cabinet maker & upholsterer, Church Street, 1839-40

Mariette, Frank A, preparatory school, St Albans, 1903

Marlborough, Mrs Betsy, lodging-house keeper, Broad Street, 1830-44

Marlbrow (Marlborough), Elizabeth (Mrs), lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1855

Marquis, William, Iodging-house, Colway, Uplyme Road (Upper Lyme Road), 1859-75

Martin, Mrs Ann, laundress, Sherborne Lane, 1867-71

May, William, grocer, Bridge Street, 1823-30

May, William, grocer & glass & china dealer, Bridge Street, 1839-67

May, Miss Eliza & Emily, grocers & china dealers, Bridge Street, 1871-85

Meacham, William, grocer, Butter Market, 1842-44

Meaden, John William, lodging-house keeper, collector to the Improvement commissioners, and house agent &c, The Cobb, 1855-59

Meaden, Mrs, lodging-house keeper, 1865

Meech, John, blacksmith, Monmouth Street, 1839-40

Membury, David, carman, Stubbs, Monkton Wyld, 1867-71

Mials & Marshall, stone merchants, The Cobb, 1851

Miller & Wescott, teachers of phonetic writing, Church Street, 1855

Miller, Thomas, Pilot Boat, Bridge Street, 1839-40

Miller, Thomas, New Inn (comm & posting), Broad Street, 1848-51

Miller, Thomas, Three Cups Hotel & posting house, and excise office, Broad Street, 1855-65

Miller, Thomas, Three Cups Family Hotel, commercial & posting house, & inland revenue officer, & omnibus proprietor, Broad Street, 1867-71

Miller, Mrs Ann, lodging-house, No 3 Holmlea Terrace, The Cobb, 1875-80

Miller, Harry, car/omnibus proprietor, Marine Parade, 1875-80

Miller, Harry, lodging-house & omnibus proprietor, Marine Parade, 1885

Miller, Harry, lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1889

Miller, Mrs Harry, apartments, Marine Parade, 1895-98

Miller, Richard, fishmonger, Broad Street, 1895

Mills, John, tailor, Coombe Street, 1839-44

Mills, Nathaniel, boot & shoemaker, Silver Street, 1823-44

Mills, William, boot & shoemaker, Church Street, 1839-44

Mills, Mrs Mary, laundress, Gas House Lane, 1867-71

Mills, Abraham, beer retailer, Church Street, 1885

Mills, Mrs Sarah, greengrocer, Mill Green, 1889

Mills, Thomas, greengrocer, Broad Street, 1889

Mills, Frederick, shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1898-1903

Mitchell, William, blacksmith, Uplyme, 1839-40

Mitchell, George, grocer, The Cobb, 1855

Mitchell, George Westlaker, wine & spirit merchant, Assembly Rooms & at Axminster, 1859

Mitchell. George Westlake, wine & spirit merchant, & at Axminster & Seaton, Devon, Broad Street, 1865-67

Mitchell, George Westlaker and James Turner, wine & spirit merchants, Bank House, Broad Street, 1871

Mitchell, Turner & Co, wine & spirit merchants, Market Square; & at Seaton & Axminster, 1875

Mitchell, Francis & Co, wine & spirit merchants, distillers & agents for bass & Co ales, Broad Street;

& at Chard & Ilminster, 1875

Mitchell, John, carman, Horse Street, 1875-80

Moore, Joseph, boot & shoemaker, Bridge Street, 1823-28

Moore, Joseph, lodging-house, Bridge Street, 1830

Moore, Joseph, shoemaker, Church Street, 1830-48

Moore, John, boot & shoemaker, Monmouth Street, 1830

Moore, Mary, boot & shoemaker, Horse Street, 1851

Moore, Kezia, Horse Street, 1851

Moore, Joseph, carpenter & builder, Uplyme, 1842-44

Moore, Joel, carpenter & builder, Uplyme, 1851-52

Moore, Brown & Wallis, manufacturers of herring & mackerel nets, Mill Green, 1859

Moore, John, boot & shoemaker, Coombe Street, 1839-67

Moore, Samuel Silvester, seedsman, nurseryman & florist, Rose Cottage, 1851-67

Moore, Samuel Silvester, nurseryman, Silver Street, 1871

Moore, Samuel Silvester, nurseryman, seedsman & florist, Providence nursery, 1875-80

Moore, Edward, booksellers, stationers & printers, Coombe/Horse Street, 1848-52

Moore, William, lodging-house, Broad Street, 1830

```
Moore, William, teacher (music), Broad Street, 1830
```

Moore, W & Son, fossilists, Butter Market, 1839-40

Moore, William & Son, fossilist, Broad Street, 1842-52

Moore, William, music seller, fossilist & picture dealer, Broad Street, 1851

Moore, William Snr, music seller & dealer in fossils, Broad Street, 1855-65

Moore, William Snr, dealer in fossils & oak carvings, Broad Street, 1867

Moore, William Jun, professor of music, Broad Street, 1851

Moore, William, teacher (music), Broad Street, 1852

Moore, William, professor of music, Marine Parade, 1855

Moore, William Jnr, professor of music & organist, Butter Market, 1859-65

Moore, William Walling, professor of music & organist of St Michael's, music seller, pianoforte tuner,

& warehouse & depository of the Christian Knowledge Society, Butter Market, 1867

Moore, William Walling, professor of music, music seller & pianoforte tuner, Broad Street, 1871

Moore, William Walling, professor of music & organist of St Michael's, & musical repository, Silver Street, 1875

Moore, Mrs Harriett, lodgings, Bridge Street, 1871

Moore, Mrs Sarah, haberdasher, Coombe Street, 1871

Moore, Henry, shopkeeper, Horse Street, 1885

Moore, Charles, lodging-house/apartments, Marine Parade, 1889-95

Mountstephen, Job, shopkeeper, Uplyme, 1839-40

Mountstephens, John, shopkeeper, Uplyme, 1842-52

Mullins, Mrs Hannah, lodging-house, Silver Street, 1867-71

Munday, James, shipowner, 1839-40

Munden, James, painter, plumber & glazier, Coombe Street, 1823-28

Munden, James, plumber, painter &c, Bridge Street, 1830-52

Munden, Henry & James, plumbers, painters & glaziers, Bridge Street, 1855

Munden, Henry, plumber, painter & glazier, Bridge Street, 1859-71

Neale, William, insurance agent, Church Street, 1875

Newbery, John, Ship Inn, Horse Street, 1880

Newbery, Francis William, Ship Inn, Horse Street, 1885

Newbery, Francis William, George PH, Horse Street, 1889

Nickells, William Henry, chief officer of coastguard, The Cobb, 1889

Norris, John, farmer, Silver Street, 1851-55

Norrish, John, grocer, 7 Church Street, 1903

Nutman, Samuel, Hotel, The Cobb, 1859

Nutman, Samuel, master mariner, Coombe Street, 1865-71

O'Brien, Daniel LRCP Edin, surgeon & medical officer, LR district, Axminster union & north division Axminster rural sanitary district (& certifying factory surgeon 1885), Sherborne Lane, 1885-89

O'Neil, James, beer retailer, 31 Broad Street, 1903

Osborn, Samuel, surveyor, Church Street, 1823-28

Osborn, Samuel, auctioneer, Monmouth Street, 1830

Osborn, Samuel, surveyor & builder, Monmouth Street, 1839-40

Osborn & England, coal & blue lias stone merchants & shipowners, The Cobb, 1848-80

Osborn & England, coal merchants, The Cobb, 1889

Osborn, Samuel & Henry, carpenters & builders, Horse Street, 1839-52

Osborn, Samuel & Henry, british timber & blue lias stone merchants & shipowners, Marine Parade, 1855

Osborn, Samuel & Henry, british timber & blue lias stone merchants, Marine Parade, 1859

Osborn, Henry, grocer, Broad Street, 1880

Osborn, Gaius, coal merchant, The Cobb, 1885-98

Osborn, Henry Jun, lodging-house/apartments, 5 Marine Parade, 1885-1903

Osment, George W, Ship Inn, Horse Street/Coombe Street, 1895-1903

Otton, William, chief boatman, Coastguard Station, The Cobb. 1871

Painter, Miss Annie, dress & mantle maker, Mill Green, 1867-71

Painter, William, custom house officer, Butter Market, 1875-80

Painter, William, lodging-house/apartments, Butter Market, 1885-95

Painter, Miss Martha, apartments, Butter Market, 1898-1903

Palmer, William, brewer/beer retailer, Horse Street, 1830-40

Palmer, William, brewer, Church Street, 1839-44

Palmer, Anthony, painter & glazier, Silver Street, 1852-59

Palmer, Anthony, painter, glazier & shopkeeper, Silver Street, 1865

Palmer, Anthony, grocer, carver & gilder, Silver Street, 1851-80

Palmer, Anthony, shopkeeper, Silver Street, 1885-98

Palmer, Miss Caroline, lodging-house, Sherborne Lane, 1875-80

Parker, James, lodging-house, Butter market, 1859

Parker, James, Masons Arms, Silver Street, 1865

Parrett, Thomas, shoeing & general smith, George's Court, 1867-75

Parris, John, George, Coombe Street, 1848

Parris, Mary Ann (Mrs), lodging-house, The Cobb, 1855-59

Parsons, William, Golden Hart Commercial Inn, Butter Market, 1855

Pasmore, William, painter & glazier, Alcove Cottage, 1839-40

Patterson, John Furmedge, shopkeeper, Uplyme, 1839-52

Patterson, William, boot & shoemaker, Uplyme, 1842-44

Patterson, William, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Paul, Samuel, painter &c, Alcove Cottage, 1848

Paul, Samuel, painter & glazier &c, Marine Parade, 1851-55

Paul, Samuel, painter & glazier, china & glass warehouse, Broad Street, 1859-75

Paul, Samuel. china & glass warehouse, Broad Street, 1880-85

Paul, Mrs Hannah, china dealer, Broad Street, 1871

Paul & Son, decorators, 56 Broad Street, 1898-1903

Pay, Adam, apartments, Braeside, Uplyme Road, 1895-1903

Pearce, Robert, shipowner, Sherborne Lane, 1839-48

Pearce, Robert, harbour master, The Cobb, 1855

Pearce, Miss Sarah, tailor, Broad Street, 1875

Peare, Mrs Kathleen, shopkeeper, Horse Street, 1875

Penny, Joseph (& Sons 51 & 52)), linen draper, Broad Street, 1842-65

Penny & Co, silk mercers & general drapers, 23 Broad Street, 1871-1903

Peppin, Arthur, surgeon, Broad Street, 1839-40

Perrott, Thomas, blacksmith, Uplyme, 1842-44

Perrott, Thomas, blacksmith, George's Court, 1851-71

Perry, Mrs Mary Ann, shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1889

Perry, James, pilot, Silver Street, 1898-1903

Phelps, John, teacher (drawing), Broad Street, 1852

Pidgeon, Henry, baker & grocer, Bridge Street, 1851-71

Pidgeon, Robert, baker & grocer, Silver Street, 1851-67

Pidgeon, Mrs, grocer, Silver Street, 1871

Pidgeon, Mrs Bessie, grocer, Horse Street/19 Coombe Street, 1898-1903

Pidgeon, Mrs Louisa, dressmaker, Coombe Street, 1898

Pike, William, shopkeeper & beer retailer, Mill Green, 1851-52

Pile, Joseph, tailor, Church Street, 1875-80

Pile, Josiah John Guest, tailor, Church Street, 1885-98

Pitfield, John, cabinet maker, Coombe Street, 1875-80

Pitfield, Robert, baker, Bridge Street, 1885

Pitfield, John Blagdon, Golden Hart PH, Church Street, 1889

Pittman, William, bacon factor, Sherborne Lane, 1848

Pitman, John, Masons Arms PH, Silver Street, 1885

Plumtre, Francis Henry, surgeon & agent to the Admiralty, Silver street, 1855

Poingdestre, Philip, shopkeeper, broad Street, 1839-40

Poole, William, ironmonger & grocer, Church Street, 1823-28

Poole, William, lodging-house, Church Street & Summer Hill, 1830

Poole, George Coombs, grocer & tea dealer, china, glass & earthenware dealer, wine & spirit merchant,

Broad Street, 1830

Poole, George Coombs, lodging-house keeper, Church Street & Summer Hill, 1842-44

Porter, William, harbour master, The Cobb, 1852

Porter, William, agent to the Lime & Stone Co, The Cobb, 1855

Porter, William, shell fishmonger, Marine Parade, 1859

Porter, William, agent, Parade, 1865

Porter, William, agent to J Harvey of Plymouth, blue lias stone merchant, Marine Parade, 1867-75

Porter, William, blue lias stone merchant, The Cobb, 1880-89

Porter, James, carpenter & joiner, Silver Street, 1875-80

Potter, Miss Harriett, milliner, Butter Market, 1867-71

Powell, Mary, linen draper, Church Street, 1823-28

Preston, Matthew Colbeck, solicitor, town clerk & clerk to the harbour trustees & school attendance com., Pound Street, 1889-98

Preston, Matthew Colbeck, solicitor, town clerk & clerk to the harbour trustees, Pound Street, 1903

Prosser, William, shipowner, 1839-40

Prosser & Munden, coal merchants, The Cobb, 1842-44

Prosser, Thomas, coal merchant, near The Cobb Gate, 1851

Prowse (?), Mary, lodging-house keeper, Middle Row, 1851

Prust, Ernest, gocer, Bridge Street, 1898

Pryer, Ernest, architect, 37 Broad Street, 1903

Pulsford, A, shoemaker, Monmouth Street, 1840

Pulsford, Abraham Jnr, boot & shoemaker, Monmouth Street, 1842-44

Pulsford, Abraham, boot & shoemaker, Bridge Street, 1830-44

Pulsford, Abraham, boot & shoemaker, Sherborne Lane, 1852

Pulsford, Abraham, seedsman, Bridge Street, 1839-40

Pulsford, Abraham, seedsman, Market Place, 1842-44

Pulsford, George, Trinity pilot & dealer in agricultural & garden seeds, Bridge Street, 1848-80

Pulsford, Samuel, cabinet maker, Pound Street, 1859

Pulsford, Samuel, cabinet maker, Church Street, 1875-85

Pulsford, Mrs Alice, lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1875-80

Pyke, William, beer retailer, Horse Street, 1839-40

Pyke, William, shopkeeper & beer retailer, Mill Green, 1848

Pyke, William, grocery & sundries, Mill Green, 1851

Pyke, William, beer retailer, Mill Green, 1865-67

Quick, Henry, beer retailer, The Cobb, 1851-52

Quick, Miss Ann, draper, Broad Street, 1848-71

Quick, William, boot & shoemaker, Sherborne Lane, 1851-65

Quick, William, boot & shoemaker, Horse Street, 1867-71

Quick, Mrs Sarah, boot & shoemaker, Bridge Street, 1875

Quick, Thomas, boot & shoe maker, Bridge Street, 1880

Quick, Henry, boot maker/repairer, Coombe Street, 1889-95

Quick, Matthew, Golden Hart PH, Butter Market, 1885

Radford, Robert, slater & plasterer, Silver Street, 1839-55

Radford, Robert & Son, slaters & plasterers, Silver Street, 1859

Radford, Henry, house agent, Silver street, 1859

Radford, Henry, plasterer, Broad Street, 1865

Radford, Henry, house agent, slater & plasterer, Silver Street, 1867

Radford, Henry, slater & plasterer, Silver Street, 1871

Radford, Henry, house agent, slater & plasterer, Broad Street, 1875

Radford, Robert, cabinet maker & upholsterer, Broad Street, 1848-52

Radford, Robert jnr, Cabinet maker & upholsterer &c (paper hanger, house agent & undertaker), Broad Street, 1855-71

Radford, Robert, auctioneer, house agent & upholsterer, Broad Street, 1875

Radford & Radford, auctioneers & house agents (& upholsterers 1885), 19 Broad Street, 1880-1903

Radford, Francis, assessor & collector of Queen's taxes, Broad Street, 1885-98

Radford, Herbert, house decorator, Broad Street, 1885-89

Radford, Henry, builder, Butter Market, 1885

Radford, Henry, plasterer, Broad Street, 1880-89

Radford, Henry, builder & contractor, Church Street, 1895

Radford, Edward, plasterer, 7 Broad Street, 1895-1903

Raffill, William, fishmonger, Coombe Street, 1898

Raffell, William, fishmonger, Coombe Street, 1903

Raistrick, Charles, beer retailer, Mill Green, 1880

Randall, William, Talbot Arms, Uplyme, 1839-40

Randel (Randall), Charles, Talbot Arms, Uplyme, 1851

Randall, William, Golden Hart, Butter Market, 1851

Randall, William, grocer & brewer, Bridge Street, 1855

Randall, William, grocer & brewer, Butter Market, 1859-80

Randall, William & Henry, builders, Butter Market, 1875-80

Randall, Henry, builder, Butter Market, 1889

Randall, George Ernest, builder, see Langford & Randall, 1898-1903

Rattenbury, William, shopkeeper, Monmouth Street, 1889

Reader, Amelia (Miss), lodging-house, Broad street, 1859

Record, Charles, boot & shoemaker, 2 Bridge Street, 1895-1903

Rendall, John, mariner, The Cobb, 1830

Rendall (Randall), John, coal merchant & shipowner, The Cobb, 1839-48

Rendall, Fowler & Co, stone merchants, The Cobb, 1851

Randall, John, coal merchant, The Cobb, 1851

Rendell, John, timber merchant, The Cobb, 1851

Rendell, George John, grocer, Broad Street, 1880-98

Rendall, George, John, grocer, 62 Broad Street, 1903

Reed, John, farmer, Lower Ware, 1851

Reeder, Miss Amelia, lodging-house, Broad Street, 1865

Restrick, Eli, beer retailer, Mill Green, 1885-89

Restrick, Ralph, beer retailer & baker, Church Street, 1889

Restrick, Ralph, baker & confectioner, Bridge Street, 1895-1903

Reynolds, James, George Inn, Coombe Street, 1839-40

Rhode Hill Fruit Co., 49 Broad Street, 1903

Roberts, George, academy (day), Broad Street, 1823-28

Roberts, George, classical academy (takes boarders), Broad Street, 1830-52

Roberts, George, boarding school, Broad Street, 1855

Roberts, Thomas, shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1855-67

Rockett, Miss Mary, lodging-house/apartments, 13 Marine Parade, 1889-1903

Rodgers, James, lodging-house, Church Street, 1867-71

Rogers, Mary, straw hat maker, Broad Street, 1830-44

Rollings, Walter, watch & clock maker, Broad Street, 1830

Roman, Elizabeth, milliner, Church Street, 1823-28

Roman, Elizabeth Domett, milliner &c, Butter Market, 1830

Rose, John, master mariner, The Cobb, 1865

Rowe, Charles, currier &c, Butter Market, 1848

Rowe, John, ship owner, Spring Cottage, The Cobb, 1880-1903

Rowe, John, tailor, Church Street, 1889-1903

Ruckley, John, farmer, Middle Mill Farm, 1848

Rugg, William, shopkeeper & ship carpenter, (& pleasure boat owner 1867-75), The Cobb, 1851-75

Rugg, William, pleasure boat owner (& shopkeeper 1885), The Cobb, 1880-85

Rugg, William, Cobb warden & pleasure boat owner, The Cobb, 1889

Rugg, William, Cobb warden & pleasure boat owner & honiton lace vendor, The Cobb, 1895-98

Rugg, Mrs Sarah, shopkeeper & Honiton lace maker, The Cobb, 1885-89

Rugg, William, beer retailer, Church Street, 1880

Rugg, William Robert, beer retailer, Broad Street, 1885-98

Rugg, William, beer retailer & honiton lace vendor, Marine Parade, 1903

Rugg, William Robert, Cobb warden, collector of harbour dues, The Cobb, 1903

Rumsey, John, organist, The Cobb, 1880

Rumsey, John, music seller & organist, Butter Market, 1885

Rumsey, John Longman, music seller, Butter Market, 1889-98

Rumsey, Mrs Martha Ann, draper, 64 Broad Street, 1903

Sage (?), George, grocery & sundries, Uplyme, 1851

Salter, George, boot & shoemaker, Uplyme, 1842-44

Salter, James, boot & shoemaker, Uplyme, 1842-52

Sanders, Clifford, confectioner, 38 Broad Street, 1895-1903

Sanders, Samuel, grocer & baker, 34 Broad Street, 1898-1903

Sansom, Hannah, beer retailer, Uplyme, 1842-44

Sansom, William, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Sansom, Thomas, Pilot Boat, Bridge Street, 1851

Sansom, Thomas, beer retailer, and licensed to let horses, Bridge street, 1855

Sansom, Thomas, leathercutter, Bridge Street, 1859

Sansom, Thomas, leather cutter, ironmonger, bath chair proprietor & licensed to let pony carriages, Broad Street, 1865-67

Sansom, Thomas, public baths, Butter Market, 1871

Sansom, Isaac, beer retailer, Sherborne Lane, 1875

Sansom, Mrs Mary, beer retailer, Sherborne Lane, 1880

Sansom, Henry, London Inn, Church Street, 1880-98

Sansom, Mrs Sarah Ann, apartments, 50 Church Street, 1898-1903

Sansom, Thomas, cab proprietor, Silver Street, 1885-89

Sansom, Frank, cab proprietor, Silver Street, 1898

Sansom, Mrs Ellen, cab proprietor, 40 Silver Street, 1903

Sargantson, Mrs Mary Ann, dressmaker, Church Street, 1889-95

Saunders, Charles, saddler & harness maker, Broad Street, 1855

Saunders, Charles, saddler & harness maker, Bridge street, 1859

Savings Bank, William James Atkins, actuary) Dorsetshire Bank, Broad St, 1880

Scammell, John, nurseryman, Rose Cottage, Charmouth Road, 1875-1903

Scovell, William Parsons, custom house officer, Butter Market, 1875-80

Seager, Benjamin, chimney sweeper, Church Street, 1867-71

Seager, John, fish dealer, Church Street, 1867

Seager, John, fish dealer, Bridge Street, 1871-80

Seager, Mrs Susan, greengrocer, Bridge Street, 1885

Seager, Thomas, lodging-house, The Cobb, 1889

Seager, Thomas, dealer in fossils, Bridge Street, 1895

Searle, George Hayden, grocer, brewer & maltster, Broad Street, 1855-59

Searle, Mrs Elizabeth, grocer, Broad Street, 1865

Searle, John, cabinet maker, Church Street, 1889-95

Searle, Samuel. greengrocer/fishmonger, Market Square, 1889-98

Searle, William, apartments, The Cobb, 1895

Searle, Mrs Louisa, apartments, Marine Parade, 1898-1903

Searle, Thomas, Cobb Arms PH, The Cobb, 1898-1903

Searle, Thomas William, apartments, No 2 Ozone Terrace, 1898-1903

Searle, Albert, beer retailer, 25 Marine Parade, 1903

Sellers & Wood, straw hat makers, Broad Street, 1830

Seller, George, baker, George's Court, 1823-30

Sellers, George, baker, George's yard, 1839-44

Sellers, John, brewer, Broad Street, 1839-48

Sellers, Richard, baker & malster, Broad Street, 1823-44

Sellers, I (Mrs), lodging-house, The Cobb, 1855

Sellers, Richard, linen & woollen draper, (undertaker 48), Broad Street, 1839-52

Sellers, Richard, linen & woollen draper, undertaker & postmaster, Broad Street, 1855-59

Sellers, Mrs Eliza, linen draper, Broad Street, 1865

Sellers, Mrs Eliza, linen & woollen draper, & undertaker, Broad Street, 1867

Sellers, Mrs Eliza, linen draper & postmistress, Broad Street, 1871

Sellers, Frederick Norman, linen & woollen draper, undertaker & postmaster, Broad Street, 1875

Sellers, Frederick Norman, draper, stamp & post office, Broad Street, 1880-89

Seymour, James, farmer, Rose Farm & Church Street, 1848

Seymour, James Coles, farmer, Church Street, 1851-65

Seymour, James Coles, farmer, Charmouth Lane, 1867

Seymour, Mrs, farmer, Charmouth Lane, 1871

Seymour, James Coles, farmer, Charmouth Road, 1875-1903

Seymour, Miss Mary Ann, dressmaker, Silver Street, 1889

Shackelford (Shackleford), John, stationer, Broad Street, 1880

Sharp, John, linen & woollen draper, & grocer & tea dealer, Broad Street, 1875

Shephard, William, photographer, Church Street, 1885

Shephard, Frederick, photographer, Church Street, 1889-95

Shephard, Frederick William, photographer, 57 Church Street, 1898-1903

Shepherd, William Henry, shopkeeper, Horse Street, 1898

Shipway, Mrs Catherine, lodging-house, Monmouth Street, 1885

Simmonds, Richard, lodging-house, Fairfield House, 1830

Singleton, Charles, tailor & draper, Silver Street, 1839-48

Singleton, James, shopkeeper, 1839-40

Singleton, James, grocer, Mill Green, 1848

Singleton, John, shopkeeper, Mill Green, 1842-51

Singleton, Henry, linen draper, Broad Street, 1842-44

Singleton, James, grocer, Mill Green, 1852-55

Singleton, Selina (Mrs), Grape Tavern, Broad Street, 1855-59

Skinner, Henry, draper, Broad Street, 1839-44

Skinner, David Shorter (or Shorthouse), MD, physician & surgeon, Silver Street, 1867-80

Slade, John, the Crown, Coombe Street, 1839-51

Slade, Mary (Mrs), Crown, Coombe Street, 1855-59

Smith, Robert, miller, Town Mills, 1823-28

Smith, Ann, miller, Coombe Street, 1830

Smith, Misses, lodging-house keepers, The Cobb, 1839-40

Smith, John, higgler, Mill Green, 1855

Smith, William, shopkeeper, Church Street, 1895-98

Smith & Co, millers, Town roller mills, 1898

Snell, Charles Otton, baker & grocer, Broad Street, 1859-95

Sorrell, George, baker, Broad Street, 1880

Southee, James, grazier, Colway Cottage, 1875-80

Southee, Mrs Elizabeth, lodging-house, Pound Street, 1885

Southee, Mrs Elizabeth, confectioner, Broad Street, 1898

Southwood, Richard, wine & spirit merchant, Market Square, 1889-98 (William Down, manager, 1895-98)

Southwood, Richard, wine & spirit merchant, (William Down, manager), 2 Broad Street, 1903

Spencer, Henry, New Inn, Broad Street, 1880-85

Spencer, Mrs Sarah, New Inn, Broad Street, 1889

Spiller, William, cowkeeper, Horn, 1885-1903

Spiller, William, apartments, 47 Silver Street, 1903

Spooner, David, grocer, Broad Street, & at Bridport, 1865

Sprackling, William, inspector of weights & measures, Horse Street, 1889

Sprackling, William, borough surveyor, sanitary inspector & inspector of common lodging-houses, Horse Street (Church Street 1898), 1895-98

Sprackling, Elam, borough surveyor, sanitary inspector & inspector of common lodging-houses, Church Street, 1903

Spurr, James, MRCS, LSA & BA Cantab, surgeon & medical officer, Lyme Regis district, & certifying factory surgeon, Broad Street, 1895

Spurr, James, surgeon & medical officer, St Heliers, Silver Street, 1898 (see public officers)

Spurr, James, (as above & see public officers), Colway Cottage, 1903

St Michael Iron Works Co (Lim), patentees & kitchen range manufacturers, engineers, iron & brass

founders, gas, hot water & steam apparatus manufacturers, furnishing ironmongers, cutlery,

electro-plated, tin, copper, japan goods & agricultural implement depot, Broad Street;

works, Church Street, 1880

St Michael's College (Rev Arthur R Sharpe MA, head master), 1889-98

St Michael's Home for waifs & strays, C of E Society, Mrs Barlow, lady supt & hon sec, Broad Street, 1898

Stanton, England & Glyde, clothiers, Mill Green, 1823-28

Stanton, Mrs Joseph, milliner, Broad Street, 1898

Stanton, Mrs Florence, apartments, 7 Marine Parade, 1903

Stapleforth, Henry, carman, Silver Street, 1867-80

Stapleforth, Henry, haulier, Silver Street, 1885-89

Stapleforth, Henry, haulier & cab proprietor, Silver Street, 1895-98

Staples, Miss Sophia, milliner, Broad Street, 1839-51

Staples, Frederick, hairdresser, Broad Street, 1885-89

Staples, Frederick, hairdresser, 8 Monmouth Street, 1898-1903

Staples, Mrs Mary, dressmaker, Monmouth Street, 1898

Starke, Robert, plasterer, Broad Street, 1830

Stembridge, Miss Maria, milliner, Broad Street, 1875

Stephens, Mount, baker, Silver Street, 1842-52

Stevens, George Henry, grocer & tea dealer, glass & earthenware dealer, Church Street, 1830

Stevens, George Henry, lime burner, Blue Lias Lime Works, 1830

Stevens, George, livery stable keeper, Church Street, 1839-40

Stevens, George, baker, Silver Street, 1848

Stevens, George, baker & grocer, Broad Street, 1851-52

Stevens, Mary (Mrs), grocer & baker, Broad Street, 1855

Stevens, Mrs Mary, grocer, Broad Street, 1859-75

Stevens, John, dyer & scourer, Broad Street, 1855-85

Stevens & Son, dyers, Broad Street, 1889

Stevens, Samuel, master mariner, The Cobb, 1865-67

Stevens, John, wine dealer, Church Street, 1871

Stevens, Richard, stone mason, Church Street, 1875-80

Stevens, Miss Alice, milliner, Broad Street, 1889-98

Stevens, Thomas, grocer, Bridge Street, 1889

Stevens & Son, grocers, Broad Street, 1895

Stevens, Miss Mary, tobacconist, 51 Broad Street, 1898-1903

Stone, James, fancy repository, Broad Street, 1855-59

Stoodley, Tom, apartments, 22 Marine Parade, 1903

Stovin, John, chemist, 13 Broad Street, 1903

Stoward, Susanna, beer retailer, Church Street, 1851

Stoward, Charles, boot & shoemaker, Butter Market/Church Street, 1871-1903

Stoward, John, sargeant at mace, Church Street, 1871

Stoward, John, stone mason, Church Street, 1875

Stoward, John George, London Inn, 40 Church Street, 1903

Street, James. bellhanger, Silver Street, 1889

Street, William, lodging-house, St Helier's. Silver Street, 1889

Street, Walter, tailor, 5 Sherborne Lane, 1898-1903

Strickland, William George, mechanical engineer, Butter Market, 1875-80

Stroud, Phoebe, lodging-house keeper, Broad Street, 1851

Stroud, Mary Ann (Miss), lodging-house, Broad Street, 1855 (GD - this is Bell Cliff House, Pulmans 1857)

Summers, Nathaniel & Lloyd, grocers & ironmongers, Broad Street, 1839-44

Swaffield, Thomas, tailor & draper, Broad Street, 1839-67

Swaffield, Miss Harriet, dressmaker, Middle Row/Broad Street, 1839-48

Swaffield, Misses Sarah & Harriet, dressmakers, Pound Street, 1855

Swaffield, Misses Sarah & Harriet, dressmakers, & milliners, Broad Street, 1859-85

Swaffield. Misses, dressmakers, Broad Street, 1865

Swaffield Brothers, tailors, Broad Street, 1871-75

Swaffield, Walter Evans, tailor, Broad Street, 1880-85

Swaffield, Mrs Sarah Ann, pastrycook & confectioner, Broad Street, 1867-71

Swaffield, Mrs Elizabeth, pastrycook & confectioner, Broad Street, 1875-95

Swaffield, Miss Harriet Neat, confectioner, 4 Broad Street, 1898-1903

Swain, William, Angel Inn, Mill Green, 1848-75

Swain & Saul, ironmongers, Broad Street, 1895-98

Swan, Henry, grocer &c, Broad Street, 1823-28

Swan, Elizabeth, haberdasher & library, Broad Street, 1823-28

Swan, Thomas, Lion commercial inn & posting house, Broad Street, 1839-40

Swan, Thomas, lodging-house keeper, The Cobb, 1851

Swatrell, Walter, grocer & draper, Broad Street, 1871

Sweetland, Mrs Elizabeth, laundress, Church Cliff, Gas House Lane, 1867-71

Symes, Thomas, tailor, Uplyme, 1830

Symes, Joseph, beer retailer, Church Street, 1851

Symes, farmer, Ware Farm, Uplyme, 1851

Taylor, John, mason &c, Horse Street, 1839-40

Taylor, John, mason, Mill Green, 1848

Taylor, John, stone mason, Pickle Square, 1851-52

Taylor, John, mason, Sherborne Lane, 1859-65

Taylor, John, builder, Mill Green, 1875-80

Taylor, Joseph Frederick, sole maker of the late Brown Bros' ranges & automaton roasters & Collins' cheese loft stoves, general ironmonger, gas & hot water engineer, St Michael's Iron Works, 1885

Taylor, Miss Mary, dressmaker, Mill Green, 1889

Templer, George Denis O'Kelly, solicitor, Broad Street, 1839-52

Tencate, John E, boot & shoemaker, Butter Market, 1848-51

Tencate, John Elmer, boot & shoemaker, Church Street, 1852

Thompson, Hendry, linen & woollen draper, Broad Street, 1855

Thorn, William, Royal Lion Hotel, family, commercial & posting house, Broad Street, 1859

Thornton, Edward, chemist & druggist, & registrar of marriages, and agent for the Protestant Dissenters' Fire & Life office, Butter Market, 1839-40

Thornton, Edward, chemist & druggist, Butter Market, 1842-44

Thornton, Edward, chemist & druggist, & registrar of marriages, Broad Street, 1848-52

Thornton, Edward, registrar of births, deaths & marriages for Axminster district, and dispensing chemist, Broad Street, 1855-65

Thornton, Edward, chemist & druggist, registrar of births & deaths for Lyme Regis district & registrar of marriages for Axminster District, Broad Street, 1867-89

Tomblings, James, Golden Hart commercial & posting house, Butter Market, 1859

Tomblings, Mrs Eliza, Golden Hart Inn, opposite the Church, Butter Market, 1865-67

Tormey, William, furnished apartments, Woodville, Uplyme Road, 1885

Trafford, Thomas, stong & mild beer, porter & India pale ale brewer, malster & dealer in malt & hops, The Brewery, 1867

Trayte, Samuel. baker &c, Church Street, 1823-30

Treay, Mrs Frances, bathing machine proprietress, Sherborne Lane, 1867

Trayte, Mrs Frances, bathing machine proprietress, 1871

Tribbett, George, tailor & draper, Coombe Street, 1823-28

Tribbett, George, beer retailer, Horse Street, 1839-44

Trim, James, beer retailer, Church Street, 1848

Trim, James, farmer (1851-65) & beer retailer, Church Street, 1851-75

Tucker, James, blacksmith, Silver street, 1830-52

Tucker, Mrs Ann, blacksmith, Silver Street, 1865-71

Tucker, John, surgeon, Broad Street, 1823-28

Tucker, John, surgeon, Butter Market, 1830-59

Tucker, John, surgeon, Church Street, 1852

Tucker, Robert G, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Tucker, William, butcher, Butter Market, 1830

Tucker, William, beer retailer & butcher, Butter Market, 1839-44

Tucker, William, beer retailer, Butter Market, 1852

Tucker, William, butcher, Butter Market, 1848-51

Tucker, William, butcher, Church Street, 1852

Tucker, William, butcher & draper, Butter Market, 1855

Turle, Misses (Harriet & Louisa), ladies boarding school (ladies seminary 1865), Broad street, 1839-71

Turle, Misses Louisa & Mary Ann, ladies boarding & day school, Broad Street, 1875

Tucker, Andrew, solicitor; office, Butter Market; residence, Charmouth, 1867

Turner, William, farmer, Hole Farm, 1865-67

Turner, Job, cowkeeper, Church Street, 1975-89

Turner, James & Co, wine merchant, Market Square, 1880-85

Turner, Gerorge, lodging-house, Monmouth House, 1880

Turner, John Speed, printer & stationer, 5 Broad Street, 1885-1903

Turner, John Speed, printer & publisher of the Lyme Regis Mirror, 5 Broad Street, 1895

Turner, John Speed, printer & Publisher of the Lyme Regis Mirror & Visitors' List, 5 Broad Street, 1903-11

Turner, Mrs Mary, shopkeeper, Monmouth Street, 1898-1903

Turner, John, beer retailer, Mill Green, 1903

Upjohn, John, tailor, Horse Street, 1830-44

Upjohn, George, tailor, Silver Street, 1851-52

Upjohn, Mrs Jane Eliza, beer retailer, Broad Street, 1855-59

Upjohn, Mrs Jane, beer retailer, Pound Street, 1865

Upjohn, Mrs Jane Eliza, lodging-house, beer retailer & agent for the Stogumber ales, Broad Street, 1867

Upjohn, John, boot & shoemaker, Mill Green, 1859-71

Upward, John Grimes, linen draper, Broad Street, 1848-52

Urguhart, John, shipowner, The Cobb, 1839-48

Verrier, Alfred Bult, surgeon dentist, Broad Street; residence, The Cedars, Bridport, 1867

Verrier, Alfred B, surgeon dentist, Broad Street; residence, Queen Street, Bridport, 1871

Vincent, Robert & Son, farmers, Pinkey farm, 1851

Vincent, William, beer retailer & dealer in British wines, The Cobb, 1867

Walker, Charles, auctioneer, coal merchant & shipper of blue lias limestone, 1839-40

Walker, Charles, auctioneer & coal merchant, The Cobb, 1842-44

Walker, Charles, shipowner, 1839-40

Walker, James, beer retailer, pound street, 1839-44

Walker, R C, grocer (& baker 40), Bridge Street, 1839-44

Walker, Robert, baker &c, Bridge Street, 1842-44

Walker, Thomas, coal dealer, The Cobb, 1830

Walker, Thomas, lodging-house keeper & shipowner, The Cobb, 1839-40

Walker, Thomas, coal merchant & shipowner, The Cobb, 1848

Walker, George, lodging-house, Pound Street, 1859

Walker, Robert Cox, auctioneer, appraiser, grocer &c, Bridge Street, 1848

Walker, Robert Cox, auctioneer, appraiser, coal merchant & shipowner, The Cobb, 1851-55

Walker, Robert Cox, coal merchant & shipowner, The Cobb, 1859-67

Wallis, William, miller & corn merchant, Town Mills, 1839-59

Wallis, William, miller & corn factor, Town Mills; residence, Silver Street, 1865

Wallis, William, miller & corn merchant, & agent for Norrington & Co's manure, Town Mills, 1867

Wallis, W & J E, millers, Town Mills, 1871

Wallis & Son, millers, maltsters, corn, manure & slate merchants, Town Mills; & at Charmouth, Axminster & Axmouth, 1875-80

Wallis & Son, millers (water) & maltsters, Town Mills, 1885-95

Wallis, John Edwin, coal & culm merchant, The Cobb, 1875

Wallis & Wallis, coal, brick & tile, lime & timber merchants, Coombe Street, 1880

Wallis & Wallis, coal & timber merchants, Broad Street, 1885-98

Walter, H & J, the bazaar & photographic institute, Broad Street, 1865

Walter, Henry & Jonas, bazaar, photographic institution, stationers & dealers in fancy goods & toys, Broad Street, 1867

Walter, Jonas, bazaar, stationer & dealer in fancy goods, & photographer (75), Broad Street, 1871-80

Walter, Jonas, photographer, bridge Street, 1885

Walters, Thomas, coal dealer, The Cobb, 1839-40

Waring, Henry Franks, solicitor & town clerk, Broad street, 1839-40

Waring, Henry, solicitor, Pound Street, 1842-44

Waring, Henry Frank, solicitor, town clerk, registrar of the Borough court, & hon sec to Gas & Coke Co, Bridge Street, 1848

Waring, Henry, solicitor, Butter Market, 1851

Waring, Henry, solicitor, South Cottage, 1852

Waring, Henry Frank, South Cliff. 1859

Warren, Mrs Elizabeth, Duke of Monmouth coffee tavern, beds & furnished apartments, Coombe Street, 1885

Warren, Robert, Pilot Boat PH, Bridge Street, 1889-1903

Water Works, (Herbert Foxwell, manager), Broad Street, 1898-1903

Watts, Edward, grocer & tea dealer, Broad Street, 1830

Way, Charles, boot & shoemaker, Coombe Street, 1830

Way, Charles, shoemaker, Silver Street, 1839-44

Way, Charles, boot & shoemaker, Sherborne Lane, 1859-75

Wayland, Abraham Booth, grocer, Broad Street, 1851-52

Wearing, S B, miniature painter, Church Street, 1839-40

Webb, George, lime burner, Uplyme, 1839-42

Webb, Mrs Mary, lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1859-67

Webb, John, baker, Bridge Street, 1842-44

Webb, Fanny, milliner & dressmaker, Broad Street, 1851

Webb, William, farmer, Uplyme, 1851

Webb, Thomas, baker & confectioner, Bridge Street, 1848-75

Webb, Miss Eliza, lodging-house, Marine parade, 1885

Webb, Charles, seedsman, & rate collector to the improvement commissioners & assistant overseer. Bridge Street, 1885

Webb, Charles, seedsman, & rate collector to the corporation & assistant overseer, (& parish clerk 1898-1903), Bridge Street, 1889-1903

Webb, Henry J, web manufacturer, 5 Sherborne Lane, 1891-1903

Webb, Isaac, web manufacturer, Sherborne Lane, 1895

Weeden, John Bowden, butcher, Silver Street, 1855

Wellman, Misses Ann & Martha, milliners, Pound Street, 1848

Wellman, Ann & Mary, dressmakers, Pound Street, 1851

Wellman, Ann (Miss), dressmaker, Pound Street, 1855

Wellman, George, tailor, Horse Street, 1885-95

Wellman, George, tailor, 12 Broad Street, 1898-1903

Welsman (Wellman), Miss Annie, milliner, Broad Street, 1875

Welsman, James, blacksmith, Uplyme, 1851

Wescott, James, boot & shoemaker, Broad Street, 1823-28

Wescott, James, shoemaker, Coombe Street, 1830-44

Wescott, James, boot & shoemaker, (accountant & collector of taxes 51-55), (& leather cutting 51), Church Street, 1848-55

Wescott, James Jnr, teacher of phonetic writing, Church Street, 1855

Wescott, Thomas, tailor, Sherborne Lane, 1851

Wescott, Thomas, tailor, Church Street, 1852

Wheadon, John, plumber, glazier & painter, Silver Street, 1875-80

Wheadon, Frederick, painter & glazier, Silver Street, 1885-98

Wheadon, Frederick, painter & glazier, Providence Place, Sherborne Lane, 1903

Wheaton, Thomas, butcher, Uplyme, 1839-40

Wheaton, Thomas, butcher, Broad Street, 1842-44

Wheaton, John Bowden, butcher, Bridge Street, 1851-52

Wheaton, Thomas, butcher (& licensed to let horses & gigs 1865), Bridge Street, 1865-67

Wheaton, Thomas, butcher, Broad Street, 1871

Wheaton, Henry Thomas, butcher, Broad Street, 1875-80

Wheeler, James, blacksmith, Broad Street, 1842-52

Wheller, James, blacksmith, Broad Street, 1855-59

Whetton, Thomas, butcher, Uplyme, 1842-44

Whetton, Thomas, butcher, Bridge Street, 1855-59

Whicker, James, The Cobb Arms, The Cobb, 1848-51

White, Matthew, exciseman, Church Street, 1823-28

White, George, lodging-house, Pound Street, 1859

White, George, lodging-house, Marine Parade, 1865

White, Mrs Harriet, lodging-house, Pound Street, 1867

White, George, Masons Arms, Silver Street, 1871

White, William, coach proprietor, Sherborne Lane, 1859

Whiter, William Brown, apartments & chief officer of coast guards, 4 Cobb Road, 1903

Whitmarsh, Alexander & Co, waggon office, common carriers, Coombe Street, 1839-40

Wild, Alfred, tailor, Monmouth Street, 1875-80

Wild, Francis, tailor, Sherborne Lane, 1885-1903

Williams, Alfred, coach proprietor, Silver Street, 1855

Williams, James, carrier, Bridge Street, 1871

Williams, Richard, carrier, Monmouth Street, 1871

Williams, Richard, Masons Arms, cab proprietor & mail contractor, Silver Street, 1875-80

Williams, Richard, Three Cups Hotel, Broad Street, 1885-89

Willis, J R, gardener & seedsman, Silver street, 1839-40

Willman, A & M, dressmakers, bridge Street, 1839-40

Wills, Francis, manager of the Dorsetshire Bank & treasurer to the improvement commissioners, Broad St, 1885

Wills, Francis, manager of the Dorsetshire Bank & treasurer to the corporation, 54 Broad Street, 1889-1903

Wilson, Walter Harry, Golden Hart Inn, Church Street, 1871

Wilson, William, Golden Hart Inn, Butter Market, 1875

Wilson, Walter, Victoria Inn, Bridge street, 1880

Wilson, Walter & Co (late Brown Brothers), general & furnishing ironmongers, gas & hot water fitters,

bellhangers &c, sole makers of the late Brown Brothers' ranges & automaton roasters,

Broad Street & St Michael's Iron Works, 1889

Wilson, Walter, ironmonger, 29 Broad Street, 1895-1903

Wiscombe, Mark, coach builder, Monmouth Street, 1889

Wiscombe Bros, coach buiders, Monmouth Street, 1895

Wiscombe Bros, coach buiders, Church Street, 1898-1903

Wiscombe, Mrs Jane, Golden Hart PH, 12 Church Street, 1895-1903

Wiscombe, Alban, Victoria PH, Bridge Street, 1898

Wiscombe, Frank, King's Arms PH, Horse Street & china & glass dealer, Butter Market, 1898

Wollaston, Richard Gulston, physician & surgeon, Broad Street, 1875

Wood, Eliza, straw hat maker, Bridge Street, 1830-40

Wood, Miss K, milliner, Broad Street, 1848

Wood, Eliza, milliner & dressmaker, Coombe Street, 1852

Wood, George, carpenter & joiner, Bridge Street, 1839-40

Wood, George, carpenter & builder, Mill Green, 1842-44

Wood, George, carpenter & builder, Broad Street, 1848

Wood, George, carpenter & builder, George Square, 1851

Wood, George, carpenter & builder, Coombe Street, 1852

Wood, Samuel, carpenter, Monmouth Street, 1867-71

Wood, John, shoemaker, Bridge street, 1830-44

Wood, Mrs Amelia, boot & shoemaker, Butter Market, 1848-51

Wood, Amelia, boot & shoemaker, Church Street, 1852

Wood, Mrs Ann, Crown & Anchor, Sherborne Lane, 1848-59

Wood, Miss Ann, laundress, Silver Street, 1859

Wood, Miss Jane, laundress, Silver Street, 1865

Wood, Mrs Jane, laundress, Monmouth Street, 1867-75

Wood, Miss Jane, laundress, Mill Green, 1880-89

Wood, Thomas, master mariner, Sherborne Lane, 1867-75

Wood, Thomas, master mariner, The Cobb, 1880

Wood, William, pleasure boat owner, Bridge Street, 1867-71

Wood, Frederick Norman, watch & clock maker, Silver Street, 1895-98

Wood, Miss Mary Ann, apartments, 1 Ozone Terrace, 1898

Wood, Mrs Mary Ann, apartments, 5 Ozone Terrace, 1903

Woodman, George, carrier & shopkeeper, Monmouth Street, 1875

Woodman, George, Golden Hart, Monmouth Street, 1880 (site of Golden hart?)

Woodman, George, farmer, Church Street, 1885-1903

Woodrow, George, pleasure boat owner, Monmouth Street, 1875

Woodrow, George, pleasure boat owner, Church Street, 1880-98 Woods, Thomas N, painter & glazier, George Square, 1851

Wright, William Bennett, boot & shoemaker, Broad Street, 1830-44

Wright, William Bennett & Son, boot & shoemaker, Broad Street, 1851-52

Wright, Jabez, boot & shoemaker, Broad Street, 1855-80

Wright, William, bootmaker & chief constable to the Borough court, Broad Street, 1848

Wright, William Bennett, chief constable, Broad Street, 1852-59

Wright, William Bennett, sergeant of mace, Broad Street, 1867

Young, William, butcher, Horse Street, 1839-40

Young, William, higgler, Church Street, 1855

Young, William, dairyman, Church Street, 1859-65

Young, William, grocer, Church Street, 1867-71

Young, William, grocer, Church Street, 1885

Young, William, grocer & agent for W & A Gilbey, wine & spirit merchants, Church Street, 1889

Young, William, carman, Church Street, 1875-80

#### **Taverns and Public Houses**

Albert Hotel, Coombe Street Jos Garland, 1851-52

John Brown, 1855 Mrs Sarah Brown, 1859

Angel Inn, Horse Street/Mill Green Joseph Lakey, 1823-28

Sarah Domett, 1830 Henry Chappel, 1840 Mary Chappell, 1842-44 William Swain, 1848-75 Mark Lawton Jun, 1889-95 Mrs Elizabeth Lawton, 1898

Black Dog, Uplyme Gabriel Hellier, 1851-52

Brown's Hotel, Broad Street James Brown, 1823-28

The Cobb Arms James Whicker, 1848-51

Robert Holmes, 1852-55 John Fewings, 1859 Thomas Holmes, 1865 Frederick Boon, 1867 Jonathan Abbott, 1871-89 James Charles, 1895 Thomas Searle, 1898-1903

The Cobb Hotel Thomas Walker, 1823-30

James Cleal, 1839-40 John Cleall, 1842-51 James Cleal, 1852 George Hellier, 1855 Samuel Nutman, 1859 Robert Bishop, 1865-67

Crown Inn, Coombe Street John Slade, 1839-52

Mrs Mary Slade, 1855-59 Charles Ball Jnr, 1867 William Dare, 1871

Mrs Mary Ann Dare, 1875-80

William Love, 1889 John French, 1903

Crown & Anchor, Sherborne Lane Mrs Ann Wood, 1848-59

The Dove, Silver Street John Doutch, 1839-40

Mary Doutch, 1842-71

George Inn, George Court Sarah Swaine, 1823-28

Richard Fowler, 1830 James Reynolds, 1839-4

George Inn, Horse Street James Dollin, 1851-52

Francis Gordge, 1855 William Gardner, 1865-67 John Austin, 1871-75 John Lovelace, 1880-85

Francis William Newberry, 1889

Henry Bondy, 1895-98

George Inn, 16 Coombe Street Henry Bondy, 1903

Golden Hart, Church Street/Butter Market Samuel Osborn (Osborne), 1823-28

James Walker, 1830 Richard Fowler, 1839-44 Thomas Bedford, 1848 William Randall, 1851-52 William Parsons, 1855 James Tomblings, 1859 Mrs Tomblings, 1865-67 Walter Harry Wilson, 1871 William Wilson, 1875 George Woodman, 1880 Matthew Quick, 1885

Mrs Jane Wiscombe, 1895-1903

Golden Lion Hotel, Broad Street Richard Foss, 1848

Grape Tavern, Broad Street Mrs Selina Singleton, 1855-59

Hunter's Arms Thomas Flood, Uplyme, 1840

Hunter's Lodge William Webb, Uplyme, 1830

William Shepherd, Uplyme, 1842-44 James Brockway, Uplyme, 1851-52

King's Arms, Coombe Street Joseph Lakey, 1830-44

Coles, Robert, 1848 John Brown, 1851-52 John Gush, 1867-75 Mrs Jane Gush, 1880-89 Frank Wiscombe, 1898 Frederick Bowden, 1903

London Inn, Church Street Henry Sansom, 1880-98

Masons Arms, Silver Street James Tucker, 1830

Robert Follett, 1839-44 John Fowler, 1848-59 James Parker, 1865

Alfred Hyde George White, 1871

Richard Williams, 1875-80

John Pitman, 1885 George Hodder, 1889 William Hounsell, 1895-98 John Loveridge, 1903

New Inn, Broad Street John Urquhart, 1823-28 (Excise office)

James Urguart, Broad Street, 1830

Daniel Board, 1839 John Horsford, 1842-44

Thomas Miller, 1848-52 (commercial & posting)

Robert Hawker, 1859

Daniel Chubb, 1865 (mail contractor)

William Bond, 1871 William Huxford, 1875 Henry Spencer, 1880-85 Mrs Sarah Spencer, 1889 William G Cornish, 1895-98

Old Inn, Sherborne Lane Benjamin G Hutchings, 1871

Pilot Boat, Bridge Street William Domett, 1823-30

Thomas Miller, 1839-44 George Budden, 1848 Thomas Sansom, 1851-52 Robert Backholer, 1859 George Hibbs, 1865-80 Arthur Palmer Beer, 1885 Robert Warren, 1889-1903

Red Lion Inn, Church Street Frederick Hawker, 1871

William Huxford, 1895 Frederick Crabb, 1898

Lion, Broad Street William Kerridge, 1823-28

James Pidgeon. 1830 Thomas Swan, 1839-44

Royal Lion Hotel, Broad Street William Thorn, 1859

Richard Foulkes, 1865-67 John Grove, 1871-1903

Royal Standard, The Cobb Standard Inn, The Cobb Royal Standard, The Cobb William Homyer, 1871 Charles Burt, 1881 Mary A Loveless, 1891

Ship Inn, Horse Street George Horner, 1839-44

James Dollin, 1848 Richard Real, 1852 Robert Gush, 1851-67 Mrs Ann Gush, 1871-75 John Newberry, 1880

Francis William Newberry, 1885

Samuel Blackmore, 1889 George W Osment, 1895-98

Talbot Arms, Uplyme William Randall, 1840-44

Charles Randel, 1851-52

Three Cups Hotel, Broad Street

William Underhill, 1830 (commercial hotel & posting house)

Mrs Mary Hetherington (Cups Hotel), 1848

William Foss, 1851-52 (posting house & inland revenue office) Thomas Miller, 1855-71 (posting house & inland revenue office)

George Lakeman (Cups Hotel), 1880

Richard Williams, 1889 Alfred Fry, 1895-98

Victoria, Coombe/Bridge Street George Harvey, 1839-44

Mary Harvey, 1848-52 Mrs Mary Harvey, 1855-59 John Jerrard, 1871-75 Walter Wilson, 1880 Mrs Anna Brown, 1885-89 Frederick Hawker, 1895 Alban Wiscombe, 1898 Frederick Davis, 1903

White Horse, Bridge Street Thomas Brown, 1839-44

#### Parish Clerk

William Manfield, 1875 John Harding, Bridge Street, 1885-89

## **Post Office**

Mrs Elizabeth Lock, postmistress, Horse/Coombe Street, 1823-52 Richard Sellers, postmaster, Broad Street, 1855-59 Mrs Eliza Sellers, postmistress, Broad Street, 1865-71 Frederick Norman Sellers, Broad Street, 1875-89 Miss Emma Jerrard, postmistress, 1895-1903

In 1903 wall letter boxes were found at Church Street, Cobb, Pound Road, Uplyme road, Yawl, Harcombe and Sidmouth Road.

# **Cottage Hospital**

Cottage Hospital, Sherborne Lane -

Mrs Harriett Neal, matron, 1885

Cottage Hospital, Sidmouth Road -

Miss A Carter, matron, 1889

Miss Eger, matron, 1895

Robert William Hillman & Zachary Edwards, hon secs, 1889-95

Jubilee Cottage Hospital, Church Street -

Miss Adelaide Bourne, matron, 1898

Miss Harriet Coombes, matron, 1903

Capt W E Cookson RN, hon secretary, 1898

ATM Bond, hon sec, 1903

# Corporation

## Mayors

John Swaine Hooke, Broad Street, 1848
George Roberts, Broad Street, 1855
Frederick Hinton Esq, Broad Street, 1859
Frederick Hinton Esq, 1865
Samuel Osborn, Marine Parade, 1867
Henry Henley Esq, 1871
David Shorter Skinner Esq, Silver Street, 1875
Levi John Maeer, Broad Street, 1880
Henry Henley, Broad Street, 1885
Zachary Edwards Esq, 1889
G Osborn, 1895
H O Bickley, 1997-98
J R C Talbot JP, 1903

#### Aldermen

James W Marder, Broad Street, 1848
Robert Hillman, The Grove, 1848-67
J Drayton, Broad Street, 1848-55
George Roberts, Broad Street, 1848-55
Frederick Edward Bourne Esq, Silver Street, 1859-65
Lieut John George Sarsfield McNamara Moore, RN, Stile House, 1859
John George Moore, 1865
William May, Bridge Street, 1867

Charles Brown, 1867
Henry Henley Esq, Broad Street, 1871-98
Frederic Hinton Esq, Broad Street, 1871-75
John Farnham, Broad Street, 1880-85
Edward Brown, 1867-71, Broad Street
Samuel Osborn Esq, 1865-95
David Shorter Skinner Esq, Marine Parade, 1875-80
Lt Col A B Brandram, St Michael's House, 1885
William Porter, 1889
Zachary Edwards, 1889-98
W Randall, 1895
G Osborn, 1897-1903
H O Bickley, 1897-1903
S Harris, 1903
G J Rendall, 1903

#### **Town Councillors**

George Cartwright, Cliff Cottage, 1848 John Rendall, The Cobb, 1848 R Walker, Bridge Street, 1848 William Hingeston, Sidmouth Road, 1848 Robert Holmes, Silver Street, 1848 James Munden, Bridge Street, 1848 Thomas Jerrard, Broad Street, 1848 Joseph Brown, Broad Street, 1848 Samuel Osborne, Horse Street, 1848 John Sellers, Broad Street, 1848 Henry Jefferd, Balls Lym, 1855 William Wallis, Town Mills, 1855, 1859, 1865, 1867 F E Bourne, Silver Street, 1855 Sir Henry Bayly, KH, Burley Villa, 1855 R C Walker, The Cobb, 1855, 1859 Eli Fowler, The Cobb, 1855, 1859, 1865 J S Hooke, The Cobb, 1855 Edward Brown, Broad Street, 1855, 1859, 1865 Joseph Penny, Broad Street, 1855 T B Goddard, Cheltenham, 1855 John Jerrard, Horse Street, 1848 J Jerrard Jnr, Horse Street, 1855, 1859, 1865, 1867 Henry Marder, Broad Street, 1855, 1859 Henry Henley, Broad Street, 1859, 1865, 1867 Henry Munden, Bridge Street, 1859, 1865, 1867 James Farnham, Broad Street, 1859, 1865, 1867, 1871 Frederick Hinton Esq, Broad Street, 1859, 1865, 1867 Richard Whitehouse Esq, Portland Cottage, 1859 Mr William May, Bridge Street, 1859 Richard Dixon, 1865 Andrew Tucker, Charmouth, 1867 Mark Lawton, 1865 Robert Pidgeon, 1865, 1867 Robert Cox Walker. 1865 William Langford, Coombe Street, 1871, 1875 Charles Otton Snell, Broad Street, 1871-89

Thomas Miller, 1871

Robert Radford Broad Street, 1871, 1875

Jonas Walter, Broad Street, 1871, 1875

Richard R Lavers, 1867-71

John Harding, 1867-71

Henry Tucker, Butter Market, 1867

Henry Tucker JP, Spring Cottage, Uplyme Road, 1871, 1875

Eli Dollin, Coombe Street, 1871, 1875, 1880, 1889

Samuel England, 1871

Daniel Chubb, 1871

Charles Brown, Broad Street, 1867, 1875, 1880, 1889

Walter Banfield Wallis, Stile House (Style House), Sidmouth Road, 1875-89

Captain Vere Temple Bayly, 1875

Alfred Chapman, Broad Street, 1875

John Edwin Wallis, Silver Street, 1875

William Porter, The Cobb, 1880-85

Frederick E Dollin. The Cobb. 1880-85

John William Preston, Stile Lane (Style), 1880

John Grove, Broad Street, 1880

George Haycraft, Broad Street, 1880

Henry Miller, Marine Parade, 1880-85

William Mansfield, 1880-89

Eli Dollin, The Cobb, 1885

George Boon, Coombe Street, 1885

Henry Octavius Bickley, Broad Street, 1885-95

Gaius Osborn, Marine Parade, 1885

Henry Randall, 1885-89

John E Wallis, Broad Street, 1885

Mark Lawton, 1889-98

Edward Baker, 1889-1903

Francis Radford, 1889 & 1903

William Robert Rugg, 1889, 1895

John Gold Philpot, 1889

Frederick Norman Sellers, 1889

W Down, 1895

Samuel Harris, 1895-98

D Hooper, 1895

Harry Lane, 1895

W Darby, 1895-98

George John Randall, 1895-98

Edwin Henry Wallis, 1895-98

J G Loud, 1895

R Wallis, 1895

Herbert Love, 1898

Ralph Restrick, 1898-1903

William G Cornish, 1898

Josiah Mansfield, 1898

Edward Radford, 1898, Edmund Radford, 1903

William Robert Rugg, 1898

F Bucknole, 1903

James O'Neil, 1903

J R C Talbot, 1903

George Henley, 1903

Douglas Chapman, 1903

W J Froom, 1903

F Mathew, 1903 Clifford Sanders, 1903

The Corporation (1895-1903) meet at the Town Hall every Monday at 11am.

## **Town Clerk**

Mr Henry Frank Waring, 1848 George Hingeston, 1855-67 Robert William Hillman, 1871 (and Cobb Master) Robert William Hillman Esq, 1875-80 Matthew Colbeck Preston, Pound Street, 1889-1903

## Clerk to Urban Sanitary Authority

Daniel Channon, Horse Street, 1881 Matthew Colbeck Preston, Pound Street, 1889-95

#### Treasurer

W H Williams & Co, bankers, 1865 Francis Wills, Broad Street, 1889-1903

## **Member of Parliament**

William Pinney Esq, Berkeley Square, 1855 Col William Pinney, Berkeley Square, 1859

# **Borough Magistrates**

Frederick Hinton Esq, 1875 Henry Tucker Esq, 1875-85 Col Jonathan Fowler, 1875, 1880 John Mitchell Esq, 1875 Capt Charles Cooper Bennett RN, 1875 Edward Overton Lee Esq, 1875, 1880 David Shorter Skinner, 1880 Lt Col Andrew Babbs Brandram, St Michael's House, 1885 Alfred J Chalmers, New Road, 1885-98 Zachary Edwards, Broad Street, 1889 Zachary Edwards, New Road, 1895-98 Zachary Edwards, 7 The Cobb, 1903 Henry Henley, Broad Street, 1880-98 Newall, George Fergus, The Grove, Pound Street, 1885-98 Samuel Osborn, Marine Parade, 1880, 1885, 1889, 1895 John Gold Philpot, Morley Cottage, 1889, 1895 Walter B Wallis, Summerhill, 1889-98 Henry O Bickley, Broad Street, 1898-1903 Gaius Osborn, 5 Marine Parade, 1898-1903

Clerk to Borough Magistrates

George Hingeston Esq. 1865-67

Robert William Hillman Esq, 1875-95 Arthur Thomas Mallock Bond, 1898-1903

Borough Petty Sessions (1885-1903) are held at the Town Hall, every Wednesday at 11am.

#### **Banks**

Bridport Branch Bank, Broad Street

Gundry & Co, branch of Bridport, Broad Street Gundry & Co Bridport Bank Branch, Broad Street

Dorsetshire Branch Bank, Broad Street Williams, Cox & Co, Broad Street, 1842-44

Dorsetshire Branch Bank, R & H Williams, Broad Street Dorsetshire Branch Bank, R & H Williams, Broad Street

Dorsetshire Branch Bank, R & H Williams, Broad Street Dorsetshire Bank (branch), R & R Williams, Broad Street

Wilts & Dorset Bank, 54 Broad Street Lyme Regis Savings Bank, Broad Street

Savings Bank, Uplyme Savings Bank, Colway Tything

Savings Bank, Upper Lyme Road

Savings Bank, St Andrews, Upper Lyme Road

caringo barin, etrinarente, epper byme rtead

Savings Bank, Dorsetshire Bank, Broad Street Savings Bank, Wilts & Dorset Bank, Broad St

Drayton & Son, 1840

James Edwards, agent, 1830 John Drayton & Son, 1842-44

James Edwards & Co, managers, 1839-40

John Swaine Hooke Esq, manager, 1848-52

William James Atkins, manager, 1855-75

Francis Wills, manager, 1885-95

Francis Wills, manager, 1898-1903

Messrs Drayton & Son, treasurers, 1839-40

Charles Bennett, secretary, 1842-44 Charles C Bennett, actuary, 1848-52

Capt Bennett, actuary; John Drayton Esq, treasurer, 1855

Capt Bennett, actuary & treasurer, 1859-65

Capt Charles Bennett RN, actuary & treasurer, 1867-71

(open every other Friday from 12)

Francis Wills, actuary, 1885 Francis Wills, actuary, 1898

#### **Insurance Agents**

British (fire)

Accidental Death W J Atkins, Broad Street, 1859-80
Albert Life J W Marder, Broad Street, 1867

Atlas, Fire & Life John Chump (Champ), Broad Street, 1839-40

Joseph Penny (Penny & Sons), Broad Street, 1842-59

R Radford Jnr, Broad Street, 1859-75 James Edwards, Church Street, 1823-28

James Edwards, Broad Street, 1830

British Empire J H Frean, The Cobb, 1855 Caledonian Fire & Life C O Snell, Broad Street, 1867-75

Church of England (fire & life)

Edwin Hooke, George Street, 1851

H Henley, Broad Street, 1867-75

Commercial Union (fire & life) L J Macer (*Maaer*), Broad Street, 1867-75

W H Burge, High Street, 1880-89

County (fire) & Provident (life) Samuel Osborn, Monmouth Street, 1830

Daniel Dunster, Broad Street, 1840-59 F Dunster, Broad Street, 1867-89

Crown Fire & Life Richard Fowler, Church Street, 1839-40 Eagle, Fire & Life Henry Marder, Broad Street, 1859-67

Economic Life J Mansfield, 1880-89

Farmers' Fire & Life Henry Locke, Broad Street, 1848-55
General Fire & Life Edward Thornton, Broad Street, 1848-89
General Provident Life Edward Thornton, Broad Street, 1867

Guardian Fire & Life H Locke, Broad Street, 1867

Indisputable (life) William Bennett, Bridge Street, 1851

Kent Mutual (fire) Edward Moore, Horse Street, 1851

Legal & Commercial (fire & life) Richard Sellers, Broad Street, 1851-52 Liverpool & London Fire & Life James Stone, Broad Street, 1859

Liverpool & London & Globe E Greenfield, Cliff Cottage & T Parrett, Monmouth Street, 1875

E H Wallis, Chatham House, Broad Street, 1885 E H Wallis, Holmcroft, Broad Street, 1889

London & Westminster Edward Ensor, Broad Street, 1842-44

London Assurance Thomas Brown, 1867

C Brown, 1875

London Assurance Corporation HH Radford, Monmouth House, 1885

Manchester Fire Richard Bragge Lavers, Broad Street, 1859

Richard Sellers, Broad Street, 1859

J Wescott, 1859

A Lawes, Broad Street, 1867

Medical, Invalid & General James Marder, Broad Street, 1852-59

Merchants' & Tradesmen's Mutual (life) Henry Henley, Broad Street, 1851-52 Minerva Life James Potter, High Cliff, 1852

W J Atkins, Broad Street, 1859

Northern Assurance J E Wallis, 1889

Norwich Union Fire & Life Henry Jefford, Bridge Street, 1823-40

Theophilus Bartlett Goddard, Bridge Street, 1842-52

Frederick Hinton, Broad Street, 1855 William Bennett, Broad Street, 1859-80

H Miller, Marine Parade, 1889 William May, Bridge Street, 1851-67

Phoenix (fire & life) William May, Bridge Street, 1851-67
Miss E May, Bridge Street, 1875

F T Dowdeswell, Dorsetshire Bank, 1880 Francis Wills, Dorsetshire Bank, 1885-89 Joseph Mansfield, Church Street, 1851

Professional (life) Joseph Mansfield, Church Street, 1851

Promoter Henry Locke, 1859

Protestant Dissenters' Fire & Life Edward Thornton, Butter Market, 1839-40

Provident Life F Dunster, Broad Street, 1867-89

Provincial (Welsh) John Janson, 1859

Prudential W Neale, Church Street, 1875

Railway Passengers' H Miller, 1875

Reliance Life W J Atkins, Dorsetshire Bank, 1875-80

Royal Fire & Life James Davy, 1859

J Farnham, Broad Street, 1867-75

Royal Exchange, Fire & Life Samuel Harvey, Coombe Street, 1823-30

John Jerrard, Horse Street, 1851 J Jerrard, Coombe Street, 1859-67 J Farnham, Broad Street, 1875-80

G Haycraft, 1885

J S Turner, The Bazaar, Broad Street, 1889

Henry Locke, Broad Street, 1851-52 Francis Wills, Dorsetshire Bank, 1885-89

Scottish Amicable (life) Harry Hooke, Broad Street, 1851-52

Soverign (Sovereign) Life C Snell, 1875

Royal Farmers (fire & life)

Standard Life W J Atkins, Broad Street, 1867-80

W B, Wallis, 1885-89

Star (fire & life) James Wescott, Church Street, 1851-55

James Stone, Broad Street, 1859

Sun Fire & Life Thomas Beere, Church Street, 1830 Hillman & Waring, Broad street, 1839-40 Robert Hillman, Church Street, 1842-52 John S Hooke, Broad Street, 1848-51 Robert Hillman, The Grove, 1855-67 Robert C Walker, The Cobb, 1859-67

R W Hillman, Bow House & J W Marder, Broad Street, 1875

R W Hillman, Bow House, 1880 R W Hillman, Broad Street, 1889

United Kingdom Life United Kingdom Provident Institution United Kingdom Temperance & General

United Kingdom, fire

West of England (fire & life)

Edward Moore, Coombe/Horse Street, 1848-59

Edward Thornton, Broad Street, 1859-65

E Thornton, 1859

E Thornton, Broad Street, 1867-75 Peter A Burrell, Church Street, 1823-28 John Drayton & Son, Broad Street, 1830-52

F Hinton, 1867-75

Courtenay Harry, 1885-89

Mr H Radford, Broad Street, 1859-75 H Radford, Monmouth House, 1885

Edwin George Hooke, Broad Street, 1848

H Radford, Monmouth House, 1889

J H Fowler, Uplyme, 1875

Westminster & General Fire & Life

Westminster Life Westminster Fire Whittington Life

#### **Public Establishments**

## Custom House, The Cobb:

Collector John Chambers, 1830

George Holland, 1839-44 Frederick Swatman, 1848 William Argent, 1851-52 William Dear, 1855 George Clayton, 1859-67 David Lennox, 1871 William Gray Esq, 1875-80

Comptroller William Pomroy Daniel, 1830

Silas Davey, 1839-44 Thomas Fanning, 1848 Richard William Jones, 1852

William Dear, 1855 Henry A Hunt, 1859

Landing waiter Silas Davey, 1839-40 (This might be Cyrus Davie)

William Wood, 1848 Charles T Wood, 1855

Tide waiter John Freeman, 1848

William Wood, 1852 Henry A Hunt, 1855 William Paramour, 1859

Agent Charles Budd, 1852

Assistant examing officer Richard Hayward, 1865-75

W P Scovell, 1880

Outdoor officer Thomas Bailey, 1865

Principal coast officer John W Crocker, 1885

## Coastguard Station, The Cobb:

Inspecting commander Capt J B Willoughby RN, 1852-59

Capt Charles Nichols RN, 1865 Capt Richmond Moore RN, 1867 Capt A F Luttreil (Luttrell) RN, 1871

Capt G S Graves RN, 1875 Capt John Patten RN, 1880 Patrick Mahoney, 1885-95 Frederick Elton, 1898 Lieut Audrey W Howe, 1903

In command of station Lieut C Knighton RN, 1855-59

J W Lowe RN, 1865

Lieut William Hallam Elton RN, 1867 Lieut George Arrowsmith RN, 1871

Chief officer John Jones, 1875

Joseph Hyde, 1880-85 William Nickells, 1889-98 William B Whiter, 1903

Chief boatman - William Otto, 1871

Excise Office Golden Hart, Church Street, 1840

Golden Hart, Butter Market, 1848; William Crees, officer, Sherborne Lane

John Baker, supervisor, Bridport

Miller's Cups Hotel, 1855-65

#### Stamp Office, Broad Street

John Champ, 1840-44
Penny & Sons, 1848
Caroline Peterson Champ, distributor, 1851-52
John Baptist Ansaldi, 1855
Miss Caroline Champ, sub-distributor, 1848-55
James Davy, 1859
L J Maeer, distributor, 1865-80
Frederick N Sellers, Post Office, distributor, 1885-89
Miss Emma Jerrard, Post Office, Broad Street, distributor, 1895-98

## Gas works, Church Street

Edward Brown & Son, proprietors, 1859-65 Brown Brothers, proprietors, Church Street, 1871-80 W B Wallis, proprietor, 1885-95 W B Wallis, proprietor, Gas & range Company, 1898

#### Waterworks

Henry Munden, proprietor, Bridge Street, 1859-65 Edward Foxwell, manager, Bridge Street, 1885 Herbert Foxwell, manager, Bridge Street, 1889-95 (Broad Street in 1895)

## Cemetery

James Carter, sexton, The Lodge, Charmouth Road, 1859-80 Thomas Hains, sexton, The Lodge, 1885-1903

Mechanics' Institute, Bridge Street, 1848

Working Men's Institute, Bridge Street

Secretaries: Walter Hardy, 1895 Tom Longford, 1898 John S Turner, 1903

Commercial Reading Room, Butter Market, 1848

## Assembly Rooms

Assembly & Subscription Reading Rooms, Bridge Street, 1848

Assembly, News & Billiard rooms, Broad Street, 1852

Assembly & Subscription Reading Rooms, Broad Street: Manager, James Carter, 1855

William Bennett, 1859

Assembly & Subscription Reading Rooms, Broad Street, 1867-71

Assembly Rooms, 1875

Assembly Rooms, Patrick Henery, keeper, 1889

Lyme Regis Club, Assembly Rooms, Broad Street Robert William Hillman, secretary, 1875-80

M C Preston, hon sec, 1885-89 A J Chalmers, hon sec, 1895

A T M Bond Esq, hon sec, 1898-1903 George Roper, caretaker, 1898-1903

<u>Lyme Regis Conservative Club</u>, Broad Street - Henry R Morgan, secretary, 1889

Lyme Regis Liberal Club, Broad Street - Francis Radford, secretary, 1889

Tradesmen's Subscription Reading Room, 8am-10pm, 1867

Town Hall, Butter Market, 1885

Guildhall, Bridge Street - James Irish, keeper, 1852

Market House, Bridge Street - Richard Wood, collector, 1852

<u>Inland Revenue Office</u> Miller's Cups Hotel, 1867

Royal Lion Hotel, 1875-80

Lifeboat Station, The Cobb Thomas Bradley, Coxswain, 1867-95

Albert Crabb, 1898

Robert Abbott, coxswain, 1903

Police Station, Horse Street Samuel Lee, sergeant in charge, 1865

Thomas Hitch, sergeant in charge, 1875 Alfred Wills, sergeant in charge, 1880

Joseph Marsh, sergeant in charge, & 2 constables, 1885 William Sprackling, sergeant in charge, & 2 constables, 1889 George Hann, sergeant in charge, & 2 constables, 1895 Henry Sprackling, sergeant in charge, & 2 constables, 1898

<u>Police Station</u>, Coombe Street Henry William Battrick, sergeant in charge & 2 constables, 1903

Masonic Hall Royal Lion Hotel, 1867-95

Masonic Hall, Broad Street, 1898-1903

Lyme Telegraph Company office. Broad Street F Dunster, agent, 1867

#### **Volunteers**

Dorset 1<sup>st</sup> Volunteer Artillery R F Hay Esq, captain commanding, 1875

Edwin Wallis Esq, captain commanding, 1880

Dorset 1<sup>st</sup> Artillery Volunteers (15<sup>th</sup> Battery) Capt Edwin H Wallis, commanding, 1885

Dorset Artillery Volunteer Library & Reading Room, Coombe Street Henry Bondy, librarian, 1885

Dorset 2<sup>nd</sup> Volunteer Brigade Southern Division Royal Artillery (No 3 Battery)

Major Edwin H Wallis, commanding, Coombe Street, 1889

Francis Thomas, serg-instructor, 1889

1st Dorsetshire Artillery, Southern Division, Royal Artillery (No 3 Battery) - Drill Hall, Butter Market, 1895

John C R Talbot, Captain commanding, 1895

Surg-Lieut Richard Bangay MD, medical officer, 1895

Francis Thomas, sergeant-instructor, Coombe Street, 1895

A T M Bond, Lieut commanding, 1898

Vol (Dorset) Brigade, Southern Division RA - Sergeant Major Frederick Britton, 1898

1st Dorsetshire Royal Garrison Artillery (Volunteers) (No.3 Co.) - Drill Hall, Butter market, 1903

Capt A T M Bond, 1903

Rev W Jacob, acting chaplain, 1903

Sergt-Major Frederick Britton, drill instructor, 1903

## **Public Officers**

Medical Officer of Health Richard Bangay MD, Belmont House, 1889-95

James Spurr MRCS, St Heliers, Silver Street, 1898

James Spurr MRCS, Colway Cottage, 1903

## Burrough Surveyor & Inspector of Nuisances & of Common Lodging Houses

John Jerrard, The Cobb, 1889 Elam Sprackling, 1895-1903

Inspector of Weights & Measures Joseph Marsh, Horse Street, 1885

William Sprackling, Horse Street, 1889 George Hann, Horse Street, 1895

Richard Churchill Sherborne, Horse Street, 1898-1903

Charles Webb, Bridge Street, 1889-1903

School Attendance Committee

Clerk R W Hillman, 1885

School Attendance Officer George Legg, Silver Street, 1889-98

Admiralty Surgeon & Agent

Richard Bangay MD, Belmount House, Pound Street, 1889-95 Harry Joseph Cooper MB, BCCantab, MRCSEng, LRCPLond, Belmont, 1898-1903

Assessor & collector of Queen's Taxes John Harding, 1867-80

Francis Radford, Broad Street, 1885-98

Assessor & collector of King's taxes for Lyme, Colway & Charmouth

Robert Henry Hazzard, Charmouth, 1903

Assistant overseer & collector of Poor Rates W Manfield (*Mansfield*), 1867-75

Charles Webb, Bridge Street, 1880-1903

Admiralty Surgeon & Agent & Certifying Factory Surgeon William Hingeston, Pound Street, 1885

Medical Officer (certifying Factory Surgeon 1889-95), Lyme Regis district, Axminster Union, & Medical Officer of Health, North Division, Axminster rural sanitary district

Daniel O'Brien LRCP Edin, Sherborne Lane, 1885-89 James Spurr MRCS Eng, LSA & BA, Broad Street, 1895 James Spurr MRCS Eng, LSA & BA, St Heliers, Silver Street, 1898

<u>Certifying Factory Surgeon, Medical Officer, Lyme Regis District, Axminster Union, & Medical Officer of Health for the borough of Lyme Regis</u>

James Spurr MRCS Eng, LSA & BA, Colway Cottage, 1903

Clerk to Burial Board Robert Hillman Esq, 1865

Henry P Landon, 1885

Charles Webb, Charmouth Road, 1889-19

Registrar to Burial Board Daniel Channon, Horse Street, 1881

<u>Clerk to the Turnpike Trustees</u>
Clerk to the Turnpike & Harbour Trustees
G Hingeston, 1867
R W Hillman, 1875

Clerk to Harbour Trustees

Robert William Hillman Esq, 1865-67

W J Atkins, 1880

R W Hillman, Broad Street, 1885

Matthew C Preston, Pound Street, 1889-1903

## Commissioners to administer Oaths In Chancery & all the Law Courts

F Hinton & R W Hillman, 1867-75

Commissioner for taking Acknowledgments of Married Women

R Hillman, 1867 F Hinton, 1867-75

## Improvement Commissioners or Urban Sanitary Authority (1885)

Board day every alternate Tuesday at the Guildhall at 11 am.

Treasurer to the Improvement Commissioners

Collector to Improvement Commissioners

The Vicar, Alfred J Chalmers, James Farnham, Henry Henley, Robert Hodder, George F Newall, Samuel Osborn, Lt Col A B Brandram, Eli Dollin, George, William Hingeston, Albion Lavers, Henry Osborn, Edwin Henry Wallis & Walter B Wallis.

Clerk to the Lyme Improvement Commissioners Robert William Hillman, 1865-67

F Hinton, 1875

Daniel Channon, 1880

Henry Palmer Landon, Bridge Street, 1885

Francis Wills, Broad Street, 1885

H Radford, 1865

Henry Radford & Charles Webb, 1880 Charles Webb, Bridge Street, 1885

Medical Officer to Improvement Commissioners David Shorter Skinner, 1880

Richard Bangay MD, Bridge Street, 1885

Inspector to Improvement Commissioners

John Jerrard, The Cobb, 1880-85

<u>Collector of Harbour Dues</u> William Bennett, 1865-67

Robert Hodder, Horse Street, 1875-80

Cobb Warden & Collector of Harbour Dues William Rugg Snr, The Cobb, 1889-98

William Robert Rugg, The Cobb, 1903

Collector of Gas C Brown, 1867

Harbour Master Robert Hodder, Horse Street, 1865-80

Robert Hodder, The Cobb, 1885 (also, Collector of harbour Dues)

Inspector of Common Lodging Houses & of Weights & Measures H Batty, Horse Street, 1867

Thomas Hitch, 1875 Alfred Wills, 1880

Inspector of Common Lodging Houses John Jerrard, The Cobb, 1885

<u>Inspector of Weights & Measures</u>

Joseph Marsh, Horse Street, 1885

Inspector of Nuisances H Batty, Horse Street, 1867

John Jerrerd, Bridge Street, 1875-80 John Jerrard, The Cobb, 1885

Registrar of Births & Deaths for Lyme District

<u>& Registrar of Marriages for the Axminster District</u> Edward Thornton, Broad Street, 1865-89

Frederick Dunster, deputy, Broad Street, 1889

Frederick Dunster, Broad Street, 1895

Registrar of Births & Deaths for Lyme Sub-district & Registrar of Marriages for the Axminster Sub-district

Of the Axminster Union Edward John Coombes, Broad Street, 1898-1903

<u>Stamp Distributor</u> Miss Emma Jerrard, Post Office, Broad Street, 1898-1903

<u>Treasurer of Turnpike Trust</u> William James Atkins, Dorsetshire Bank, 1875

Assistant Examining Officer of Customs Richard Hayward, The The Cobb, 1875

Surrogate for Granting Marriage Licences T F A P Hodges DCL, 1867-80

Town Crier William Lucas, 1865

William Legg, Silver Street, 1875-89 George Legg, Silver Street, 1895-98 George Legg, 16 & 17 Silver Street, 1903

Sergeants-at-Mace William Bennett Wright, Broad Street, 1867

John Stoward & George Legg, 1875, 1880, 1889

Harry Long & George Legg, 1895 George Legg & George Long, 1898 George Legg & George Govier, 1903

Bill Poster W Lucas, Butter Market, 1867

# **Places of Worship**

## St Michael's Parish Church

Vicars Rev Frederick Parry Hodges, DCL, 1848-80

Rev G H P Barlow MA, 1885 Rev Charles Myers MA, 1889

Rev Charles Rowland Haydock Hill MA, 1895 Rev Edward Floyer Noel Smith MA, 1898

Rev William Jacob MA, 1903

Curates Rev Hugh Bennett, 1848

Rev Harvey W Brookes, 1855 Rev John Curgenven BA, 1865-80 Rev D B Montefiore BA, 1885

Rev Percival Allen Constable Ellis MA, Rev George Walter Otton MA, 1889

Rev George Cyril Hutchings BA, 1889

Rev Charles Walter Balleine, 1895 Rev Robert Stephenson Weallens BA, 1898 Rev John Anthony Sturton BA, 1903

#### Poulett House Chapel Rev Edward Peek MA, 1885-98

Daily, 6pm & (except Wed & Fri) 8.30am, 1895
Daily, 6pm & Mon, Wed & Fri at 11.30am, 1898
Peek Memorial Chapel Daily services, 1903

## <u>Independent (Congregational) Chapel, Horse/Coombe Street</u>

Minister: Rev Frederick Newman, 1848-52

Rev Samuel Knell, 1855 Rev James Williams, 1859

Rev E Ault, 1865 Rev W Axford, 1867 Rev W R Waugh, 1875

Rev Frances A Warmington 1885-89

Rev William Henry 1903

Wesleyan Chapel, Butter Market Rev A Rennard, 1875

Rev James Gillings, 1880

Rev John Bell, 1885

Wesleyan, Church Street, 1903

Baptist Chapel, Silver Street - Rev Abraham Wayland, 1848-59

Rev Daniel Jennings, 1865

Rev Joseph Roger Jenkins, 1867

Rev G Binney, 1875-80 Rev Edward Marks, 1885-98 Rev James Pringle, 1903

## SS Michael & George's Catholic Church, Silver Street

Priest: Rev William Seth Agar, 1848-51

Rev Charles Fisher, 1851-52 Rev James Conolly, 1855 Rev Robert Platt, 1859 Rev R W Meager, 1865 Rev W F Downing, 1875-80 Rev Leo M Croutelle, 1885-98 Rev Canon Leo M Croutelle, 1903

Plymouth Brethren Chapel Coombe Street, 1867

Assembly Rooms, 1875-95 Coombe Street, 1903

## **Schools**

British & Foreign, Mill Green Master: Mr Collins, 1839-40

Henry Badcock, 1848 Charles Badcock, 1851 Wliiam Edwards, 1855 John Janson, 1859 Alfred Lucas, 1867 George Casley, 1875-80

Mistress: Mrs Collins, 1839-40

Mrs Badcock, 1848 Susan Badcock, 1851 Miss Ann Ball, 1855

Mrs Elizabeth Janson, 1859

Infant, Butter Market - Mistress: Mrs Catherine Stevens, 1848-51

Miss Emma Templar, 1880

Miss Emma Templar, 1889, average attendance 120

National Schools, Church Cliffs, Master: W H Biddlecombe, 1848

Built in 1834 John Stone, 1851

Edward Stone, 1852 James Stone, 1855-59 Henry Woodman, 1867 William Henry Roberts, 1875 Frederick William Vernham, 1880

John Radford, 1885-89, average attendance 100

Mistress: Miss Richmond, 1848

Miss Sarah Bailey, 1855 Miss E Hillman, 1859

Miss Emma Templar, 1867-75

Miss Ann Milton, 1880-89, average attendance 80 Miss Emma Templer, 1885, av attendance, 100

Mistress, Infants

National Schools, Church Street, built in 1891

Boys: John Radford, master, 1895 (130), 1898 (111), 1903 (92)

Girls: Miss Caroline Johnson, mistress, 1895 (106)

Miss L Widdicombe, mistress, 1898 (104)

Miss E W Bristow, mistress, 1903 (87)

Infants: Miss Emma Templar, mistress, 1895 (120), 1898 (89), 1903 (84)

<u>St Michael's College</u>, Sidmouth Road, was opened in January 1887, to provide a good education at moderate charges for the sons of the clergy of the dioceses of Salisbury & Exeter.

Rev Arthur R Sharpe, headmaster, with 34 pupils, 1889 Rev Arthur Sharpe MA with 50 pupils. 1895-98 Roman Catholic, Mistress: Miss Elizabeth Manning, 1867

# **Newspaper**

#### Lyme Regis Mirror

Lyme Regisrror, Bridge Street

Lyme Regis Mirror, Broad Street

LR Mirror & Visitors' list

Lyme Regis Mirror & Visitors' list, 5 Broad Street

Edward Locke, publisher, every Saturday, 1880-89

John Speed Turner, publisher, every Saturday, 1898

John Speed Turner, publisher, every Saturday, 1903

# Railway

South Western, receiving house for goods & parcels W Huxford, New Inn, Broad Street, 1867-75

W Huxford, The Baths, 1880 W Huxford, Church Street, 1885-98 W Huxford & Son, 56 Church Street, 1903

# **Posting Houses**

GD - A house or inn where horses were kept for postriders or for hire to travellers.

Three Cups (Cups Hotel), Broad Street
Miller's Three Cups Hotel, Broad Street
Lion Commercial Inn, Broad Street
Golden Lion, Broad Street
Royal Lion Hotel, Broad Street
William Thorn, 1859
Richard Foulkes, 1865-67

Golden Hart, Butter Market James Tombling, 1859
New Inn, Broad Street Daniel Chubb, 1865

# **Coaches & Conveyances**

Coaches (1830) - through Charmouth

To London Royal Mail (from Exeter), every afternoon at 1.20pm.

Celerity, every night at 7.30pm. Both go through Bridport, Dorchester, Blandford, Salisbury &

Basingstoke.

To Exeter Royal Mail (from London), every afternoon at 12.20pm

Celerity, every forenoon at 10.30am.

Portsmouth (from Portsmouth), every Tuesday, Thursday & Saturday at 5pm.

All go through Axminster & Honiton.

To Portsmouth - Portsmouth (from Exeter), every Monday, Wednesday & Friday at 10am.

Goes through Bridport & Dorchester.

#### <u>Coaches (1840)</u>

To Bristol Coach from the Three Cups, Tues, Thurs & Sat at 8am.

Return on Mon, Wed & Fri at 5pm,

To Exeter Alert from the Three Cups, Mon, Wed & Fri at 11.30am

Returns on Tues, Thurs & Sat at 12.30pm,

To Weymouth Alert, from the Three Cups Inn, Tues, Thurs & Sat at 12.30pm

Returns Mon, Wed & Fri at 11.30am.

## Coaches (1842-44) - Passing through Charmouth.

To London Royal Mail (from Exeter) every afternoon at 3am.

Forester every evening (except Sunday) at 6.30pm. both coaches go through

Bridport, Dorchester, Blandford, Salisbury & Basingstoke.

To Exeter Royal Mail (from London) every day at 12.20pm.

Forester every day (except Sunday) at 12.30pm.

Regulator (from Portsmouth) every Tues, Thurs & Sat evenings at 5pm.

All go through Axminster & Honiton.

To Portsmouth Regulator (from Exeter) every Mon, Wed & Fri morning at 10am.

Goes through Bridport and Dorchester &c.

## <u>Coaches (1848)</u>

To Dorchester Emerald, from the Cups & Golden Lion, Broad Street, at 8.30am via Bridport,

& thence by rail.

To Taunton Retaliator, from the Cups & Golden Lion, Broad Street, at 8am via Axminster & Chard,

& thence by rail.

## **Coaches (1851)**

From the Three Cups Hotel:

To Dorchester Royal\_Mail at 7am & 5pm. To Taunton Royal Mail at 8.30am.

#### Coaches (1852)

From the Three Cups Hotel:

To Dorchester - Royal Mail every morning at 8am via Charmouth & Bridport.

To Taunton - Retaliator every morning (except Sundays) at 8.30am via Ilchester.

Coaches from Charmouth to Dorchester, Exeter & Weymouth.

Nearest railway station is Dorchester, 24 miles distant, on Southampton & Dorchester line.

#### Coaches (1855)

To Dorchester & Weymouth Coronet, from the Miller's Cups Hotel at 7.45am via Bridport,

To Taunton Retaliator, from the Miller's Cups Hotel at 8am via Axminster & Chard.

These journeys would continue further afield by rail.

#### Coaches (1859)

To Bridport Station Mail coach leaves Miller's Cups Hotel at 8am (except Sunday) for 9.30am

to London. Leaves station at 2.50pm for return journey.

To Exeter Magnet, Tuesday, Thursday & Saturday, returning from Exeter on Wednesday.

Friday & Monday to Royal Lion Hotel, Broad Street.

#### Coaches (1865)

To Bridport Station - Leaves Chubb's New Inn daily (Sundays excepted) to meet the train for London,

Leaves Bridport station for Lyme at 2.50 pm.

Conveyance (1867)

To Axminster Station Royal Mail omnibus leaves the Lion Hotel to meet the 11.02am train to London etc.

Returns to Lyme on arrival of the 2.58pm from London.

R Fowkes, proprietor.

To Axminster Station Omnibus leaves Miller's Three Cups Hotel every morning, returning in afternoon.

T Miller, proprietor.

Conveyance (1875)

To Axminster Station Royal Mail omnibus leaves the Three Cups Hotel at 9.20am & 12,20pm,

returning to Lyme on the arrival of the trains from London, Portsmouth &c

at 12.10 & 3.50pm. J W Bennett, proprietor.

Conveyance (1880)

To Axminster Station Royal Mail omnibus leaves the Cups Hotel at 9.15am & 12.15pm.

Returning to Lyme on arrival of trains from London & Portsmouth.

H Miller, proprietor.

To Bridport Omnibus leaves Royal Lion at 10am, returning at 3pm.

<u>Conveyance (1885-98)</u>

To Axminster Station Omnibus leaves the Royal Lion Hotel at 9.15am & 12.30pm, returning to

Lyme on the arrival of the trains from London, Portsmouth &c at 12.57 & 3.08pm.

John Grove, proprietor.

To Axminster Station (1898) Omnibus leaves the Royal Lion Hotel at 9.30 & 11.55am and 12.30 & 4.45pm

and returning to Lyme on arrival of trains from London & Portsmouth etc at

10.30 & 1.20am and 3.14 & 7.5pm.

John Grove, proprietor

To Bridport Omnibus leaves Three Cups Hotel at 10am, returning at 4pm (3.30pm, 1885)

Richard Williams, proprietor, 1885-89 William Hounsell, proprietor, 1895-98

Conveyance (1903)

To Axminster Station Omnibus leaves the Royal Lion Hotel at 9.30 & 11.55am and 12.30 & 4.45pm,

returning to Lyme on arrival of the trains from London, Portsmouth &c at 10.30am

and 1.20, 3.14 & 7.05pm. John Grove, proprietor.

To Bridport Station Omnibus leaves the Three Cups Hotel at 10.15am, returning at 4.25pm.

Robert Warren, proprietor.

## **Carriers**

#### Carriers (1823 & 1828)

To Bridport John Driller, Coombe Street, 6.30am every Mon, Wed & Sat.

To Bridport -John Mills, Sherborne Lane, 6.30am every Mon, Wed & Sat. To Chard James Jones, Mill Green, 6am every Monday morning.

## Carriers (1830)

To Beer & Seaton John Tizard from the Lion, days uncertain.

John Diller, from Horse Street, every Monday, Wednesday & Saturday. To Bridport

William Edwards from the Three Cups every Friday. To Bristol To Chard & Axminster &c William Edwards from the Three Cups every Friday. A cart, every day, where it meets Russell & Co's waggons. To and from Charmouth

Carrier (1839-40)

To Bridport John Baker, from his own house, Mon, Wed & Sat; returns same day.

Carriers (1842-44)

To Beer & Seaton John Tizard from the Lion, days uncertain.

To Bridport Baker, from his house, Charmouth, every Mon, Wed & Fri and,

Williams, from the Lion, every Wed & Sat.

Thomas, from the Three Cups and Whitmash & Co from their office To Bristol

every Mon, Wed & Fri.

To Chard, Axminster &c Williams, from the Lion, every Tuesday & Thursday.

<u>Carriers (1848)</u>

To Bridport Baker, from his house in Coombe Street, at 9am on Mon, Wed, & Sat.

Returns the same day.

To Taunton Grabham, from the Pilot Boat, Tuesday & Friday, via Axminster & Chard.

Crocker & Spencer (late Whitmash & Co), from the Cups Hotel,

via Bridport, Axminster, Chard, Yeovil, Ilchester, Crewkerne, Beaminster,

Sherborne & Taunton.

Carriers (1851)

Ford & Co, Tues, Thurs & Sat To London & all parts

Crocker, Mon, Wed & Fri.

Huxford, from Uplyme, on Tues & Fri at 8am. To Exeter

To Street Edward. Mon & Fri.

Carriers (1852)

To Bridport John Walker, from his house in Coombe Street, Mon, Wed & Sat mornings.

To Bristol Edwards, from the Golden Hart, twice a week. To Chard & Taunton Samuel Grabham, from King's Arms, twice a week.

To London & most parts of England, by wagon & railway daily Ford & Co from Coombe Street.

Crocker from the New Inn.

Carriers (1855)

Cleal from his own house in Coombe Street to Bridport, Mon, Wed & Sat at 9am, Grabham from Pilot Boat Inn to Taunton, via Axminster & Chard, on Tuesday & Friday,

from Baker's, Coombe Street to Axminster, Chard, Yeovil, Ilchester, Stone (late Crocker)

Crewkerne, Beaminster, Sherborne & Taunton.

Huxford from Broad Street to Exeter, twice a week,

## <u>Carriers (1859)</u>

Grabham from Royal Lion Hotel to Taunton, via Axminster & Chard, on

Tuesday & Friday,

Huxford from Royal Lion Hotel, Broad Street, to Exeter, twice a week,

Bradford from his own house in Coombe Street to Bridport, Mon, Wed & Sat at 9am,

returns the same day.

Great Western Railway Co Royal Lion Hotel, Broad Street.

Carriers (1865)

To Bridport Hounsell, Mon, Wed & Sat, 8am, from his own house, Monmouth Street,

returns the same day.

Great Western Railway Company, Royal Lion Hotel, Broad Street.

To Axminster Huxford, daily at 6.30, from Red Lion, Church Street.

<u>Carriers (1867)</u>

To Axminster W Huxford, daily at 6.45am, returning from the New Inn in the afternoon.

To Bridport - J Hounsell, from the Royal Lion at 8.30am, Wed & Sat. Returns from Royal Oak,

Bridport, in the afternoon.

To Charmouth W Huxford, Tuesday, Thursday & Saturday.

J Hounsell, daily.

<u>Carriers (1875)</u>

To Axminster W Huxford, daily at 6.45am, returning from the New Inn in the afternoon.

To Bridport J Hounsell, from the Golden Hart at 8.30am Monday, Wednesday & Saturday.

Returns from the Pack Horse, Bridport, in the afternoon.

To Charmouth W Huxford, Tuesday, Thursday & Saturday.

J Hounsell, Monday, Wednesday & Saturday.

<u>Carriers (1880)</u>

To Axminster W Huxford, daily, returning from the New Inn in the afternoon.

To Bridport Hodder, from the Golden Hart, at 8.30am, Monday, Wed & Sat.

Returns from the Packhorse, Bridport, in the afternoon.

To Charmouth Hodder, Monday, Wednesday & Saturday.

<u>Carriers (1885-98)</u>

Axminster W Huxford, daily, returning from the New Inn in the afternoon.

Bridport Hodder (1885-95) & Pidgeon (1898), from the Golden Hart at 8.30 Mon, Wed & Sat;

returns from the Packhorse, Bridport, in the afternoon.

Charmouth - Hodder (1885-95) & Pidgeon (1898), Mon. Wed & Saturday.

Carriers (1903)

Axminster W Huxford & Son, daily, returning from the New Inn in the afternoon.

**Trading Vessels** 

To London Unity Capt Robert Pearce, 1823-44

Capt John Pearce, 1848

Commerce Capt John Randall, 1823-30

Capt John Pearce, 1840-44

Honiton Packet Capt John Good (Wood), 1823-30

Capt Thomas Clarke, 1840 Capt John Clarke, 1842-44 Capt Samuel Gibbs, 1848

One of above vessels sail every fortnight, wind & weather permitting.

To London Unity John Pearce, master, 1851-52

Vulcan Samuel Gibbs, master, 1851-52
Ann & Emily George Griffin, master, 1851-52

One of above vessels sails weekly.

To London (every 14 days) Vulcan Packet Capt Samuel Gibbs, to Carpenter Smith's wharf, 1855-59

Capt Samuel Stevens, 1865

Ann & Emily Packet Capt G Griffin, to Gun & Shot wharf, 1855-65

To Guernsey (every week) Alfred Capt Lidstone & Cato, John Chamberlayne, 1823-28

To Guernsey (once a fortnight) a *Packet* Samuel Harvey, ship agent & broker, Coombe Street, 1830

To Guernsey & Jersey (every fortnight) William IV Capt W Gibbs, 1840

To Guernsey (every fortnight) - William IV Charles Walker, agent, The Cobb, 1842-44

(wind & weather permitting)

To Guernsey & Jersey Various vessels monthly, calling off Bridport, 1848

To Guernsey & Jersey Sarah from the The Cobb, fortnightly, 1851

To Guernsey Primrose William Bridle, master, 1852

Sails weekly with passengers & goods.

To Guernsey & Jersey Various vessels monthly, calling off Bridport, 1855
Various vessels weekly, calling off Bridport, 1859-65